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Selected key consolidated financial data

Prehmmary comments

Vivend deconsolidated GVT, SFR, Maroc Telecom group and Activision Bhizzard as from May 28, 2015, November 27, 2014, May 14, 2014,
and October 11, 2013, respectively, 1 e, the date of their effective sale by Vivend: In comphance with IFRS 5, these businesses have been
reported in Vivendr's Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued aperations for alf relevant periods as set out in the table of sefected
key consahdated financial data below in respect of data contained in the Consolidated Statement of Farmngs and Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows

‘Year ended December 31
2015 2014 2013 nm?2 2011

nsolidated da
Revenues 10,762 10,089 10,252 9597 9,064
EBIT 123 736 637 (1131} t 269
Eamings attributable to Vivend) SA shareowners 1932 4744 1967 179 2681

of which earmings from continsing aperations attributable to Vivend SA shareowners 699 {290) 43 {1,565) 571
Income from opesations (a) 1061 1108 13 na na
EBITA (a) 942 999 955 1074 1086
Adjusted net income (a} 697 626 454 318 270
Net Cash Position/{Financial Net Debt) {a) 6422 4637 {11097} {13,419) 12 027)
Total equity 21086 22988 19,030 21,291 22,070

of winch Vivend: SA sharaowners equity 20854 22 606 17 457 18325 19447
Cash flow from operatrons {CFFO) (a} 892 843 B34 846 857
Cash fiow from operations after interest and income tax paid {CFAIT) (a} [69) 421 503 172 826
Financial investments {3327} 11 244} {107 {1 689) (283
Firancial dwestments a4m3 17 807 34N mm 4205
Dwvdends paid by Vivend SA to its shasehalders 2727 o) 1348 1) 1325 1245 173
Per share data
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 136815 1,3458 13306 12989 12814
Adjusted net income per share D51 046 034 0.24 o
Number of shares cutstanding at the end of the period (excluding treasury shares) 13423 13516 13396 1,3225 12874
Equity per share attnbutable to Vivendi SA shareowners 1554 1673 1303 1386 1511
Dividends per share pard 200 () 100 o) 1.00 1.00 140

In mullions of eurgs, number of shares in millions, data per share in euros
na not applicable

a  The non-GAAP measures of Income from operations {a measure of the operating performance of business segments recentty applied by
Vivendi Management), EBITA, Adjusted net income, Net Cash Position {or Financial Net Debt), Cash flow from operatiens {CFFO) and
Cash flow from aperations after interest and income tax paid (CFAIT) should be considered in addition to, and not as a substitute for,
other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance as presented in the Consclidated Financial Statements and the related
Notes, or as described in this Financial Report Vivend: considers these to be relevant indicators of the group's operating and financtal
performance Each of these indicators 1s defined in the appropriate section of this Financial Report of in 1ts Appendix |n addition, 1t
should be noted that other companies may have different definitions and calculations for these indicators from Vivendi, thereby
affecting comparabifity

b Relates to the ordinary dividend paid on Apnl 23, 2015 with respect to fiscal year 2014 (€1 per share, 1 e, €1,363 milhon), and the
interim dividend paid on June 29, 2015 with respect to fiscal year 2015{€1 per share, 1 ¢, €1,364 midhon)

¢ OnJune 30, 2014, Vivend: SA paid an ordinary dividend of €1 per share to its shareholders from additional paid-in capital, treated as a
return of capital distribution to shareholders
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Nota

In accordance with European Commussion Regulation {EC) 809/2004 {Article 28) which sets out the disclosure obligations for 1ssuers of securities

listed on a regulated market within the European Union {implementing Directive 2003/71/EC, the “Prospectus Regulation”), the following items are

incorporated by reference into this report

* 2014 Financial Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, prepared under IFRS and the related
Statutory Auditors’ Report presented on pages 158 to 293 of the "Document de Référence’ No [15-0135, filed with the French Autonité des
Marchés Financiers {AMF) on March 13, 2015, and on pages 158 to 233 of the English translation of this “Document de Référence”, and

e 2013 Financial Report and the Consolidated Financral Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013, prepared under IFRS and the refated
Statutory Audrtors’ Report presented on pages 172 to 324 of the “Document de Référence” No D 14-0355, filed with the French Autonité des
Marchés Financiers {AMF} on Apnif 14, 2014, and on pages 172 to 324 of the English translation of this “Document de Référence”
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I- 2015 Financial Report

Preluminary comments

o On February 10, 2016, the Management Board approved the Financial Report and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the
year ended December 31, 2015 Upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, which met en February 11, 2018, the Supervisory
Board, at its meeting held on February 18, 2016, reviewed the Financial Report and the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for
the year ended December 31, 2015, as approved by the Management Board on February 10, 2016

s The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 have been audited and certified by the Statutory Auditors
without qualified opimon The Statutory Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 1s included in the preamble to the
Financial Statements

Overview

Acceleration of international expansion
In 2015, Vivendi continued to develop its interational activities which now account for close to 60% of its revenues

The group 1s the world leader 1n recorded music halding a 34% global market share' in 2014 The launch of rew offenngs by globat, regional
and local players as well as new entrants in digital music provide Universal Music Group with opportunities to expand into new markets

Vivendi has 11 2 million pay-TV indwidual subscrbers, of which 5 5 million are Jocated outside mainland France In particular, Canal+ Group
now has more than 2 milion individual subscribers in over 30 countries in Afnica where, after faunching the African entertainment
channel A+ in October 2014, 1t continued to expand its offer by adding 25 additional channels in 2015

The fitm and television production and distnbution activities are driven in particular by Studiocanal, the leading European studio, which
continues 1ts geographical expansion by entering mto agreements in the United Kingdom and in Scandinavia in 2015, and by strengthening
its presence in the North American market

In addition, with the acquisition of Dailymotion, one of the world's largest video platforms (3 5 billion videos viewed each month), Vivend
increased its digital distribution capacity, resulting in an acceleration of its international development

In recent months, Vivend: also confirmed 1ts willingness to wtvest in Southern Europe, a market that shares its Latin culture and roots As of
December 31, 2015, 1t held 21 4% of Telecom [talia’'s common shares and 095% of Telefonica In December 2015, as a long-term
shareholder, the group successfully proposed the appointment of four members to the Board of Dtrectors of the Italian telecoms operator, of
which three are Vivend: representatives and one 1s an independent member

The investment i Telecom italia represents an opportunity for the group to be present and to expand in a market with significant growth
prospects and a very strong appetite for quality content In pursut of its investment strategy in Latin content, Vivendi 1 exploring
opportunities to invest in several production companies in Southern Europe

Development of origmmal content production

The development of originai content production, which reduces Vivend's dependence on third-parties, 1s being achieved by the continuous
investment in artists and talent, by multiplying original production pra;jects and by the acquisition of interests in production companies

Vivend: relies an its own in-house production capabilities Canal+ {the Création onginale label), Studiocanal (cinema and senes), Flab Prod,
Studio+ and Can't Stop, companies acquired in the first half of 2015 {non-scripted television shows), Studia Bage! {short web-based content)
and Universal Music Group fabels

Vivend: will acquire a 26 2% interest in Banijay Zodiak, one of the largest independent producers and distnbutors of television programs in
the world, resulting from the combination of Banijay Group and Zodigk Media The transaction will be finahzed shortly The group also
acquired a 30% interest in Mars Films, a French leader in fitm production and distribution

! Source Music & Copyright

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 Vivend / &




Friday, February 19, 2016

The need to stop losses of Canal+ channels in France

The six Canal+ channels? have been losing money 1n France for the last four years With a subscrniber base that has been severely eroded
since 2012, the channels recorded a negative EBITA of €264 million 1n 2015, a €76 million loss increase compared to 2014 The arnval of new
national and international players in the areas of sports and fiction caused a surge in the price of content broadcasting nights and has
increased the number of competing offers, ieading to greater fosses

This sitvanion threatens the entire Canal+ Group, which employs 8,200 peopie and 15 a major player in the financing and development of the
movie mdustry, 1n which 1t iInvests globally close to €800 million per year both in France [French cinema agreements renewed in spring 2015)
and internationally

The prionty for the new management team put in place last summer ts to implement a major transformation ptan 1n order to return to break-
even This plan must ensure that the subscriber's perceived value of the group’s offers 1s restored by increasing investment in onginal
content production and premium content as well as by improving signsficantly the user expenence, all in an essential cost-efficient manner

Vivendi cannot on @ long term basis continue to finance the losses of Canal+ channels 1n France Qver the past two years, the group has
already invested €15 bithon in Canal+ m France {acquisition in October 2013 of the 20% interest in Canal+ France held by Lagardére and
public tender offer for Société d'Edition de Canal Plus {SECP} shares in May 2015) and investments wilt remain substantial in the medium
term, both 1n content and in techno!ogy

For a detailed descnption of the significant events that occurred in 2015, as well as the subseguent events, please refer to Notes 2 and 27,
respectively, to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015

1 Earnings analysis: Group and Business segments

Prelimmary comments

+ Income from operations, EBITA and adusted net income, non-GAAP measures, should be considered in addition to, and not as a
substitute for, ather GAAP measures of operating and financral performance as presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements and
the related Notes, or as described i the Financial Report Vivend! considers these to be relevant indicators of the group’s operating and
financial performance

Vivend: Management uses incorne from operations, EBITA and adjusted net income for reporting, management, and planning purposes
because they provide a better iifustration of the underlymng performance of continuing operations by excluding most nonecurring and
non-operating items

- The difference between EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations,
the imparment of goodwill and other imangibles acquired through business combinations, and EBIT's “other charges” and "other
ncome” as defined in Note 12 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015

- As defined by Vivends, income from operations 1s calculated as EBITA as presented mn the Adjusted Statement of Earnings, before
share-based compensation costs related to equity-settled plans, and special tems due to their unusual nature or particular
sigrificance

Moregver, it should be noted that other compamies may have different definttions and calculations for these non-GAAP measures from
Vivendh, thereby affecting comparability

e Incomphance with IFRS 5, SFR and Maroc Telecom group {sold i 2014), as well as GVT (sold on May 28, 2015) have been reported as
discontinued operations In practice, mcome and charges from these busingsses have been reported as follows

- ther contribution, until their effective divestiture, to each ling of Vivendi's Consoldated Statement of Earmings (before non-
controliing nterests) has been reported on the line “Earmings from discontinued operations”,
any capital gamn recognized as a result of a completed divestiture 1s recorded under the line "Earmings from discontinued
operations”, and

- their share of net income and the capital gan recognized as a result of a completed divestiture have been excluded from Vivend's
adjusted net income

? Relates to the sw premium channels Canalr Canaly Cinéma Canal+ Sport, Canal Sénes Canal+ Famly and Canak Décalé
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11 Consolidated Statement of Earmings and Adjusted Statement of

Earnings

ADJUSTED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

Revenues

Cost of revenues

Selling general and administrative expenses excluding
amedization of mtangible assets acquired through business
combinations

Restuctunng charges

Amortrzation of intangshle assets acguired through business
combinations

Impairment losses on intang:ble assets acguired through
bugingss comnatons

Dther ncome

Other charges

EBIT

Income from equity affiliates

Interest

In¢ome from investments

Other financial income

Other financtal charges

Earnings from continuing sperat before pr

for income taxes
Prowiszon for income taxes

£armings from continmng oporations

Earmings from discontinued operations

Earnings

Of which

Earmings attributakle to Vivends SA shareowners
contunuing operations
discontinued operations

Non-controlling enterests

Earnings atinbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners per
share - basic {in euros)

Earnings attributsble to Vivend: SA sharsowners per
share - diluted {in euros)

In millions of euros, except per share amounts

Year ended December 31 ‘Year ended December 31
05 M4 2015 2014
10,762 10,089 10,762 10,089
{6 535} 6121} 16,555} (6121)
{3163} {2 865} (3146) {2 860)
1,061 1,108
{102) (o4 {102} (164}
nn 15
(408) {344)
{3) 192)
745 203
145) {30}

1.3 3% 942 999
{10} {18} {10} {18)
130 {861 {30} {96
52 3 52 3

16 19
{73) {751}

1,186 {107) 954
1441) 1130} 199 1200)
745 {231)

1233 5262 -

1918 5025 755 688

1832 4,744 697
(290)

1233 5034
46 28t 58
142 352 0.51 046
1n 35 [+L3] 045

1 2 Earnings analysis Group

Revenues

Cost of revenues

Selling general and administrative expenses excluding
amoruzation of intangible assets acquired throegh business
combinations

Income from operations

Restructuning charges

Other aperating charges and income

EBITA

Income from equity affiliates
Interest

Income frem investments

Adjusted esrnings from continuing operations befora

provision for income taxes
Prowision for income taxes

Adjusted net encome before non-controiling interests
Of winch
Adjusted net tncome

Non-controlling nterests

Adpusted net income per share - bastt (in euros)

Adjusted aet income per share - difuted {in earos)

1.21 Analysis of Adjusted net income and Earnings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners

In 2015, adjusted net income was a €697 million profit {or €051 per share), compared to €626 mithon in 2014 {or €0 46 per share), a
€71 million increase (+11 3%) The change in adjusted net income mainly resulted from the decrease in interest expense (+€66 million} and
the increase m income from investments {+£49 milion), partially offset by the decrease in EBITA (-€57 million} As a reminder, pursuant to
the apphication of IFRS 5 to SFR and Maroc Telecom group (businesses sold 1in 2014), as well as GVT {sold on May Z8, 2015), the Adjusted
Statement of Earnings includes the results of Canal+ Group, Universal Music Group, Vivend: Village and New Initiatives’ operations, as well

as Corporate costs

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015
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Adjusted net income per share

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014
Basic Duluted Basie Diduted

Adjusted net income (1n millions of euros) 697 897 626 626
Number of shares {in mt/lions)

Weighted average number of shares cutstanding {a) 13615 1,3615 13458 13458
Potential dilutive ffects retated to share-based compensation - 53 - 55
Adjusted werghted average number of shares 13615 1.356.8 13458 13513
Adjusted net income per share {in euros} 0% 05 046 046

a  Net of the average number of treasury shares 1 6 million shares in 2015, compared to 0 4 mitlion in 2014

In 2015, earmings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners were a £1,932 mithon profit {or €1 42 per share), compared to €4,744 miflion
{or €3 52 per share}in 2014

1.22 Reconcihation of earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners to adjusted net income

Year ended December 31

{in millions of euros) 2015 2014
Eamnings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners {(a) 1932 4,744
Adjustments
Amortization of intangible assets acquired through busingss combinations 408 344
Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations (a) K| 92
Other income {a} {745) 1203)
Other charges {a) 45 30
Other fimancial income (a) (16) (19)
Other financial charges {a) 73 751
Earnings from discontinued operations (a) {1233 (5 262)
Of which capital gain on the dwestiture of GVT, after taxes paid in Bran! (1,423 -
capital Ioss on the dwestiture of Telefonica Brasd 294 -
capital gan on the divestiture of SF - {2375}
capital gain on the drvestiture of Maroc Telecom group - {785)
capital gam on the safe of 21 5 mithon Activision Blizzard shares - {84)
Change in deferred tax asset related to Vivend: SA's French Tax Group and to the
Consoldated Glabal Profit Tax Systems 229 37
Non recurnng stems related ta provision {or income taxes 145 5
Provision far income taxes on adjustments (132) 1112)
Non-controling interests on adjustments (12) 219
Adjusted net income 697 626

a  Asreported in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings
123 Detailed analysis of the main items from the Statement of Eamings

Revenues were €10,762 million, compared to 10,089 million in 2014 {+6 7%, or +1 4% at constant currency and perimeter’} As a result of
the appreciation of the U S dollar {USD} and the British pound (GBP) against the euro (EUR) in 2015, revenues included a €473 million
favorable impact, pnmarly attributable to Universat Music Group, as well as the liugation settlement proceeds 0 the United States at
Universal Music Group (+€56 million)

Income fram operations was €%,061 million, compared to £1,108 million in 2014, a €47 million decrease {-4 3%) At constant currency and
penmeter, income from operations decreased by €65 mtll:on (-5 9%)

The decline of Canal+ Group {-€76 million), notably reflecting increased investment in contents and a positive non-recuimng impact in 2014
related to a litigation settlement, and the impact of the integration of developing activities within New itiatives (-€18 million), were

3 Constant penmeter reflects the impacts of the acquisitions of Thema (October 28 2014) and Dailymetion {June 30 2015)

Financia! Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 Vivendi /9
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partially offset by the improved operating performance of Vivend: Village {+€44 million), mainly associated with Watchever's return to break-
even thanks to the transformation plan implemented during the second half of 2014

Cost of revenues amounted to £6,555 million {compared to €6,121 million in 2014)

Selling, general and administrative expenses reported in the Adjusted Statement of Eamings amounted to €3,146 mithon, compared to
£2,860 miltion 1n 2014, a €286 million ncrease (+10 0%)

Depreciation and amortization of tangible and intangible assets are included erither in the cost of revenues or in selling, general and
administrative expenses Depreciation and amortization, excluding amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations,
amounted to €305 million (compared to €307 million 1n 2014), and were notably related to Canal+ Group's set-top boxes, as well as
Studiocanal’s catalogs, films and television programs

EBITA amounted to €942 mullion, compared to €999 million ; 2014, a €57 milhon decrease {-57%) At constant currency and perimeter,
EBITA decreased by £74 million {-7 4%) This decling reflected the unfavorable change in income from operations and the impact of other
operating charges and income EBITA notably included

s restructuring charges for €102 million, pnimaniy ncurred by Universal Music Group (€51 million, stable compared to 2014) and
Canal+ Group (€47 million, notably related to the new organization put in place during the second half of 2015) in 2014, restructuning
charges amounted ta €104 million and included, in addition to @ €50 million charge incurred by Universal Music Group, an exceptional
provision of €44 million intended as part of Watchever's transformation plan in Germany, and

« other operating charges and income excluded from :ncome from operations for @ net charge of €17 million, compared to a
€5 million net charge in 2014 In 2015, they notably compr:sed on the one hand, Universal Music Group’s income from hitigation
settlement proceeds in the United States (+629 million), as well as reversals of reserves at Canal+ Group (+€22 million) and at
Corporate (+£19 mill:on), and on the other hand, accruals of reserves related to litigation at Canal+ Group (-€61 million) and charges
related to equity-settled share-based compensation plans {-€16 mill:on) In 2014, they notably included reversals of resesves at
Universal Music Group (+#824 millon) and non-recurring profits related to pensions at Corporate (+£25 million), partially offset by
transition costs at Canal+ Group {-€15 million), EMI's integration costs at Universal Music Group (-€13 million) and charges related to
equity-settled share-based compensation plans {-€3 mdlion)

EBIT amounted to £1,231 million, compared to €736 million in 2014, a €495 million ncrease (+67 2%) In this amount

« other income and charges were a €700 mibion net income, compared to a €173 mitlion net income n 2014 In 2015, they pimanly
comprised the capital gain on the divest:ture of the 20% interest i Numencable-SFR (€651 m:llion, before taxes) and a reversal of
reserve related to the impairment of Canal+ Group’s interest in TVN in Poland (€54 miliion), sold en July 1, 2015 In 2014 other
income 1n EBIT mainly included a capital gain on the divestiture of Universal Music Group's interest in Beats (€179 million}, and

« amortization and depreciation of intangible assets acquired through business comhinations amounted ta €411 million in
2015, amortization increased by €64 millien notably as a result of the appreciation of the US dollar (USD) against the euro at
Universal Music Group In 2014, amortization and depreciation of intangible assets acquired through business combinations
amounted to €436 million and notably included the impairment of goodwill losses attnbutable to Digitick and MyBestPro {(Wengo) for
€92 million

Reconcifiation of EBIT to EBITA and to income from operations

Year ended December 31

{in smillions of euros) 2015 2014

EBIT (a) 1231 136
Adyustments

Amortizauon of intangible assets acquired through business combinations 408 34
Impairment fosses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations {a) 3 92
Other income {a} (745) (203)
Other charges (a} 45 30
EBITA 942 999
Adustments

Restructuring charges (a} 102 104
Charges related to equity-settled share-based compensation plans 16 9
(Other non-current operating charges and mcome 1 4
Inrcome from operations 1,061 1,108

a  Asreported in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Income from equity affiliates was a €10 milion loss, compared to a €18 mulion loss n 2014
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Interest was an expense of €30 mullion, compared to €96 million in 2014, a €66 mitlion decrease {-68 7%) In this amount

+ nterest expense on borrowings amounted to €65 milhion (compared to €283 million in 2014) This €218 million decrease was
attnbutable for €216 million, to the decrease in the average outstanding borrowings to €2 2 billion in 2015 {compared to €27 billion
in 2014} In 2015, the average interest rate on borrowings was 2 91% (compared to 2 94% n 2014} The redemption of bonds for an
aggregate amount of €5 6 billion, including €0 9 tillion at matunty date of the redeemable bonds in January 2014 and €4 7 billion in
December 2014 following the sale of SFR, resulted in interest savings of €175 mullion 1n 2015 The outstanding bonds remaining In
the Statement of Financial Position (€1,950 million as of December 31, 2015) generated a €569 mullon interest expense in 2015
In addition, pursuant to the application of IFRS 5 to GVT and SFR, interest expense was reported net of interest received by
Vivendi SA from financing provided to these entities, on an arm's-length basis The nterest recewed from GVT amounted to
€4 million 1n 2015, compared to €172 million receved from SFR and GVT in 2014, a €168 million decrease, primanly attributable to
the sale of SFR at the end of November 2014, and

* nterest sncome earned on Net Cash Position amounted to 831 million, compared to €15 mifllion i 2014 This change resulted from
the increase m the average Net Cash Position to €8 8 billion in 2015 (compared to €2 1 bilfion 1n 2014} folowing the divestitures
occurred (in 2014 [SFR, Maroc Telecam) and 1n 2015 {GVT, Numencable-SFR}

Income from investments amounted to €52 million, compared to €3 million 1n 2014 In 2015, €26 milllon was attributable to interest
generated between May 6 and August 19, 2015 by the €1,948 milion receivable from Altice related to the deferred payment for the sale of a
10% interest in Numerncable-SFR They also included dividends received from Activision Blizzard (EB million, in cash) and from Telefonica
{€16 million, in shares)

Other financial charges and income were a €57 mill:ion net charge, compared to a €732 millon net charge 1n 2014 In 2015, this amount
included the unfavorable change in the time value component of the colfar hedge denominated in USD on Vivendi's remaining terest in
Activision Bhizzard during the second half of 2015 (-€16 millron) In 2014, 1t mainly included the premium paid {-€642 million) with respect to
the early redemption of bonds in December 2014 (€4 7 billion} following the sale of SFR

Provision for mcome taxes reported to adjusted net income was a net charge of €199 mithon, stable compared to 2014 The effective
tax rate reported to adjusted net income was 20 6% n 2015 {compared to 22 0% in 2014}, mainly reflecting the favorable impact on tax rates
of Vivend's French and U S Tax Group Systems, as well as the favorable impact of Watchever’s return to break-even in Germany, thanks to
cost management implemented stnce the second half of 2014

In addition, provision for iIncome taxes reported to net income was a £441 million net charge, compared to a €130 million net charge in
2014 This €311 mitlion increase mainly reflected the mcome tax payable by Vivendy SA in France related to the sale of the interests in
Numenicable-SFR, GVT and Telefonica Brasi {-€187 milhon, net of the tax savings related to Vivend SA's Tax Group System). as well as the
3% tax on Vivend) SA's dividends {-€122 mullion, with respect to dividends of €4 1 billion) As a reminder, in addition to the ordinary dividend
of €1 with respect to fiscal year 2014 approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting of Apnl 17, 2015, Vivendi's Management Board, in furtherance
of 1ts commitment, approved the drstribution of two intenim ordinary dividends of €1 each wath respect to fiscal year 2015, following the
sales of GVT on May 28, 2015 and of the 20% nterest in Numercable-SFR on May 6, 2015 The fust intenm dividend was paid on
June 29, 2015, the second one was paid on February 3, 2016

Earnings from continuing operations after provision for income taxes were a €745 million profit, compared to a €237 million loss in
2014, a favorable change of €982 mulion In 2015, this change notably included the capital gan on the sale of the 20% interest in
Numericable-SFR {(+£65t million, before taxes), partrally offset by the increase in prowsion for income taxes (-£311 million) as a result of the
income tax paid tn France related to the sale of the interests ; Numericable-SFR, GVT and Telefonica Brasil {-€187 million}, as well as the
3% tax on the dividends paid in France {-6122 mullion) In 2014, this change mainly included the prem:um paid (-€642 million) with respect to
the early redemption of bonds in December 2014 following the sale of SFR

Earnings from discontinued operations amounted to €1,233 million, compared to €5,262 mrtlion in 2014 In 2015, they ncluded {1} the
capital gan on the sale of GVT on May 28, 2015 for €1,818 million, before taxes of €395 million pad in Brazil, (n) the capital foss on
Telefonica Brasi shares {-€294 million), and {in) GVT's net earnings up untit its sate for £179 million, including the impact related to the
discontinuation of the amortization of tangible and intangible assets since September 1, 2014, in comphanee with IFRS 5 (+€153 mullion in
2015} They also compnised the remaining impact related to the sale of the 80% interest in SFR to Numencable {-€69 mellion) In 2014, they
included the capital gains on the sale of SFR {€2,378 million, after taxes), of Maroc Telecom {(+£786 mullion, after taxes) and of the interest in
Activsion Blizzard {+€84 milhion), as well as GVT, SFR and Maroc Telecom's net earnings, before non-controlling interests, for an aggregate
amount of £2,010 million, including the impact of the discontinuation of amortizabion of tangible and intangible assets, in comphance with
[FRS 5 (+€1,385 mullon in 2014) Please refer to Note 2 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015

Earnings attributable to non-controlling interests amounted to €46 million, compared to €281 mullion in 2014, a €235 million decrease
mamly attnbutable to the sale of Marec Telecom group on May 14, 2014 Adjusted net income atinbutable to non-controlling
interests amounted to €58 mill:ion, compared to €62 million in 2014, and included non-controlling interests of Société d’Edition de Canal
Plus {SECP, prior to their full acquisttion by Vivend: from mid-August to the end of September 2015}, Canal+ Gverseas and nc+ in Poland
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1 3 Performance analysis. Business segments

(in milhons of euros)

Revenues

Canal+ Group

Universal Music Group

Vivendi Village

New Inttiatives

Eliminatien of intersegment transactions
Total Vivend:

Income from operations
Canal+ Group

Universal Music Graup
Vivend Village

New Initratives

Corporate

Total Vivendi

EBITA

Canal+ Group
Universal Music Group
Vivend Village

New initiatives
Corporate

Total Vivend:

na not applicable

Year ended December 31

% Change at
% Change at constant currency
2015 2044 % Change constant currency  and perimeter (a)

5513 5456 +11% +) 5% +12%

5,108 4557 +121% +25% +27%
100 96 +35% 02% -96%

43 -
{2) {20}

10,762 10,089 +6.7% +2.0% +14%
542 618 -122% -123% -131%
626 606 +32% -09% 0 6%

10 (34) na na na
(18) -
{99) (82)

1,061 1,108 -4 3% -6.3% -5 %%
454 583 -221% -222% -230%
593 965 +50% +08% +10%

9 {79} na na na
{20 -
{94} {70}
942 999 57% -719% -714%

a  Constant penmeter reflects the impacts of the acquisitions of Thema by Canal+ Group on October 28, 2014, and Dailymotion {included
within New Imtiatives) on June 30, 2015, as well as the transfer of L'Olympia from UMG to Vivend: Village as from January 1, 2015
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131 Canal+ Group

Year ended December 31
% Change at
% Change at constant currency
{in millions of euros) 25 2014 % Change constant currency and perimeter ()
Pay-TV in Marntand France 3383 3454 21% -21% 21%
Of which Canai+ channels {b) 1,743 1778 20% 20% 20%
Free-to-air TV in Mainland france 203 196 43 3% +33% +33%
Intematronal Pay-TV 1364 1773 +712% + 2% H7%
Poland 500 515 28% -25% 25%
Overseas 413 406 +1 7% +19% +19%
Africa 400 312 +282% +261% +200%
Vietnam 51 40 +293% +111% +111%
Studiocznal 563 533 +57% +2 3% +23%
Total Revenues 5513 5,456 +11% + 5% +0.2%
Income from oparations 542 618 -12 2% -12 3% -13 1%
Incame from operations margin 8% 113% -1 5pt
Charges related to equity-settled share based B3 )
compensation plans
Other special items excluded from income from cperations
(including transition and restructuring costs) {85} (32)
EBITA 454 583 -221% -2.2% -23.0%
EBITA margin 82% 107%
Of which Canaly channels EBITA {b) {264} (168)
Eeanal+ Grovp's Pay-TV
Individual subscnbers {in thousands)
Mainland France 5746 6062 316
International 5,495 4,986 +509
Foland 2119 2146 27
Overseas 499 494 +5
Africa 2073 1552 +521
Vietnam 804 794 +10
Total Cenal+ Group 11241 11,048 +193
Subscriptions (in thousends)
Mainland France {c} 9072 9,463 -39
Subscriptions with commutment (o) 8,459 §864 405
Canalplay subscriptions fa) 613 559 +14
International 6677 5 886 +791
Total Canal+ Group 15.745 15,349 +400
Manland France Pay-TV
Churn, per indwidual subscnber with commitment 14 9% 14 5% +H4p
Net ARPU, in euros per indwidual subscriber with commitment 447 440 +16%
Mainifand France Free-to-air TV's audienge ghares (i}
08 34% 33% H1pt
B17 12% 12% -
T8 10% 0 9% +0 1 pt
Total 56% 58% +0.2 pt

a Constant penmeter reflects the impact of the acquisition of Thema on October 28, 2014

b Relates to the six premium channels Canal+, Canal+ Cinéma, Canal+ Sport, Canal+ Décalé, Canal+ Family and Canal+ Sénes In 2013
and 2012, Canal+ channels’ revenue amounted to 1,832 million and €1,848 million, respectively, and its EBITA to -€130 mill:on and
-€21 million, respectively

Ingludes individual and collective subscngtions

d 9,199 thousand subscriptions with commitment (Canal+ and Canalsat) as of December 31, 2013, and 9,563 thousand as of December 31,
2012

e 335 thousand Canalplay subscripbons as of December 31, 2013, and 156 thousand as of December 31, 2012
f  Source Médiamétrie Population four years and older
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Canal+ Group's revenues amounted to €5,513 millon, up 1 1% (+0 2% at constant currency and perimeter) compared to 2014

At year-end 2015, Canal+ Group had a total of 15 7 million subscriptions, a year-on-year increase of 400,000, driven by iternational markets
The total number of individual subscribers also grew to 112 million compared to 11 million at the end of 2014, notably driven by Africa,
where, for the first time, the number of individual subscribers exceeded 2 milhon at year-end 2015

Revenues from pay-TV operations in mainland France were down 2 1% year-on-year due to fewer subscriptions International pay-TV
revenues grew significantly {+7 2%} compared to 2014, thanks to growth in the subscriber base, i particular in Africa

Advertising revenues from free-to-air channels, up 3 3% compared to 2014, benefited from the continuously growing audience of D8, which
1s once aga the leading DTT channel in France and the fifth most watched French channel with a 3 4% audience share For the population
aged 25-49 years old, DB 1s the fourth most watched French channel with a 4 3% audience share

Studiocanal's revenues grew significantly year-on-year {(+5 7%, +2 3% at constant currency), thanks to the sale of film rights for recent
box-office hits such as Paddington, Imitatien Game and Shaun the Sheep, as welf as the build-up of the TV series production business

Canal+ Group's income from operations was €542 million compared to €618 million in 2014, and EBITA was €501 million {excluding
reorganization costs) compared to €583 million 1in 2014 This change mainly resulted from increased investment in programs, as well as
NON-fecurring items

13.2 Universal Music Group (UMG)

Year ended December 31
% Change at
% Change at canstant currency
{n millions of euros} 2015 04 % Change constant currency  and penimeter (a}
Recorded music 4,113 3688 +115% +22% +24%
Phystcal sales 1410 1,417 £45% £7% 67%
Digital sales 1975 1,640 +205% +86% +H#6%
of which streaming and subscriptions 954 510 +56 2% +432% +432%
License and other 728 £31 +153% +54% +7 1%
Music publishing 756 673 +124% +30% +30%
Merchandising and other 276 232 +191% +35% +35%
Elimination of intersegment transactions (37) (36)
Total Revenues 5108 4,557 +121% +25% +2 1%
Incoma from operations 626 606 +12% 0% 06%
Income from operations’ margin 123% 133% 1apt {4pt
Charges related to equity-settled share-based
compensantion plans {5} (2)
Special ttems excluded from ancome from operations
{including integration and restrucsuring casts) {28) {39)
EBITA 593 565 +5 0% +08% +10%
EBITA margin 116% 124%
B uSIC I raphical
Europe 38% 4%
North America 2% 39%
Asia 1% 1%
Rest of the world 9% 3%
100% 100%

a  Constant perimeter reflects the impacts of the transfer of L'Olympia from UMG to Vivend: Village as from January 1, 2015
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Recorded music best sellers, by vatue (Source MusicMartt

Year ended December 31, 2015 Year ended December 31, 2014
Arust Title Artist Title
Taylor Swift 1989 Vanous Artists Frazen
Justin Bieber Purpose Taylor Swaft 1989
Sam Smith In The Lonely Hour Sam Smith In The Lonety Hour
The Weeknd Beauty Behind The Madness Anana Grande My Everything
Vanous Artists Fifty Shades Of Grey Katy Perry PAISM
The Beatles 1+ Lorde Pure Herome
Dreams Come True Dreams Come True The Best! Watashing Dorkamu  Imagine Dragons Night Visiens
Maroon 5 v 5 Seconds Of Summer 5 Seconds Gf Summer
Drake If You re Reading This it's Too Late Maroon 5 v
Helene Fischer Waeihnachten logy Azalea The New Classic

Universal Music Group’s {UMG) revenues were €5,108 million, up 2 7% at constant currency and persmeter compared to 2014 (+12 1% on an
actual basis), driven by growth across ail divisions

Recorded music revenues grew 2 4% at constant currency and penmeter thanks to growth in subscription and streaming revenues {(+43 2%)
and the recognition of legal settlement income (+£58 million), which more than offset the dechine in both digital download and physical
sales

Music publishing revenues grew 3 0% at constant currency. also driven by increased subscription and streaming revenues Merchandising
and other revenues were up 3 5% at constant currency thanks to stronger retan activity

In the United States, UMG had seven of the Top 10 albums of the year. including two of the top three with Taylor Swift's 7989 and Justin
Bieber's Purpose In the United Kingdom, UMG had nine of the Top 20 albums of the year, including the debut from the U K 's biggest
breakthrough artist of 2015, James Bay, and nine of the Top 20 singles. including Hozier's Take Me To Church In Germany, UMG arhist
Helene Fischer was the best-selling artist of the year for the third time in four years

Globally, recorded music best sellers for the year included strong carryover sales from Taylor Swift and Sam Smith, new releases from Justin
Bieber, The Weeknd, Drake, the fifty Shades of Grey soundtrack, a compilation from The Beatles, as well as the Japanese band Dreams
Come True

UMG’s income from operations was €626 million, marginally down 0 6% at constant currency and perimeter compared to 2014 {+3 2% on an
actual basis) Income from operations excluded restructuring charges as well as a legal settlement income n 2015 (+€29 million), and a
reversal of provisions in 2014

UMG'’s EBITA was €593 millien, up 1 0% at constant currency and penmeter compared to 2014 {+5 0% on an actual basis), thanks to revenue
growth, even with 2014 benefit of a reversal of provisions

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31 2015 Vivend: / 15




Friday, February 19, 2016

133 Vivendi Village

Year ended December 31,

% Change at

%Changeat  constant currency
{in milhons of euros) 2015 2014 % Change constant currency  and penmeter {a)
Vivend: Ticketing 52 51 + 6% 65% -65%
Watchever 16 76 -369% -369% -369%
MyBestPro 22 19 +144% +14 4% +14 4%
Qlympia 10 -
Radionomy - -
Total Revenues 100 % +3 5% -ﬂé -9 6%
Income from aperations 10 (34)
EBITA g (79)

a  Constant penmeter reflects the impacts of the transfer of L'Olympia from UMG to Vivend) Village as from January 1, 2015

Vivend: Village's revenues were €100 million, up 3 5% compared to 2014

Vivendl Village's income from operations, at €10 million, and EBITA, at €9 milkion, became positive in 2015 largely thanks to the
transformation plan implemented by Watchever, the subscniptron video-on-demand service m Germany

MyBestPro, which connects individuals with professionals from various business sectors, continued to record a very steady progress of its
actvities, driven in particular by JuriTravadl com, a French leading online legal content platform also providing legal information and conflict
resolution services to third parties

Vivendi Ticketing, which provides ticketing services 1n the United Kingdom, France and the United States, recorded a satisfactory year n
2015

L'Olympia was affected by the events that occurred on November 13% in Panis, which resulted in the rescheduling or cancellation of concerts
and shows

in the coming months, the group plans to open 10 CanalOlympia concert venues in Africa

On December 17, 2015, Vivend: announced the acquisition of 64 4% interest in Radionomy Group, a major global player in the digital radio
industry, which was integrated within Vivend Village With this investment, Vivendi expands its presence in content creation and
distnbution to the growing sector of digital audio, driven by a dynamic advertising market

1.3.4 Corporate

Corporate’s income from operations was a net charge of €39 million, compared to €82 million mn 2014, a €17 mullion ingrease, pnmanly dug
to the decrease in management fees, the increase in fees related to certain litigation, as well as the set-up costs for the new businesses
Moreover, recurning personnel costs were stable

Corporate’s EBITA was a net charge of €34 mullion, compared to €70 million in 2014 In addition to the items ncluded in income from
operations, this €24 millon increase in the net charge tn EBITA was notably linked to fewer positive non-recurring items {related to pensions
in 2014 and litigation 1in 2015)
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2 Treasury and capital resources

2 1 Net Cash Position and equity portfolio

Preliminary comments

s Vivend considers Net Cash Position, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant mdicator i measuring Vivendr's treasury and capital resources The
Net Cash Posttion 1s calculated as the sum of

! cash and cash equivalents as reported on the Consoldated Statement of Financial Position, corresponding to cash in banks, money
market funds, complving with the cnteria set forth in AMF position No 2011-13 and other highly quid short-term investments
wrth intial matunties of generally three months or less, as required by IAS 7 (please refer to Note 1 35 11 to the Consalidated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015/,

" cash management financial assets, included n the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position under “financial assets”,
corresponaing to financial investments which do not comply with the criteria for classtfication as cash equivalents set forth in
IAS 7, and, with respect to money market funds, the criteria set forth in AMF position No 2011-13, and

it dervative financial instruments in assets, and cash deposits backing borrowings, included 1 the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Posthon under “financial assets” less

v long-term and short-term borrowsngs and other financial habilities as reported on the Consohdated Statement of Financial Position
o Net Cash Postion should be considered 1 addition to, and not as a substitute for, other GAAP measures as presented in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position, as well as any other measures of indebtedness reported n accordance with GAAP, and Vivend: considers it to

be a refevant indicator of treasury and capital resources of the group Vivendh Management uses this mdrcator for reporting, management and
planmng purposes, as well as to comply with certamn covenants

2.1.1 Net Cash Position as of December 31, 2015

Refer to Notes ta the
Consolidated Financial ~ December 31 2015 December 31, 2014

{in millvons of euros) Statements
Cash and cash equivalents (a) 14 8,225 6845
of which Vivend: SA's money market funds 5550 4,754
Vivendr SA's term deposits, interest-beanng current accounts, and MIN 2372 1770
Cash management financial assets 14 581 -
Cash position 8,806 6,845
Derwvative financial instruments In assets 19 115 139
Cash deposits backing borrowings 12 439 -
Barrowngs and other finangial babilies 19 12,938} {2347}
of which long-term (a) {1555) {2 074}
short-term (a) {1 383) {27.3)
Borrowings and other financial items (2384} {2.208)
Net Cash Position 6422 4,637

a  Aspresented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2015, VivendI's Net Cash Position was €6,422 million {compared to €4,637 million as of December 31, 2014) This
amount included the group’s cash position of €8,806 million as of Cecember 31, 2015, of which £8,508 million was held by Vivend: SA and
invested as follows

s £5,550 mithon invested in money market funds,

e £2,638 million invested in term deposits, interest-beaning current accounts and MTN, of which €2,372 miflion 15 classified as “cash
and cash equivalents” and the remaining balance (€266 million) as “financial assets”, and

o €315 million invested in bond funds and classified as "financial assets”

As of December 31, 2015 Vivend!'s borrowings and other financial liabilities net of derivative financial instruments n assets and cash
deposits amounted to €2,384 million, compared te €2,208 million as of December 31, 2014. a €176 million increase They primanly comprised
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three Vivendi SA bonds for an aggregate amount of €1,950 million, maturing in December 2016, March 2017 and December 2019,
respectively, as well as the share repurchase program in place as of December 31, 2015{€193 million)

In addition, Vivendi SA has a €2 bitlion bank credit facility, undrawn as of December 31, 2015 On October 30, 2015, the matunty of this
credit facdity was extended for ane year, to October 31, 2020

As of February 10, 20186, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved Vivendi's Consolidated Financral Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2015, after taking 1nto accaunt {1} the cash praceeds from the sale of Activision Blizzard shares and the unwinding of the
related hedging instrument on January 13, 2016 (+€1 4 billion), (1) the payment of the second ntenm dwvidend on February 3, 2016 with
respect to fiscal year 2015 {-€1 3 billion), and (i) the repurchase of treasury shares (-€0 5 billion), Vivend:'s Net Cash Position would be
approximately €6 billion

2.1.2 Equity portfolio

As of December 31, 2015, Vivend: held a portfolio of quoted and unquoted non-controlling equity interests, maimly in Tetecom ltalia,
Activision Blizzard, Teleforica, Ubisoft and Gameloft At this date, this equity portfolio represented an aggregate market value of
approximately €6 billion (before taxes) please refer to Notes 11 and 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2015

As of February 10, 2016, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved Vivendi's Consolidated Financia! Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2015, the market value of Vivendi's portfolio of non-controlling equity interasts amounted to approximately €3 8 billion
This change included the sale of the interest in Activision Blizzard and fluctuations in stock market prices

2 2 Changes in Net Cash Position

Borrowings and

Cash and cash other financial ~ Net Cash Position

equivalents

{in millions of euros) items (a}
Net Cash Position as of December 31, 2014 6,845 {2,208} 4,637
Outflows/linflows) related to continuing operations
Operating actvities 87 - g7
Investing activities 4854 Lo 5865
Financing activities (3,564} {603} (4,167}
Foresgn cursency translation adjustments of continuing operations 3 - 3
Outflows/{inflows) related to continuing operations 1,380 408 1,788
Outflows/linflows) related 0 discontinued operations - (3} {3)
Net Cash Position as of December 31, 2015 8,225 {1,803} 6,422

a “"Other finangial items” include cash management financial assets, commitments to purchase non-controlling interests, dernvative
financial Instruments {assets and habilities} and cash deposits backing borrowings
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Prelimmary comments

s The non-GAAP measures cash flow from operations (CFFO) and cash flow from operations after interest and taxes (CFAIT) should be
considered in adohtion to, and not as substitutes for, other GAAP measures of operating and financeal performance as presented in the
Consolidated Financral Statements and the related notes or as descnbed n the Financial Report Vivend: considers these to be refevant

indicators of the group’s operating and financial performance

o In comphiance with IFRS 5, SFR and Maroc Telecom (sold in 2014), as well as GVT (sold on May 28, 2015/ have been reported as

discontinued operations In practice, cash flows from these busingsses have been reported as follows

- thetr contribution untif thesr effective sale, to each line of Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been grouped under

the ine “Cash flows from discontinued operations”, and

- their cash flow from operations {CFFO) and cash flow from operations after interest and income taxes (CFAIT) have been excluded

from Vivendr’s CFFO and CFAIT, as presented below

{in mithons of euros}
Revenues
Operating expenses excluding depreciation and amortization

Restructuning charges pard
Caontent investments, net
of which film and television nghts net at Canal+s Group
Acquisition paid
Consumption

of wiich sports nghts, net at Canal Group
Acquisition paid
Consumption

of which payments to artists and repertoire ownars net at UMG
Payments
Recoupment and ather

Neutrahzation of change in prowisions included 1n operating expenses

Other cash operating items

Other changes in net working capital

Net cash provided by/fused for) operating activities before income tax pard
Dividends received from equity affiliates and unconsolidated companies
Capital expenditures net {capex net)

Cash flow from operations (CFFQ}

Interest paid net

Other cash tems refated to financial activities

Income tax {paid)/received, net

Cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid (CFAIT)

na not applicable

Year ended December 33

2015 2014 % Change
10762 10,089 +67%
(9 429) {8 646) -31%

1,333 1,443 77%
{84y {84) 05%
157 19 xB3

{633} {604} 47%
753 713 +56%
120 109 +107%
(719} {818} +121%
815 807 +1 7%
9% 17} na
{635} {554} -14 6%
575 613 +102%
40 59 -31 4%
4n {154 +69 9%
19 {22) 459 9%
{226} {123) -83 5%
1124 1079 +4.2%
14 7 x22
{246) {243) -12%
892 843 +5 %%
{30) {36} +68 7%
106 {606) na

{1,037} 280 na
{69) [¥4] na
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23.1 Changes in cash flow from operations (CFFOQ)

tn 2015, cash flow from operations (CFFO} generated by the business segments was €892 mithon {compared to €843 million in 2014}, &
€49 mullion increase (+5 9%) This change manly reflected Universal Music Group’s favorable change {(+£142 million), notably resulting from
impreved operating performance, the receipt of a litigation settlement income in the United States (+€82 mullion) and the appreciation of the
U'S dollar {USD} and the British pound {GBP) against the euro (EUR) in 2015, partially offset by the phasing of advances received by UMG
from major digital platforms, as well as the dechne of Canal+ Group {-€59 miltion), notably related to content mnvestments [n addition,
restructunng charges (€84 million} and captal expenditures, net (€246 million) were stable

232 Cash flow from operations {CFFQ} by business segment

Year ended December 31,
(tn malhons of euros) 2015 204 % Change
Cash flow from operatiens (CFFO)
Canal+ Group 472 531 -111%
Universal Music Group 567 425 +333%
Vivend Village (10 (44} +786%
New [nitiatives (22) -
Corporate {115) {69}
Total Vivend) 892 843 +5.9%%

233 Cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid (CFAIT)

In 2015, cash flow from operations after interest and income tax paid {CFAIT) represented a net outflow of €69 million, compared to a net
€421 mdhon inflow n 2014, a €490 milhon decrease Despite the increase in CFFQ (+€49 million), this change mainly reflected the
unfavarable change n cash flow related to income taxes (-€1,317 million) partially offset by the favorable change in net cash inflows from
financial actvittes (+£712 rllton) and the decrease in interest paid, net (+€66 mullion)

Cash flow related to income taxes represented a -€1,037 million outfiow in 2015, compared to a €280 million inflow in 2014 [n 2015, they
notably included the tax instaliment paid in France with respect to fiscal year 2015 {-€233 million), income taxes paid by Vivendi SA in Brazil
related to the capital gain on the sale of GVT on May 28, 2015 (-€395 million), as well as the payment made in France on March 31, 2015 by
Vivendi SA (-€321 million), related to an ongoing litigation with tax authorities for the final assessment of the income tax payable by Vivend:
SA with respect to fiscal year 2012 (please refer to Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015)
This payment was partially offset by the receipt on January 16, 2015 by Vivendi SA of moratanium interest (+£43 millon}, related to the
refund received on December 23, 2014 with respect to the 2011 Consolidated Global Profit Tax System (+£366 million) |n addit:on, 1n 2015,
income tax paid included the 3% tax an dividends patd by Vivendi SA in April and June 2015 {-€82 million}

[n 2015, financial activities generated a net €106 million inflow, compared to a net -€606 million outflow in 2014 In 2015, they mainly
included cash inflows generated by foreign exchange nisk hedging instruments (+€86 milhonl, as well as the interest (+£26 mllion} receved
between May 6 and August 19, 2015 from the €1,948 million receivable from Altice related to the deferred payment for the sale of a
10% mnterest in Numericable-SFR in 2014, they mainly included the premum paid (€642 mullion} with respect to early redemption of bonds
in December 2014 following the sale of SFR, partially offset by a net foreign exchange gain (+£47 million) In addstion, net interest paid was
€30 mullion 11 2015, compared to €96 million in 2014

234 Reconciliation of CFAIT to net cash provided by/{used for) operating activities of continuing

operations

Year ended Decernber 31
{in mylitons of euros) 2015 2014
Cash flow from eperations after interest and income tax pad (CFAIT) {69} a
Adustments
Capital expenditures, net (capex, net) 246 243
Owidends recerved from equity affiliates (14} 7
Interest paid, net 30 96
Other cash items related to financial activities {106) 606
Net cash provided by/{used for] operating activies of continuing operations (a} 87 1,359

a@ Aspresented in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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241 Investing activities

{in malltans of euros}

Financial investments

Acquisitions of Telecom ltalia common shares
Acqusitton of Dailymotion

Acquisitions of Ubisoft shares

Acquisitions of Gameloft shares

Acquisitior: of Boulogne Studtos

Acquisition of a 64% nterest in Radionomy
Acqursition of cash management financial assets
Cash deposits backing borrowings

Other

Total financial investments

Financial divestments

Cash proceeds from the sale of GVT

Cash proceeds from the sale of the 20% interest in Numencable-SFR
Proceeds from the sale of the 4% inierest in Telefonica Brasil

Cash praceeds from the sale of the interest in TVN

Additonal pice adjustment related to the sale of SFR paid by Vivendi
Other

Total financial divestments

Devidends received from equity affiliates

Capital expenditures, net

Investing activities (a)

a  Aspresented in the Consoldated Statement of Cash Flows

242 Financing activities

{in malions of euros)

Transactions with shareowners

Distnbution to Vivendi SA's shareowners

Sales/{purchases) of Vivendi SA's treasury shares

Acquisition of SECP's non-conirolling interests

Exercise of stock opuons by executive management and employees

Capital increase subscnbed by employees as pan of the Stack Purchase Plan
Dther

Total transactions with shareowners

Transactions on borrowings and other financial habihities
Interest paid, net

Other

Total transact:ons on borrowings and other financial iabilities

Fiancing activities {a)

a As presented in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Refer to Notes io the
Consohidated Financiat
Statements

Year ended
December 31, 2015

SRS R L]

—_ =
~

SRS

(2 008}
{246)
(351}
{122)
(40)
(24)
(564)
{431}
{121)

(3,927)

4178
3896
800
273
{116)
(18)
9,013
14
{246}
4,854

Referto Notes to the
Consolidated Financial

Year ended
December 31 2015

Statements

15 (2727}
15 {492)
2 {522}
18 202
18 75
{62}
(3,5286)
5 (30}
(8)
(38)
{3.564)
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3 Outlook

Amvd the economic transition of our businesses, the group met its announced 2015 outlook and, apart from Canal+ channels’ in France, the
results reflected the good operating performances of all businesses Revenues increased 6 7% compared to 2014 (+1 4% at constant
currency ard penmeter) to €10,762 million, the operating margin amounted to 10 2% at constant currency and perimeter, and adusted net
income ncreased by 11 3% to €657 million

For Universal Music Group, Vivend: continues to see a posttive momentum in the business, driven by ongoing growth in streaming and
subscription and tempered by dectines in dewnload and physical sales, feading to a reasonable increase In results this year and enhanced
results from 2017 onwards

For Canal+ Group, Vivendi needs to stop the losses of Canal+ channels in France which could lead to a significant decline in the operating
results 1n 2015, by implementing a transformation plan with the objective, for the Canal+ channels in France, of reaching breakeven in 2018
and of achieving a level of profitability simitar to that of the best European players in the sector in the medium term

it will be proposed to the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting to be held on April 21, 2016, that an ordinary dividend of €3 per share be paid with
respect to 2015, representing @ total of €4 0 rihon distnbuted to shareholders and compnsing a €0 20 distnbution refated to the group’s
business performance and a €2 80 return to shareholders Two intenm dividends of €1 each were paid on June 29, 2015 and February 3,
2018, and the balance will be paid on April 28, 2016 {coupon detachment on Aprl 26, 2016}

In additton to these distnbutions, the group also repurchased shares amounting to €1,386 mullion {73 millian shares) as of February 17, 2016
as part of the program approved by the General Shareholders” Meeting of Apnil 17, 2015 Vivend! has committed to return an additional
€1 3 bidlion to shareholders by mid-2017 at the latest This should take the form of an ordinary dividend of €1 per share or share repurchases
depending on the overall economic environment

4 Forward-Looking Statements

Cautionary note

This Financial Report, notably in Section 3, contains forward-looking statements with respect to Vivendi's financial condition, results of
operations, business, strategy, plans and outiook of Vivendi, including the impact of certain transact:ons and the payment of dividends and
dristributions as well as share repurchases Although Vivendi believes that such forward-looking statements are based on reasanable
assumptions, such statements are not guarantees of future performance Actual results may differ matenally from the forward-looking
statements as a result of a number of nisks and uncertainties, many of which are outside Vivendi's control, including, but not himited to, the
nsks related to antitrust and other regulatery approvals, and to any other approvals which may be required in connection with certain
transactions, as well as the nsks described in the documents of the group filed by Vivendi with the Autonté des Marchés Financiers (the
“AMF") {the French secunities regulator), and i its press releases, If any, which are also avallable in Enghsh on Vivendr's website
{www vivendi com) Accordingly, readers are cautioned against relying on such forward-iooking statements These forward-looking
statements are made as of the date of this Financial Report Vivend disclaims any intention or obligation to provide, update or revise any
forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise

B Other Disclaimers

Unsponsored ADRs

Vivend does not sponsor an American Depositary Receipt {ADR] facility in respect of its shares Any ADR facihity currently in ex:stence 18
"unsponsored” and has no ties whatsoever to Vivend) Vivend disctaims any liabifity in respect of any such facihity

Translation

This Financial Report 1s an English translation of the French version of the report and 1s provided solely for the convenience of English
speaking readers This translation 1s qualified in its entirety by the French version, which 1s available on the company's website
iwww vivendi com) In the event of any inconsistencies between the French version of this Financial Report and the English translation, the
French version will prevail

* Relates to the six premum channels Canal+, Canaly Cinéma Canals Sport, Canals Sénes Canals Famdy and Canalr Décalé
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Il- Appendice to the Financial Report: Unaudited
supplementary financial data

1 Quarterly revenues, income from operations and EBITA by business segment

2015
Three monthsended  Three months ended  Three months ended  Three months ended

(1n miflions of euros} March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31
Revenuves

Canal+ Group 1,370 1,364 1,300 t 479
Unwversal Mustc Group 1,097 1214 118 1,616
Vivendt Viltage 25 26 22 27
New Intiatives - 1 17 25
Elimination of intersegment transactions - {2) - -
Total Vivend: 2492 25603 2,520 kLY
Income from operations

Canal+ Group 154 214 186 (12}
Unwversal Music Group 88 9N 99 348
Vivends Village 4 4 1 1
New Initiatives - t 19} (8)
Corporate (28) (28} {20} 125}
Tota! Vivend) 218 282 257 304
EBITA

Canal+ Group 165 223 162 {96}
Unwersal Music Group 82 89 88 334
Vivend Village 4 4 - 1
New Inmatives - n 9 (10}
Corporate {33) {17) {22) {22}
Total Vivend: 218 298 219 207

M4
Three momths ended  Three months ended  Three months ended  Three months ended

{in millions of euros) March 31 June 30 September 30, December 31
Revenues

Canak Group 1317 1,350 1,300 1489
Universal Music Group 984 1019 1,094 1460
Vivend Village 2t 25 23 27
Elminaugn of intersegment transactions (5) {5) {5) {8)
Total Vivendi 2317 2,389 2412 291
Income from operations

Canak+ Group 179 246 208 {15)
Universal Music Group 66 93 3 316
Vivend Village {20) {17} - 3
Corporate (21) (19) {15) {27}
Total Vivends 204 303 324 m
EBITA

Canal+ Group 175 245 206 {43)
Universal Music Group 56 97 121 291
Vivendr Village {20} 67 - 8
Corporate {26} (5) (17} {22}
Total Vivends 185 210 310 234
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lll - Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2015

Statutory Auditors’ report on the Consolidated Financial
Statements

To the Shareholders,

In comphiance with the assignment entrusted to us by your annual general meetings, we hereby report to you for the year ended
December 31, 2015, en

« the audit of the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Vivends,
« the justification of our assessments, and
« the specific verification required by law

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been approved by your Management Board Our role s to express an opinion on these
Consolidated Financia! Statements, based on our audit

{ Opinton on the Consohidated Financial Statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France, those standards require that we plan and perform
the aud:t to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements are free of matenal misstatement An audit
nvolves performing procedures, using sampling techniques or other methods of selection, to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements An audit also includes evaluating the appropnateness of accounting palicies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made, as well as the overall presentation of the Consohdated Financial Statements We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained (s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion

In our opimion, the Consohidated Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the assets and liabilities and of the financial position of the
group as at December 31, 2015 and of the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Un:on

fl Justification of our assessments

In accordance with the requirements of article L 823-9 of the French commercial code {Code de commerce) relating to the justification of our
assessments, we bring to your attention the following matters

« At each financial year end, your company systematically performs impairment tests on goodwill and assets with indefinite useful
Ives, and also assesses whether there 1s any indication of impairment of other tangible and intangible assets, according to the
methods described in Note 1357 to the Financral Statements We examined the methods used to perform these impairment tests,
as well as the man assumptions and estimates, and ensured that Notes 1357 and 9 to the Financial Statements provide
appropriate disclosures therean

o Note 139 1o the financial Statements describes the accounting princtples applicable to deferred tax and Note 13 8 describes the
methods used to assess and recognize provisions We venfied the comect application of these accounting principles and also
examned the assumptions undertying the positions as at December 31, 2015 We ensured that Note 6 to the Financial Statements
gives appropnate information on tax assets and liabilities and on your company’s tax positions

« Notes 138 and 23 to the Financial Statements describe the methods used te assess and recognize provisions for Iitigation We
examined the methods used within the company to identify, calculate, and determine the accounting for such hitygation We also
examined the assumptions and data underlying the estimates made by the company As stated i Note 131 to the Financial
Statements, some facts and circumstances may lead to changes 1n estimates and assumptions whech could have an impact upon the
reported amount of provisions

Our assessments were made as part of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements taken as a whole, and therefore contnbuted to the
opimon we formed which 1s expressed in the first part of this report
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it Specific venfication

As required by law we have also venfied, in accordance with professional standard applicable in France, the informatton presented in the
group’s management report

We have no matters to report as its fair presentation and its consistency with the Consolidated Financial Statements

Paris-La Défense, February 18, 2016

The statutory auditors
French oniginal signed by

KPMG Audit ERNST & YOUNG et Autres
Département de KFMG S A
Baudouin Griton Jacques Pierres
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Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Revenues
Cost of revenues
Selling, gereral and administrative expenses
Restructunng charges
Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combrnations
Other income
Other charges
Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT)
Income from equity affiliates
Interest
Income from mvestments
Other financial income
Other financial charges
Earnings from continuing operations betore provision for ncome taxes
Prowision for mcome taxes
Earmings from continuing aperations
Earnings from discontinued operations
Earnings
Of which
Earmings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners
of which earnings from continting operations atiributable to Vivend) SA shareowners
eamings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners

Non-controlling interests
of which earnings from continuing operations
earnings from discontinued operations

Earmngs from continuing operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - basic
Earnings from continuing operations attnbutable to Vivends SA shareowners per share - diluted
Earnings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivendi SA sharepwners per share - basic
Earnings from discontinued operations attnibutable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share - diluted

Earnings attnibutable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - basic
Earmings attrebutable ta Vivend SA shareowners per share - diluted

In ruthons of euros, except per share amounts, 1n euras

e e o B |

')

Friday, February 19, 2016

Year ended December 31

2015 2014
10,762 10,089
(6.555) {6.121)
{357 {3,209)

{102) (104)
(3 (92)
745 203
{45) (30)
1,231 736
(10) {18)
{30) {96)
52 3
i6 19
{13 {751)
1,185 {107
{441 {130)
745 (37
1,233 5,262
1,978 5,025
1,932 4,792
699 {290)
1,233 5,034
46 281
46 53

- 228

051 {022}
051 {022)
091 374
090 373
142 352
141 351

in comphance with IFRS 5 - Nen<current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, SFR and Maroc Telecom (sold in 2014), as well as

GVT (sold on May 28, 2015} have been reported as discontinued operations

The accompanying nates are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended December 31,
(m mullions of euros) Note 2015 2014
Eamnings 1978 5,025
Actuanal gains/[losses) related to employee defined benefit plans, net {21} (68)
Items not reclassified to profit or loss {21) {68)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 1513 178
Unreahized gains/{losses), net (371} 936
Other ympacts, net kil {94)
Items to be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss 1173 1,620
Charges and income directly recognized in equity 8 1,152 1,552
Total comprehensive income 3130 6577
Of which
Total comprehensive income attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners 3,089 6.312
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests 41 265

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

{in mtllions of euros)

ASSETS

Goodwall

Non-current content assets
Other mtangible assets
Property, plant and equtpment
Investments in equity affiliates
Non-curreat financial assets
Deferred tax assets
Non-current assets

Inventones

Current tax recevables

Current content assets

Trade accounts recevable and other
Current financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets of discontinued businesses
Current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital

Addittonal paid-in capital

Treasury shares

Retaned earnings and other
Vivendi SA shareowners' equity
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Non-current provisions

Long-term borrowings and other financial katilities

Deferred tax habilities
Other non-current habilities
Non-current iabilities

Current provisions

Short-term borrowings and other financial liabilities

Trade atcounts payable and other
Current tax payables

Liaities associated with assets of discontinued businesses

Current liabilities
Total Liabihities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Note

9
0

11
12

10
13
12
14

15

16
19

16
18
13

Frday February 19, 2016

December 31 2015

December 31, 2014

10177 9,329
2286 2,550
224 223
137 ni
3435 306
4132 6144
622 10
21,613 19,985
117 14
553 234
1088 1,135
2138 1,883
1.1 49
8225 6,845
13333 10,360
- 5393
13,333 15,753
34,946 35,738
1528 7434
5343 5,160
{702) (1)
8,687 10,013
20,854 22,606
232 382
21,086 22,988
2679 2,868
1,555 2,074
705 657
105 121
5044 5,740
363 299
1,383 273
6737 5,306
33 47
8816 5916
- 1,094
8,816 1010
13,860 12,750
34,946 35,738

The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

{m mullions of euros)

Qperating activiies
EBIT
Adjustments
Content investments, net
Gross cesh provided by operating activities before income tax paid
(Other changes In net working capital
Net cash provided by operating sctivities before income tax paid
tncome tax {paid)/receved, net
Net cash provided by oparating activities of continumng operations

Net cash provided by oparating sctivities of discontinved operations

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities
Capital expenditures
Purchases of consohdated companies, after acquired cash
Investments «n equity affiliates
Increase in financial assets
Investmants
Proceeds from sates of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from sales of consolidated companies after divested cash
Disposal of equity affiliates
Decrease in financial assets
Drwvestitures
Owidends receved from equity affiliates
Dvidends recerved fram unconsolidated companies

Net cash provided by/f{used for) investing activities of contimunng operatrons
Net cash providsd by/{usad for) investing activitias of discontinuad oparations

Net cash provided by/f{used for) investing activities

Financing activities

Net proceeds from 1ssuance of common shares in connection with Vivendi SA's share-based compensation plans

Sales/{purchases) of Vivend) SA's treasury shares

Distrbutions to Vivend SA's shareowners

Other transactions with shareowners

Dwidends paid by consoltdated companies to their non-controlling interests
Transactions with shareowners

Setuing up of long-term borrewings and increase 1n other long term financial habities
Pnincipal payment on long-term borrowings and decrease 1n ether long term financial fiabilities

Pnntipal payment on short term herowangs

Other changes 1n short term borrgwangs and other financial habilsties
Interest paid net

Dther cash items related to financial actvities

Transactions on horrowings and other financial liabilitias

Not cash provided byflused for) financing activities of continining operations
Net cash provided by/{ussd for} financing activities of discontinued operations

Net cash provided by/{used for) inancing activities

Foreign currency translation adjustments of continuing operations
Foreign currency translation adjustments of discontinued operations
Change tn cash and cash equivalents

Reclassification of discontinued operations’ cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivaients
At beginming of the period
At end of the pered

Note

20

62

18
15
15

19
19
19
18

Friday, February 19, 2016

Year ended December 31
2015 2014
1,231 36
{38 447
157 19
1,350 1202
{226) {123)
1,124 1079
{1,037) 260
87 1,359
153 224
240 3593
(247 (249)
{359) (100)
(19 {87)
(3 549) (1 057)
14,174) {1493)
1 6
4032 16929
268 .
4713 878
2014 17813
5 4
] 2
4854 16326
(262} {2.034)
4592 14292
273 197
{a92) [32)
2727 (1348)
{534) @
(46} (34)
{3,526} 1219)
8 3
2 {1670)
{126} {7 680)
6 1490
1301 {96}
106 (606}
LR 19.909)
(3.564] (11,128)
&9 (756)
{3,495) (11,884}
3 10
{8 {4
1332 6,007
48 (203)
6845 1,041
8.225 6,845

In compliance with IFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, SFR and Maroc Telecom (sold in 2014), as well as

GVT {sold on May 28, 2015) have been reported as discontinued operations

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

Year anded December 31 215

Frday February 19 2016

epnal Rotained sarmings and ether |
Commen chares ‘Addrtoal Other
Nabwoldoes | Sav | peon oo | Sewl Boaned maa | Subti | TR
{in meJions of s, esceot ruzber of thares) Netel  {in thewsands) Capitat apat s INCONMS
[BALANCE AS DF DECEMBER 31 2014 13580 TAN___ &1 ny 1255 10411 218 3 FTY
I o Vivesd: SA 2b 1351601 749 3] ] 12580 10219 11971 sy 240
| Atrbatable tr moa-contreiimg mivrests ] i) E- 57
Centriaatiom Fy/dmsiretans s Vivend] BA sharsewaery X3 3 W T s <] RN | A |
SaleApurchases) of Tassury shares 19 {702} 1y 4] )
Dwsinbution to sharsowners 19) 4 044} o) D44}
Diwactand paxd o Aprd 2. 2015 with reapect fo 2014 bscal year (1 pey shace) 11 363 12 363 12 363)
First mitwemn drerdord pand on June 25 M5 with raspect fo 2015 hecal yoar (€1 per share) {1 354) f1 3541 {1364}
Second wnterwn dwidend gaid on februsry 3, 2018 with raspect ta 2015 fiscal yoar (€1 por shars) 1318) 11 318) i1378)
Capxtnl mereate refated 1o chare-hased compensation plany 18722 -] 10 4 b2 ] n ] 27
of wheh Wvench Employes Stook Furchicse lans Lkdy 16, 2015) 18] 3914 % ] k] ]
exaresze of stock options by sxscrtrve mansgerment and srployees 10382 &8 0 e 200
Changes i Vivandi SA Rip ieterenl in ity cubaudi dhat da oot result in @ lees of contrel - (32 138 {312
0 whech aequasitan of SECP'S fon-Controding ebensty. 15§ {75} B | a7
CHANGES W EGURTY AT TRIEUTAL E!'fnﬁ'mn'ni S CHAREDWNERS (A) 1z [ ] [EG0) (] [E] WATE) | 1M |
" e m =y o) 0] Tl
Doncends paid by sublsdianes 1 non-controlling Itenests i 1 Hit
Chporges i sos-contrelfmy intsrests that do uol reanit m 0 gasaliesa) of coctral {15 {1 {154}
Acguaston of SECF's non-contrafimg interesis 15 {150} 150 (150}
CHANGES IN EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE 10 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (B] (5] ([T g
Leming 157 1578 57
wmmmmmm Bl n 1121 1152 1152
TUTAL COMPREHENSIVE INGOME iC] - ] T EIE] EE]
[ TOTAL CHANGES GVER THE PERIOD [A+B+C) %] 3 w0 [i.0) o) | Tiz1 T | i |
Attrutabis o Vvends SA sharsownert 16727 7 185 [2] %] 12 446) 1170 [ 117527 |
Attritutable to noR CONTolag riticests {1511 1 1150 {156}
[BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2075 [F 577 75 [E3) [N T [~ axy | s
Atiribytobie tv Viveadi SA shersowners 1368323 5% 530 [] 12,167 7 27 87 X050
Atrrbatelie v nen -contralieg mterssts F-o ] [il Fird 132 |
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consobdated Financial Statements
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Year ended December 31, 2014

Frday February 19, 2016

Lopltat Ratalned sarnings and othat
Common shares Addonal Other
Nunber o shares | Share pastn Tx’:’ sl | PP rehenove | Sunor | TO SRV
{nmliony of aures excapt number of shares) [ thousands] [ capita) capaal amny ncome
BALANCE AS GF DECEMBER 11, 213 1IeE 13 138] [TEEREEL] 5184 [(CE] iz | ew
Atmributetrie o Viveodi SA shareowners 1333518 768 +381 ) 1574 2561 11854] TRy 17457
Anributsble to man-costrolling loterests B - [ [ 1,573 1,573
Contributlons by/distribtions fa Vivend] TA aharecwnars GE:] ] ¥4 (X)) T — TG e |
Sslesfpuchazas) of traasury sharas [%7:] %74 %]
Allocanon of 2013 resutt 12,00) 12,004 2004 2004
Dhstribrution to shareowners (€1 per share} {1,348 (13881 (3,340
Caputsl increase ralatad to share basod compensation plans 11,891 & k) n fel:] 18y (18 m
of wivch axartis of SI0Ck OPIGHS Ly Gaciin maragaman] and amployees 11254 62 135 197 197
08 in Vivend! 2A » ownership intecast in its subaldieries that do nat resuli in  Joss of control - L] L] 1]
_mg"_'cnmczs TN EGINTY ATI'H.IBUTA_LBE TO VIVENDI SA SHARECWNERS (A) 71,957 ] BT} 3155 1582 i) T 163)
Contributions by/dISTIDULIONS 10 RON-CORICIIING MEsTED [[[5] e[ (on |
Drvrdends paxd by tubscksnes t non-cantroliing indergsts {101 ] ion
Changsa in non-contrelling kvter ests thai restlt in & gainfless) of control (1.394) - 1.4 {1.3485)
Sale of tha 53% interast i Marae Telecom g 1 3761 " 113761 11,278
81 In non-contralling Lnierests that do net resuh in v gainAtoss) of control [0)] (U] {8)
Eﬁ?ﬁ!ﬁmﬁﬁmdtm T T 505 Tasn | {iAn |
Tamngs S0 505 | 565 |
ard ingorma diractly recogrized in equity 54 1847 1562 1862
ﬁhﬁ%_ﬂ_u OMPREHENSIVE INCOME {C) (£ T Bar7 | 6577 |
TOTAL CHANGES OVER THE PERIOD AeB+T) 11397 = Az] A 155] Rin =3 713 5 |
ARbULabI8 10 Vivend: SA ShATGOWDErs 11897 i [FT] 13,1551 8647 1657 [E] 5 149
Artnbutabis ro non-contraliing miarests 11,2301 39 {1191 1191
BALANGE AS GF DECEMBER 31, 2014 L1601 TaM 5160 Up]  vzss [ naen mo] s | paa
Attributabls fo Vivendi SA ¢b. - 1,351,601 761 5160 [ 12585 10210 {157) ] 22506
b Aisutadia to Tiig i i w1 i) 82 m

The accempanying notes are an sntegral part cf the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vivend: 1s a limited liability company (société anonyme} incorporated under French law and subject to French commercial company law
including the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce) Vivendt was incorporated on December 18, 1987, for a term of 99 years expinng
on December 17, 2086, except In the event of an early dissolution or unless its term 15 extended Its registered office 15 located at 42 avenue
de Friedland - 75008 Panis (France) Vivendi is listed on Euronext Pans (Compartment A)

Vivendi 1s an integrated media and content group The company operates businesses throughout the media value chain, from talent discovery
to the creatron, production and distribution of content Canal+ Group 15 engaged n pay-TV in France, as well as in Afnica, Poland and
Vietnam lts subsidiary Studiocanal 1s a leading European player in production, sates and distribution of cinema frlms and TV senes Universal
Music Group I1s engaged m recarded music, music pubhshing and merchandising It owns more than 50 iabels covenng all music genres
Vivendl Village brings together Vivendl Ticketing {ticketing in the United Kingdom, the Umited States and France), MyBestPro {expert
counsehing), Watchever (subscription video-on-demand) and L'Olympia {the Panis-based music hall} Within New Initiatives, Dailymotion 1s
one of the biggest video-content aggregation and distnbution platforms i the world

The Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the financial and accounting situation of Vivendi and its subsidianies {the “group”) together
with interests in equity afftliates Amounts are reported in euros and all values are rounded to the nearest million

On February 10, 2016, at a meeting held at the headquarters of the company, the Management Board approved the Financial Report and the
Consohidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 They were reviewed by the Audit Commuittee at 1ts meeting held
on February 11, 2016 and the Supervisory Board at its meeting held on February 18, 2016

On April 21, 2016, the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 will be submitted for approval at Vivend:'s
Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting

Note 1 Accounting policies and valuation methods

11 Comphance with accounting standards

The 2015 Consolidated Financial Statements of Vivendi SA have been prepared in accordance with Intemationa! Financial Reporting
Standards {iFRS) as endorsed by the European Union (EU), and in accordance with IFRS published by the International Accounting Standards
Board {IASB) with mandatory application as of December 31, 2015

in addition and as a reminder, Vivend applied, from January 1, 2014, IFRIC 21 interpretation — Lewes, which clanfies IAS 37 = Prowisions,
Contingent Liabiites and Contingent Assets, and specifically addresses the accounting for a liabifity to pay a levy imposed by public
autharities on entities in accordance with laws or regulations, except for income tax and value-added taxes Thus, its application has led to
changes, where applicable, in the analysis of the obligating event triggerng recognition of the liability This interpretation, which
mandatorly applies to accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014, and retrospectively as from January 1, 2013, did not have
any matenial impact on Vivend's Financtal Statements

12 Presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
121 Consohdated Statement of Earnings

The main hne tems presented in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earmings are revenues, income from equity affiliates, interest,
provision for income taxes, eamnings from discontinued or held for sale operations, and earnings The Consolidated Statement of Eamings
presents a subtotal of Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT) equal to the difference between charges and income {excluding those
financing activities, equity affilrates, discontinued or held for sale operations, and sncome taxes)

The charges and income related to financing activities constst of interest, income from investments, as well as other financial charges and
income as defined in paragraph 1 2 3 and presented 1n Note 5

122 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities 1s calculated using the indirect method based on EBIT EBIT is adjusted for non-cash items and
changes in net working capital Net cash provided by operating activiies excludes the cash impact of financial charges and income and net
changes i working capital retated to property, plant and equipment, and intangtble assets
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Net cash used for investing activities

Net cash used for nvesting activities includes changes 1n net working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
as well as cash from investments {particularly dividends recewved from equity affiliates) It also includes any cash flows ansing from the gain
or loss of control of subsidianes

Net cash used for financing activities

Net cash used for financing actrveities includes net interest paid an borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts, as well as the
cash impact of other items refated to financing activites such as premiums from the early redemption of borrowings and the settlement of
dervative instruments It also includes cash flows from changes in ownership interests in a subsidrary that do not resuit in a loss of control
{including increases in ownership interests)

123  Operating performance of each operating segment and the group

Vivend: considers Adjusted Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBITA), income from operations, Adjusted net income {ANI), and Cash Flow
From Operations [CFFQ), non-GAAP measures, to be relevant indicators of the group’s operating and financial performance

EBITA

Vivend: considers EBITA, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the performance of its operating segments as reported in
the segment data 1t enables Vivend to compare the operating performance of operating segments regardless of whether their performance
is driven by the operating segment’s organic growth or by acquisiions To calculate EBITA, the accounting impact of the following elements
1s excluded from the icome from EBIT
* the amortization of intangibie assets acquired through business combinations,
e |mpairment losses on goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, and
+ other income and charges related to transactions with shareowners and to financial investing transactians, which include gains and
losses recognized in business combinations, capital gains or losses refated to divestitures, or the depreciation of equity affihiates and
other financial investments, as well as gams or losses incurred from the gam er loss of coatrol in a business

income from operations

Vivendi considers income from operations, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the performance of its operating
segments as reported in the segment data As defined by Vivendi, income from operations 1s calculated as EBITA, before share-based
compensation costs related to equity-settied plans, and special items due to the:r unusual nature or particular significance

Adjusted net iIncome

Vivend! considers adjusted net income, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group’s operating and financial
performance Vivend: Management uses adjusted net income because 1t provides a better llustration of the undertying performance of
continuing operations by excluding most non-recurring and non-operating items Adjusted net income includes the following items
e EBITA{*)
income from equity affiliates (*},
interest {*}, equal to Interest expense on borrowings net of interest income earned on cash and cash equivalents,
income from investments {*), including dividends and interest received from unconsolidated companies, and
taxes and non-controlling interests related to these items

It does not include the following items

e amortization of intangbles acquired through business combinations ("*} as well as impairment losses on goodwill and other
intangibles acquired threugh business combinations (*] (**),
other income and charges related to financial mvesting transactions and to transactions with shareowners (*), as defined above,
other financial charges and income (*}, equal to the profit and loss refated to the change in value of financial assets and the
termination or change in value of financial liabtlities, which primanly include changes in the fair value of derivative instruments,
premiems from the early redemption of borrowings, the early unwinding of derivative instruments, the cost of 1ssuing or cancelling
credit faciities, the cash impact of foreign exchange transactions {other than those related to operating activities, included in the
EBIT), as well as the effect of undiscounting assets and habilities, and the financial components of employee benefits {interest cost
and expected return on plan assets),

* eamings from discontinued operations (*), and
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* provisions for income taxes and adjustments attributable to non-controlling interests and non-recurnng tax items (notably the
changes in deferred tax assets pursuant to Vivendi SA's tax group and the Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems, and the reversal
of tax habilttes relating to nsks extinguished over the period)

{*} ftems as presented in the Consolidated Statement of Eamings, (**) items as reported by each aperating segment as reported in the segment data

Cash Flow From Operations {CFFO}

Vivend: considers cash flow from operations {CFFO), a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group’s operating and
financia! performance The CFFO includes net cash provided by operating activities, before income tax pad, as presented in the Statement of
Cash Flows, as well as dwidends received from equity affiliates and unconselidated companies It also includes capital expenditures, net that
relate to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

The d:fference between CFFO and net cash provided by operating activities, before sncome tax, consists of dwidends received from equity
affilates and unconsoldated companies and capital expenditures, net, which are included in net cash used for investing activities and of
income tax paid, net, which are excluded from CFFO

124 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Assets and habilities that are expected to be realized, or ntended for sale or consumption, within the entity's normal cperating cycle
(generally 12 months), are recorded as current assets or liabilittes 1f their matunty exceeds this pertod, they are recorded as non-current
assets or habihities Moreover, certain reclassifications have been made to the 2014 and 2013 Consolidated Financial Statements to conform
to the presentation of the 2015 and 2014 Consclidated Financial Statements

1.3 Principles governing the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Pursuant to IFRS principles, notably IFRS 13 — Farr Value Measurement relating to measurement and disclosures, the Consolidated Financial
Statements have been prepared on a histonical cost basts, with the exception of certain assets and Irabihties detailed below

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the financial statements of Vivend) and its subsidianes after eliminating intragroup items and
transactions Vivendi has a December 31 year-end Subsidianes that do not have a December 31 year-end prepare intenm financial
statements at that date, except when their year-end falls within the three months prior to December 31

Acguired subsidianes are included 1n the Consolidated Finaneial Statements of the group as of the date of acquisition
131 Use of estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in compliance with IFRS requires the group’s management to make certain estimates
and assumptions that they consider reasonable and realistic Although these estimates and assumptions are regularly reviewed by Vivend
Management, based in particular on past or anticipated ach:evements, facts and circumstances may tead to changes in these estimates and
assumptions which could have an impact on the reported amount of group assets, liabilities, equity or earnings

The main estimates and assumptions relate to the measurement of

* revenue estimates of provisions for returns and price guarantees {please refer to Note 1 3 4),

* provisions nisk estimates, perfarmed on an individual basts, noting that the occurrence of events during the course of procedures may
lead to a nsk reassessment at any time {please refer to Notes 1 3 8and 16,

« employee benefits assumptions are updated annuatly, such as the probability of employees remaining within the group until
retirement, expected changes tn future compensation, the discount rate and inflation rate (please refer to Notes 13 8 and 17),

s  share-based compensation assumptions are updated annually, such as the estimated term, volatiity and the estimated dividend
yield {please refer to Notes 1 3 10 and 18},

e deferred taxes estimates concerning the recognition of deferred tax assets are updated annually with factors such as expected tax
rates and future tax results of the group (please refer to Notes 1 39 and 6),

e goodwill and other intangible assets valuation methods adopted for the identification of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations (please refer to Notes 13 52),

e goodwll, intangible assets with indefimte useful lives and assets in progress assumptions are updated annually relating to
impaiment tests performed on each of the group’s cash-generating umits (CGUs), future cash flows and discount rates {please refer
toNotes 1357 and 9),

¢ UMG content assets estimates of the future performance of beneficranes who were granted advances are recognized tn the
Statement of Financial Position {please refer to Notes 13 5 3 and 10), and
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« certain financial instruments valuation method at fair value defined according to the three following classification levels (please
refertoNotes 1358,137,12, 14 and 19)
- Level 1 fair value measurement based on quoted prices 1n active markets for identical assets or habilities,
- Level 2 fair value measurement based on observable market data {other than quoted prices included within Level 1), and
- lLevel 3 farr value measurement based on valuation techmques that use mputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data

The fair value of trade accounts receivable and other, cash and cash equivalents, and trade accounts payable 15 a reasonable
approximation of fair value, due to the short maturity of these instruments

132 Principles of consolidation
A list of Vivendi’'s major subsidianies, joint ventures and associated entities 15 presented in Note 24

Consolidation

All companies in which Vivendi has a controlling interest, namely thase in which 1t has the power to govern financial and operational policies
In arder to obtain benefits from thetr operations, are fully consolidated

The Control defined by IFRS 10 15 based on the follow:ng three critera te be fulfilled simultaneously to conclude that the parent company
exercises control
» 3 parent company has power over a substdiary when the parent company has existing nights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the subsidiary, 1e, the activities that significantly affect the subsidiary's returns Power may anise from
existing or potential voting rights, or contractual arrangements Voting rights must be substantial, 1 e, they shall be exercisable at
any time without hmitation, particularly durning decision making related to significant activities The assessment of the exercise of
power depends on the nature of the subsidiary’s relevant activitres, the internal decision-making process, and the allocation of nghts
among the subsidiary’s other shareowners,
= the parent company Is exposed, or has nights, to variable returns from its invelvement with the subsidiary which may vary as a result
of the subsidiary's performance The concept of returns (s broadly defined and ncludes, among other things, dividends and other
economic benefit distnbutions, changes in the value of the investment in the subsidiary, economies of scale, and business synergies,
and
» the parent company has the ability to use its power to affect the returns Exercising power without having any impact on returns does
not qualify as control

Conschidated Financial Statements of a group are presented as if the group was a single economic entity with two categories of owners
{1} the owners of the parent company {Vivendi SA shareowners) and {1:) the owners of non-controlling interests {minonty shareholders of the
subsidiares) A non-controlhing nterest is defined as the interest in a subsid:ary that is not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent As
a result, changes to a parent company’s ownership interest in a subsidsary that do not result in a loss of contral only impact equity, as control
does not change within the economic entity Hence, in the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a conschdated entity after
January 1, 2009, Vivend: recognizes the difference between the acquisition price and the carrying value of non-controlling interests acquired
as a change in equity attnbutable to Vivend) SA shareowners Conversely, any acquisition of control achreved 1n stages or a loss of control
gives nise to profit or foss in the statement of earnings

Accounting for joint arrangements
{FRS 11 — Joint Arrangements establishes principles for financial reporting by parties to a joint arrangement

In 2 joint arrangement, parties are bound by a contractual arrangement, giving these parties joint control of the arrangement An entity that
IS & party to an arrangement shall assess whether the contractual arrangement gives all the parties or a group of the parties, control of the
arrangement collectively Once 1t has been established that all the parties or a group of the parties collectively control the arrangement, jeint
control exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties that collectively contral the
arrangement

Joint arrangements are classified into two categories

* joint operations these are jont arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rghts to the
assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement Those parties are called joint operators A jaint operator shall
recogmize 100% of wholly-owned assets/iiabilities, expenses/revenues of the joint operation, and its share of any of those items held
jointly, and

= |oint ventures these are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have nghts to the net
assets of the arrangement Those parties are called joint venturers Each joint venturer shali recognize its interest in a joint venture
as an investment, and shall account for that investment using the equity method in accordance with IAS 28 (please refer below)
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Equity accounting
Entities over which Vivend: exercises significant influence as well as joint ventures are accounted for under the equity method

Sigmficant influence 15 presumed to exist when Vivend: holds, directly or indirectly, at least 20% of the voting nights in an entity unless it can
be clearly demonstrated that Vivend does not exercise a significant influence Significant influence can be evidenced through other critenia,
such as representation on the board of directors or the entity's equivalent governing body, participation i policy-making of financial and
cperational processes, material transactions with the entity or the interchange of managerial personnel

133  Foreign currency translation

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in millions of euros The functional currency of Vivend: SA and the presentation
currency of the group 1s the euro

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transachons are mitially recorded 1 the functional currency of the entity at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction At the closing date, foreign currency monetary assets and labilities are translated into the entity's functional currency at the
exchange rate prevailing on that date All foreign currency differences are expensed, with the exception of differences resulting from
borrowings in foreign currencies which constitute a hedge of the net investment in a foreign entity These differences are allocated directly
to charges and income directly recogn:zed tn equity until the divestiture of the net investment

Financsal statements denominated in a foreign currency

Except in cases of significant exchange rate fluctuation, financial statements of subsidiaries, joint ventures or other associated entities for
which the functional currency 1s not the euro are translated into euros as follows the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 15
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the period, and the Consolidated Statement of Earnings and the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows are translated using average monthly exchange rates for the penod The resulting translation gains and losses are recorded as
foreign currency translation differences in charges and income directly recognized in equity in accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend) elected to
reverse the accumulated foreign currency translation differences against retained earnings as of January 1, 2004 These foreign currency
translation differences resulted from the transtation into euros of the financial statements of subsidianes that use foreign currencies as thetr
functional currencies Consequently, these adjustments are not applied to earnings on the subsequent divestiture of subsidiares, Joint
ventures or assoclates whose functional currency 1s not the euro

134  Revenues from operations and associated costs

Revenues from operations are recorded when 1t 15 probable that future economic benefits will be obtained by the group and when they can
be reliably measured Revenues are reported net of discounts

1341 Canal+ Group

Pay and free-to-air television

Revenues from television subscription services for terrestrial, satellite or cable pay-television platforms are recognized over the service
period, net of gratutties granted Revenues from advertising are recognized over the penod duning which the advertising commercials are
broadcast Revenues from ancillary services (such as mteractive or video-on-demand services) are recognized when the service 1s rendered
Subscriber management and acquisition costs, as well as television distnibution costs, are included 1n selling, general and administrative
expenses

Equipment rentals
[FRIC 4 - Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease, applies to equipment for which a right of use is granted Equipment lease
revenues are generally recognized on a straight-hine basis over the life of the lease agreement

Film and television programming

Theatrical revenues are recognized as the films are screened Revenues from film distribution and from video and free-to-air of pay television
licensing agreements are recognized when the films and tetevision programs are avaitable for telecast and all other conditions of sale have
been met Home video product revenues, less a provision for estimated returns (please refer to Note 1 34 3} and rebates, are recognized
upon shipment and availability of the product for retail sale Amortization of capitalized ftlm and telewision production and acquisttion costs,
theatnical print costs, home video inventory costs and television and home video marketing costs are included in costs of revenues
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1342 Umversal Music Group (UMG)

Recorded music

Revenues from the physical sale of recorded music, net of a provision for estimated returns {please refer to Note 134 3) and rebates, are
recogrized upon shipment to third parties, at the shipping point for products sold free on board (FOB} and on delvery for products sold free
on destination

Revenues from the digital sale of recorded music, for which UMG has sufficient, accurate, and relrable data from certain distnbutors, are
recognized based on their estimate at the end of the month in which those sales were made to the final customer In the absence of such
data, revenues are recognized upon notification by the distribution platform {on-line or mobile music distributor) to UMG of a sale to the final
customer

Music publishing

Revenues from third-party use of copyright on musical compositions owned or administered by UMG are recogmized when royalty statements
are received and collectability 1s assured

Costs of revenues

Costs of revenues include manufacturing and distribution costs, royalty and copynght expenses, artists’ costs, recording costs, and direct
overheads Selling, general and administrative expenses primarily include marketing and advertising expenses, selling costs, provisions for
doubtfut recevables and indirect overheads

1343 Other

Provisions for estimated returns and price guarantees are deducted from sales of products to customers through distributors The
provisions are estimated based on past sales statistics and take into account the economic environment and product sales forecast to final
customers

Selling, general and admnistrative expenses primartly include salaries and employee benefits, rent, consulting and service fees,
insurance costs, travel and entertainment expenses, administrative department costs. prowisions for recewvables and other aperating
expenses

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred

Slotting fees and cooperative advertising expenses are recorded as a reduction in revenues However, cooperative advertising at UMG
1s treated as a marketing expense and expensed when its expected benefit 1s individualized and ¢can be estimated

135 Assets

1351 Capitalized financial interest

When appropriate, Vivend! capitalizes financial interest incurred during the construction and acquisition penod of intangible assets, and
property, plant and equipment, these interests being included in the cost of qualifying assets

1352 Goodwill and business combinations

Busmness combinations from January 1, 200%

Business combinations are recorded using the acquisition method Under this method, upon the initial consolidation of an entity over which
the group has acquired exclusive control

« the dentifiable assets acquired and the Liabiltties assumed are recagnized at their fair value on the acquisition date, and
o non-cantrolling interests are measured either at fair value or at the nen-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net identifiable assets This option is available on a transaction-by-transaction basis

On the acquisition date, goodwill 1s initially measured as the difference between
(1} the fair value of the consideration transferred, plus the amount of non-controlling interests in the acquiree and, in a business
combination achieved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the previously held equity interest in the acquiree, and
{u1) the net fair value of the 1dentifiable assets and habihties assumed on the acquisition date
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The measurement of non-contralling interests at fair value results in an ncrease in goodwill up to the extent attnibutable to these interests,
thereby leading to the recogmition of a “full goodwill® The purchase price allocation shall be performed withan 12 months after the
acquisition date If goodwill 1S negative, 1t 1S recognized in the Statement of Earnings Subsequent to the acquisition date, goodwill 1S
measured at sts inshal amount less recorded accumutated impairment losses {please refer to Note 1 3 5 7 below)

In addition, the following principles are applied to business combinations

e on the acquisition date, to the extent possible, goodwill 1s allocated to each cash-generating unit likely to benefit from the business
combination,

* contingent consideration i a business combination s recorded at fair value on the acquisition date, and any subsequent adjustment
oceurring after the purchase price allocation period Is recogmzed in the Statements of Earnings,

= acquisttion-refated costs are recognized as expenses when incurred,

* n the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a subsidiary, Vivendi recognizes the difference between the acquisition
price and the carrying value of non-controlling interests acquired as a change in equity attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners, and

e goodwill 1s not amortized

Business combinations prior to January 1, 2009

Pursuant to IFRS 1, Vivend: elected not to restate business combinations that occurred prior to January 1, 2004 IFRS 3, as published by the
1ASB v March 2004, retained the acquisition method However, 1ts provisions differed from those of its revised standard n respect of the
main following items
* minonty interests were measured at their proporttonate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets as there was no option for
measurement at fair value,
« contingent consideration was recogrized in the cost of acquisition only if the payment was Iikely te occur and the amounts could be
rehiably measured,
« transaction costs that were directly attributable to the acquisition formed part of acquisition costs, and
* In the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in & subsidiary, the difference between the acquisition cost and the carrying
value of minanty interests acquired was recognized as goodwill

1353 Content assets

Canal+ Group
Film, television or sports broadcasting rights

When entering into contracts for the acquisiion of film, television or sports broadcasting nghts, the nghts acquired are classified as
contractual commitments They are recorded 1n the Statement of Financial Positron and classified as content assets as follows
e film and television broadcasting nghts are recognized at their acquisition cost when the program s available for screening and are
expensed over their broadcasting penad,
« sports broadcasting rghts are recognized at their acqwisition cost at the opening of the broadcasting perod of the related sports
season or upon the first payment and are expensed as they are broadcast, and
»  expensing of film, television or sports broadcasting nights 1s included 1n cost of revenues

Theatrical films and television rights produced or acquured to be sold to third parties

Theatnical films and television nights produced or acquired before their initial exhibition to be sold to third parties, are recorded as a content
asset at capitalized cost [mamly direct production and overhead costs) or at their acquisition cest The cost of theatrical films and television
nghts are amortized, and other related costs are expensed, pursuant to the estimated revenue method {1 e, based on the ratio of the current
peniod’s gross revenues to estimated total gross revenues from all sources on an indwidual production basis) Vivend: considers that
amortization pursuant to the estimated revenue method reflects the rate at which the entity plans to consume the future economic benefits
related to the asset

Where appropriate, estimated losses in value are provided in full against earnings for the period in which the losses are estimated, on an
individual product basis

Film and television nghts catalogs

Catalogs compnise film nghts acquired for a second television scresning, or produced or acquired film and television nights that are sold to
third parties after their first television screening {1 e, after therr first broadcast on a free terrestrial channed} They are recogmized as an asset
at their acquisition or transfer cost and amertized as groups of fiims, or individually, based respectively on the estimated revenue methed
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UMG

Music nights and catalogs include music catalogs, artists” contracts and music publishing rights, atquired through business combinations,
amortized tn selling, general and administrative expenses over a period not exceeding 15 years

Rovyalty advances to artists, songwriters, and co-pubhishers are capitahized as an asset when their current populanty and past performances
provide a reasonable basis to conclude that the prebable future recoupment of such royalty advances against earnings otherwise payable to
them 1s reasonably assured Royalty advances are recognized as an expense as subsequent royalties are earned by the artist, songwriter or
co-publisher Any portion of capitalized royalty advances not deemed to be recoverable aganst future royalties 15 expensed during the period
in which the loss becomes evident These expenses are recorded in cost of revenues

Ravalties earned by artists, songwnters, and co-publishers are recognized as an expense in the peniod during which the sale of the product
occurs, less a provision for estimated returns

1354 Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed when incurred Development expenses are capitalized when the feasibility and, in particular, profitability of the
project can reasonably be considered certain

Cost of internal use software

Direct internal and external costs incurred for the development of computer software for internal use, tncluding website development costs,
are capitalized during the application development stage Application development stage costs generally include software configuration,
coding, installation and testing Costs of significant upgrades and enhancements resulting in additional functionality are alse capitalized
These capitalized costs are amortized over 5 to 10 years Maintenance, minor upgrade, and enhancement costs are expensed as incurred

1355 Otherintangible assets

Intangible assets separately acquired are recorded at cost, and intangble assets acquired 1n connection with a business combination are
recorded at thesr fair value at the acquisition date The histonical cost model 1s applied to intangible assets after they have been recognized
Assets with an indefinite useful life are not amortized but are subject to an annual impairment test Amortization 1s accrued for assets with a
finite useful ife Useful kife 1s reviewed at the end of each reporting period

Other ntangible assets include trade names, customer bases and icenses By contrast, mustc catalogs, trade names, subscribers’ bases and
market shares generated internally are not recognized as intangible assets

1356 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at histortcal cost less any accumulated depreciation and imparrment losses Historical cost
includes the acquisition cost or production cost, costs directly attnbutable to transporting an asset to its physical location and prepanng it for
its operational use, the estimated costs relating to the demolition and the collection of property, plant and equipment, and the rehabilitation
of the physical location resulting from the icurred obligation

When property, plant and equipment (nclude significant components with different useful lives, they are recorded and amortized separately
Amortization 1s calculated using the straight-ling method based on the estimated useful fe of the assets Useful Ives of the main
components are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are as follows

* hurldings 5 to 40 years,

« equipment and machinery 3 to 8 years,

s set-top boxes 5to7 years, and

e gther 2to 10years

Assets financed by finance lease contracts are capitalized at the lower of the fair value of future lease payments and of the market value and
the related debt 15 recorded as “Borrowings and other financial liabilitres” In general, these assets are amortized on a straight-line basis
over therr estmated useful ife, corresponding to the duration applicable to property, plant and equipment from the same category
Amortization expenses on assets acquired under such leases are included in amortization expenses

After initial recognitron, the cost model 1s applied to property, plant and equipment

Vivend: has elected not to apply the option available under IFRS 1, involving the remeasurement of certain property, plant and equpment at
their far value as of January 1, 2004
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On January 1, 2004, in accordance with IFRS 1 Vivend: decided to apply IFRIC Interpretation 4 - Determining whether an amangement
contamns a lease, which marnly applies to commercral supply agreements for the Canal+ Group satethite capacity, which are commercial
service agreements that, in general, do not convey a nght to use a specific asset Contract costs under these agreements are consequently
expensed as operational costs for the pernod

1357 Assetimpairment

Each time events or changes in the economic environment indicate a nisk of impairment of goodwill, other intangible assets, property, plant
and equipment, and assets n progress, Vivend re-examines the value of these assets In addition, in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards, goodwill, other intangible assets with an indefinite useful hife, and intangible assets in progress are all subject to an
annual impairment test undertaken in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year This impairment test is performed to compare the recoverable
amount of each Cash Generating Unit (CGU) or, If necessary, groups of CGU to the carrying value of the corresponding assets {including
geodwill) A CGU 1s the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely sndependent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets The Vivend group operates through different communication businesses Each business offers
different products and services that are marketed through vanous channels CGUs are independently defined at each busmess level,
corresponding to the group operating segments Vivendi CGUs and groups of CGUs are presented i Note 9

The recoverable amount 1s determined as the tugher of (i) the value in use, or (1) the fair value {less costs to sell} as descnbed hereafter, for
each individual asset If the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of other assets or groups of assets, the
recoverable amount 15 determined for the group of assets In particular, an impairment test of goodwiil i1s performed by Vivend: for each CGU
or group of CGUs, depending on the level at which Vivend Management measures return on aperations

The value in use of each asset or group of assets 1s determined as the discounted value of future cash flows (Discounted Cash Flow method
(DCF) by ustng cash flow projections consistent with the budget of the following year and the most recent forecasts prepared by the
operating segments

Applied discount rates are determined by reference to avallable external sources of information, usually based on financial institutiens’
benchmarks, and reflect the current assessment by Vivend) of the time value of money and risks specific to each asset ar group of assets

Perpetual growth rates used for the evaluation of CGUs are those used to prepare budgets for each CGU or group of CGUs, and beyond the
penod covered, are consistent with growth rates estimated by the business by extrapolating growth rates used n the budgets, without
exceeding the long-term average growth rate for the markets in which the group operates

The fair value {less costs to selt) 1s the price that would be received from the sale of an asset or group of assets in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, less costs to sell These values are determmed on the basis of market data {stock
market prices or comparison with similar listed companies, with the value attnbuted to similar assets or companies in recent transactions)
or, in the absence of such data, on the basts of discontinued cash flows

If the recoverable amount 1s lower than the carrying value of an asset or group of assets, an impairment loss equal to the difference Is
recogmzed 1n EBIT In the case of a group of assets, this impairment loss s first recorded aganst goodwll

The impairment losses recogmized 1n respect of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (other than goodwill} may be reversed in
a later peniod 1f the recoverable amount becomes greater than the carrying value, within the fimit of impairment losses previously recognized
Impaiment losses recognized in respect of goodwill cannot be reversed at a iater date

1358 Financial assets

Financial assets consist of financial assets measured at far value and financial assets recognized at amortized cost Financial assets are
imitiafly recognized at fair value correspending, in general, to the consideration paid, which 1s best evidenced by the acquisition cost
{including associated acquisition costs, If any)

Financial assets at fair value

Financial assets at fair value include available-for-sale securities, denvative financial instruments with a positive value (please refer to
Note 13 7) and other financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss Most of these financial assets are actively traded in
organized public markets, their far value being calculated by reference to the published market price at penod end Farr valug 1S estimated
for financial assets which do not have a published market price on an active market As a last resort, when a reliable estimate of fair value
cannot be made using valuation techmgues in the absence of an active market, the group values financial assets at historical cost, less any
impairment losses

Available-for-sale secunties consist of unconsolidated interests and other secunties that cannot be classified n the other financial asset
categories descnibed below Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale secunties are recognized in charges and income directly
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recognized 1n equity until the financial asset 1s sold, collected or removed from the Statement of Financial Position m another way, or untif
there is objective evidence that the investment ts impaired, at which time the accumufated garn or loss previously reported in charges and
income drrectly recognized in equity 15 expensed in other financral charges and income

Other financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss mainly consist of assets held for trading which Vivend :ntends ta sell in
the near future (prmanly marketable secunities) Unrealized gains and losses on these assets are recognized in other financtal charges and
Income

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets at amortized cost consist of loans and recevables {primarily loans te affiliates and associates, current account advances to
equity affiliates and unconsolidated interests, cash depostts, securitized loans and receivables, and other loans and receivables, and debtors)
and held-te-maturity investments (financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed matunity} At the end of each period, these
assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method 1f there 1s objective evidence that an impairment loss has baen
incurred, the amount of this Inss, measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying value and its recoverable amount {equal
to the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s imtial effective interest rate), 15 recognized in prefit or
loss Impawrment losses may be reversed if the recoverable amount of the asset subsequently increases in the future

1359 Inventones

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value Cost comprises purchase costs, preduction costs and other supply and
packaging costs They are usually calculated using the weighted average cost method Net realizable value 1s the estumated selling price in
the normal course of business, less estmated completion costs and selling costs

13510 Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are initialty recognized at fair value, which 1s generally equal to their nominal value Prowisions for the impairment
of recevables are specifically valued in each business unit, generally using a default percentage based on the unpaid amounts during one
reference period For the group’s businesses which have an economic mode! based partly or fully on subscription {Canal+ Group), the
depreciation rate of trade account recevables 1s assessed on the basis of historical account recervables from former customers, primarily on
a statistical basis In addition, account recevables from customers subject to msolvency proceedings or customers with whom Vivends 1s
involved in litigation or a dispute are generally impaired in full

13511 Cash and cash equivalents

The “cash and cash equivalents” category, defined in accordance with IAS 7, consists of cash in banks, monetary UCITS, which satisfy AMF
position No 2011-13, and other highly liquid investments with initial matunties of generally three months or less Investments in secunties,
investments with initial maturities of more than three months without the possibility of early termination and bank accounts subject to
restrictions {blocked accounts), other than restrictions due to regulations specific to a country or activity sector (e g, exchange controls), are
not classified as cash equivalents but as financial assets Moreover, the histonical performances of the investments are moritored regularly
to confirm ther cash equivalents accounting classification

136  Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

A non-current asset or a group of assets and labilities 1s held for sale when its carrying value may be recovered principally through its
divestiture and not by its continued utthzation To meet this definition, the asset must be avaitable for iImmediate sale and the divestiture
must be highly probable These assets and habilities are recogmized as assets held for sale and 1iabilities associated with assets held for
sale, without offset The related assets recorded as assets held for sale are valued at the lowest value between the fair value {net of
divestiture fees) and the carrying value, or cost less accumnulated depreciation and impairment losses and are no longer depreciated

An operation 1s quahfied as discontinued when 1t represents a separate major Iine of business and the critena for classification as an asset
held for sale have been met or when Vivendi has sold the asset Discontinued operations are reported on a single hne of the Statement of
Earnings for the peniods reported, comprising the eamings after tax of discontinued operations until divestiture and the gain or loss after tax
on sale or farr value measurement, less costs to divest the assets and hiabities of the discontinued operations In addition, cash flows
generated by discontinued operations are reported on a separate line of the Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows for the relevant periods
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137 Financial liabilities

Long-term and short-term borrowings and other financtal Labilities include
¢ bonds and credit faciiies, as well as various other borrowings (including commercial paper and debt refated to finance leases) and
retated accrued interest,
obligations ansing out of commitments to purchase non-controlling interests,
bank overdrafts, and
the negatwve value of other dervative financial instruments Denvatives with positive values are recerded as financial assets In the
Statement of Financial Position

Borrowings

All borrowings are imtially accounted for at fair value net of transaction costs directly attributable to the borrowing Borrowings bearing
interest are subsequently valued at amortized cost, applying the effective interest method The effective interest rate 15 the internal yield
rate that discounts future cash flows over the term of the borrowing In addition, where the borrowing comprises an embedded denvative
(e g. an exchangeable bond} or an equity instrument {e g, a convertible bond), the amortized cost 1s calculated for the debt component only,
after separation of the embedded denvative or eguity instrument In the event of a change in expected future cash flows (e g, redemption
accurs earlier than init:ally expected), the amortized cost 1s adjusted against earnings to reflect the value of the new expected cash flows,
discounted at the initial effective interest rate

Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests

Vivendr has committed to purchase the non-controlling interests of some of the minonty shareowners of s fully consolidated subsidianes
These purchase commitments may be optional (e g, put options) or mandatory (e g , forward purchase contracts)

The following accounting treatment has been applied in respect of commitments made on or after January 1, 2009

e upon initial recognition, the commitment to purchase non-controlling interests 1s recognized as a financial liability for the present
value of the purchase price under the put option or forward purchase contract, mainly offset by the book value of non-controlhng
Interests and the remaining balance through equity attnibutable to Vivend SA shareowners,

» subsequent changes to the value of the commitment are recognized as a financidl liabihity through an adjustment to equity
attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners, and

» upon maturity of the commitment, if the non-controlling (nterests are not purchased, the previously recognized entries are reversed, if
the non-controlling interests are purchased, the amount recognized in financial habilities 1s reversed, offset by the cash outflow
relating to the purchase of the non-contralfing interests

Denvative financial instruments

Vivendi uses denvative finantial instruments to manage and reduce its exposure to fluctuations tn nterest rates, and farengn currency
exchange rates All instruments are either histed on organized markets or traded over-the-counter with highly-rated counterparties These
struments include interest rate and currency swaps, and forward exchange contracts All these denvative financial instruments are used for
hedging purposes

When these contracts qualify as hedges for accounting purposes, gains and losses ansing on these contracts are offset in earnings against
the gains and losses relating to the hedged item When the denvative financial instrument hedges exposures to fluctuations in the far value
of an asset or a liability recognized in the Statement of Financial Position or of a firm commitment whrch 1s not recognized in the Statement
of Financial Position, it 15 a fair value hedge The instrument 1s remeasured at farr value in earnings, with the gains or losses arnising on
remeasurement of the hedged portion of the hedged ttem offset on the same line of the Statement of Earnings, or, as part of a forecasted
transaction relating to a non-financial asset or hability, at the imibial cost of the asset or liability When the derivative financral instrument
hedges cash flows, 1t 1s a cash flow hedge The hedging instrument 1s remeasured at fair value and the portion of the gain or toss that 1s
determined to be an effective hedge i1s recognized through charges and income directly recognized in equity, whereas its ineffective portion
IS recognized 1n earmings, or, as part of a forecasted transaction on a non-financial asset or hability, they are recognized at the initial cost of
the asset or lability When the hedged item s realized, accumulated gains and losses recogrized i equity are released to the Statement of
Earnings and recorded on the same line as the hedged item When the derivative financral instrument hedges a net investment m a foreign
operation, 1t 1§ recognized in the same way as a cash flow hedge Denvative financia! mstruments which do not quahfy as a hedge for
accounting purposes are remeasured at fair value and resulting gains and losses are recognized directly in earnings, without remeasurement
of the underlying instrument

Furthermore, income and expenses relating to foreign currency instruments used to hedge highly probable budget exposures and firm
commitments contracted pursuant to the acquisition of editorial content nights {including sports, audiovisual and film nights) are recognized i
EBIT In all other cases, gains and losses ansing on the fair value remeasurement of instruments are recognized 1n other financial charges
and income
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138 Other liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when, at the end of the reporting period, Vivend: has a iegal obhgation {fegal, regulatory or contractual) or a
constructive obligation, as a result of past events, and it 1s probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and the obligation can be reliably estimated Where the effect of the time value of money 1s material,
provisions are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money |f the amount of the obligation cannot be refiably estimated, no provision is recorded and a disclosure 1S made 1n the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Employee benefit plans

In accordance with the laws and practices of each country i which it operates, Vivendi participates in, or mawntains, employee benefit plans
providing retirement pensions, post-retirement health care, life insurance and post-employment benefits to eligible employees, former
employees, retirees and such of ther beneficiaries who meet the required conditions Retirement pensions are provided for substanually all
employees through defined contnbution plans, which are integrated with local social secunity and multi-employer plans, or defined benefit
plans, which are generally managed via group pension plans The plan funding policy mplemented by the group is consistent with applicable
government funding requirements and regulations

Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution and multi-employer plans are expensed during the year
Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans may be funded by investments in various instruments such as insurance contracts or equity and debt investment
secunties, excluding Vivend: shares or debt instruments

Pension expenses and defined benefit obligations are calculated by independent actuanes using the projected umt credit method This
method 15 based on annually updated assumptions, which include the probability of employees remaining with Vivend: until retirement,
expected changes n future compensation and an appropriate discount rate for each country (n which Vivend: maintains a pension plan The
assumptions adopted in 2014 and 2015, and the means of determiming these assumptions, are presented in Note 17 A provision 1s recorded
in the Statement of Financsal Position equal to the difference between the actuanal value of the related benefits (actuanial liability) and the
fair value of any associated plan assets, and includes past service cost and actuanal gains and losses

The cost of defined benefit plans consists of three components recognized as follows

e the service cost 15 included in selling, general and administrative expenses |t comprises current service cost, past service cost
resulting from a plan amendment or a curtaitment, immediately recognized in profit and loss, and gains and losses on settlement,

» the financial component, recorded in other financial charges and income, ¢onsists of the undiscounting of the obligation, less the
expected return on plan assets determined using the discount rate retatned for the valuation of the benefit obligation, and

e the remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset), recognized in items of other comprehensive income not reclassified to
profit and loss, mainly consist of actuarial gains and losses, ¢ € , changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation and
plan assets resutting from changes 1n actuanal assumptions and expenence ad;ustments (representing the differences between the
expected effect of some actuanal assumptions applied to previous valuations and the effective impact)

Where the value of plan assets exceeds benefit obligations, a financial asset 1s recognized up to the present value of future refunds and the
expected reduction in future contributions

Some other post-employment benefits, such as Iife insurance and medical coverage (mamly i the United States) are subject to provisions
which are assessed through an actuarial calculation comparable to the method used for pension provisions

On January 1, 2004, in accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend decided to record unrecognized actuarial gains and fosses against consoldated
equity
139 Deferred taxes

Differences existing at closing between the tax base value of assets and liabiliies and their carrying value in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position give rise to temporary differences Pursuant to the hiability method, these temporary differences result in the accounting of
o deferred tax assets, when the tax base value 15 greater than the carrying value (expected future tax saving), and
e deferred tax habilities, when the tax base value 1s lower than the camying value (expected future tax expense)
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the expected tax rates for the year duning which the asset will be realized or the hability
settled, based on tax rates {and tax regulations} enacted or substantially enacted by the closing date They are reviewed at the end of each
year, tn line with any changes in applicable tax rates

Deferred tax assets are recogmzed for all deductible temporary differences, tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, insofar as it 15
probable that a taxable profit wili be available, or when a current tax hiability exists to make use of those deductible temporary differences,
tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, except where the deferred tax asset associated with the deductible temporary difference 1s
generated by initial recognitron of an asset or hability in a transaction which 1s not a business combination, and that, at the transaction date,
does not impact earnings, nor tax income or loss

For deductible temporary differences resuiting from investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
assets are recorded to the extent that it i1s probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and that a taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be ut:lized

The carrying value of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each closing date, and revalued or reduced to the extent that it 1s more or less
probable that a taxable profit will be available to allow the deferred tax asset to be utilized When assessing the probablity of a taxable
profit being avartable, account is taken, primanly, of prior years’ results, forecasted future results, non-recurning items unlikely to occur in the
future and the tax strategy As such, the assessment of the group’s ability to utilize tax losses carried forward (s to a large extent judgment-
based If the future taxable results of the group proved to differ significantly from those expected, the group would be required to increase or
decrease the carrying value of deferred tax assats with a potentially matenal impact on the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of
Earnings of the group

Deferred tax liabiities are recogmized for all taxable temporary differences, except where the deferred tax liability results from goodwall or
imitral recognition of an asset or hability in a transaction which is not a business combnation, and that, at the transaction date, does not
impact earnings, tax income or loss

For taxable temporary differences resulting from investments 1 subsicharies, jo:nt ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
liabilities are recorded except to the extent that both of the following conditions are satisfied the parent, investor or venturer is able to
contro! the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future

Current tax and deferred tax shall be charged or credited directly to equity, and not earmings, (f the tax relates to items that are credited or
charged directly to equity

1310 Share-based compensation

With the aim of aligning the interests of its executive management and employees with its sharehalders’ interests by providing them with an
additional mcentive to improve the company's performance and increase its share price on a long-term basis, Vivendi maintains several
share-based compensation plans (share purchase plans, performance share plans and bonus share plans) or other equity instruments based
on the value of the Vivendi share price {stock options}, which are settled either in equity instruments or in cash Grants under these plans are
approved by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board In additign, the definitive grant of stack options and performance shares 1s
contingent upon the achievement of spectfic performance objectives set by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board Moreover, all
granted plans are conditional upon active employment at the vesting date

tn addition, Unsversal Music Group maintained Equity Long-Term Incentive Plans Under these plans, certan key executives were awarded
equity units, which were settled n cash These equity umts were phantom stock units whose value 1s intended to reflect the value of
Universal Music Group

Please refer to Note 18 for details of the features of these plans

Share-based compensation is recognized as a personnel cost at the fair value of the equity instruments granted This expense 1s spread over
the vesting perrod, t e, three years for stock option plans and for performance share plans {two years for performance shares granted hefore
June 24, 2014), and two years for Vivend:'s bonus share plans, other than i specific cases

Vivend: use a binomial mode! to assess the fair value of such instruments This method relies on assumptions updated at the valuation date
such as the calculated volatility of the relevant shares, the discount rate corresponding to the nisk-free interest rate, the expected dvidend
yield, and the probability of relevant managers and employees remaining employed within the group unti the exercrse of their nghts

However, depending on whether the instruments granted are equity-settled or cash-settled, the valuation and recogmtion of the expense will
differ
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Equity-settled instrumeats
e the expected term of the option granted 1s deemed to be the mid-pomnt between the vesting date and the end of the contractual term,
s the value of the instruments granted ss estimated and fixed at grant date, and
+ the expense Is recognized with a corresponding increase in equity

Cash-settled instruments

e the expected term of the struments granted 1s deemed to be equal to one-half of the residual contractua! term of the instrument for
vested nights, and to the average of the residual vesting period at the remeasurement date and the residual contractuat term of the
instrument for unvested nghts,

« the value of instruments granted 1s imtially estimated at grant date and 1s then re-estimated at each reporting date until the payment
date and the expense s adjusted pro rata taking into account the vested rights at each such reporting date,
the expense 1s recognized as a provision, ang
moreover, as plans settled in cash are pnmanly denominated in US dollars, the value fluctuates based on the EUR/USD exchange
rate

Share-based compensation cost s allocated to each operating segment, pro rata to the number of equity instruments or equivalent
instruments granted to their managers and employees

The dilutive effect of stock eptiens and performance shares settled in equity through the ssuance of Vivends shares which are in the process
of vesting 1s reflected in the calculation of diluted earnings per share

In accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend elected to retrospectively apply IFRS 2 as of January 1, 2004 Consequently, all share-based
compensation plans for which nghts remaimned to be vested as of January 1, 2004 were accounted for In accordance with IFRS 2

14 Related parties

Group-related parties are those companies over which the group exercises exclusive control, jomt control or sigmficant influence,
sharehelders exercising joint control over group joint ventures, non-controlling terests exercising significant influence over group
subsidiaries, corporate officers, group management and directors and companies over which the latter exercise exclusive control, joint
control, or significant influence

The transactions realized with subsidiaries over which the group exercises control are not included in the intersegment operations {a list of
the group’s major consolidated entities 15 presented in Note 24) Moreover, commercial refationships among subsidiaries of the group,
aggregated n operating segments. are conducted on an arm’s-length basis on terms and conditions similar to those which would be offered
by third parties The operating costs of Vivend! SA's headguarters, after the altocation of a portion of these costs to each of the group’s
businesses, are included in the Corporate operating segment

15 Contractual obligations and contingent assets and liabilities

Once a year, Vivendi and its subsidianies prepare detailed reports on all matenal contractual obligations, commercral and financial
commitments and contingent obligations, for which they ate jointly and severally liable These detailed reports are updated by the relevant
departments and reviewed by senior management on a regular basis To ensure completeness, accuracy and consistency of these reports,
some dedicated mternal control procedures are camed out, including (but not limited to) the review of
= mnutes of meetings of the shareholders, Management Board, Supervisory Board and committees of the Supervisory Board in respect
of matters such as contracts, littgation, and authonzation of asset acquisitions or divestitures,
s pledges and guarantees with banks and financial institutions,
+ pending litigation, claims (in dispute) and environmental matters as weli as related assessments for unrecorded contingencies with
tnternal and/or external legal counsels,
e tax examiner's reports and, if applicable, notices of reassessments and tax expense analyses for prior years,
s insurance coverage for unrecorded contingencies with the risk management department and insurance agents and brokers with
whom the group contracied,
related-party transactions for guarantees and other given or received commitments, and more generally
major contracts and agreements
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16 New IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations that have been published but are not yet effective

Among IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations 1ssued by the IASB/IFRS IC as of the date of approval of these Consolidated Financial
Statements, but which are not yet effective, and for which Vivend: has not elected for an earlier application, the main standards which may
have an impact on Vivend: are the following

+ The amendments to I1AS 38 — Intangible Assets, related to clanification of acceptable methods of depregiation and amortization,
which apply mandatonly from January 1, 2016 and endorsed n the EU) Vivendi expects no significant impact dernving from the
application of these amendments Indeed, within its film production and telewision nghts actvities, Vivendi considers that the
amortizatron method based on revenue generated by these activities {according to the estimated revenue method described 1n Note
1353) 1s appropriate because revenue 15 hughly correlated with the consumption of the economic benefits embodied n the
intangtble assets

* |FRS 15— Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which applies mandatonly from January 1, 2018, and 1s still to be endorsed in the
EU Vivend: 1s currently assessing the potential impact on the Statement of Earnings, the aggregate comprehensive income, the
Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Cash Flows, and the content of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
in applying this standard
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Note 2 Major changes in the consolidation scope and the equity portfolio

2.1 Acquisition of a 90% interest in Dailymaotion

On June 30, 2015, Vivendi completed the acquisition of an B0% interest (n Daitymotion from Orange for a cash censideration of €217 million,
based on a full enterprise value of €265 million Limited representations and warranties, customary for this type of transaction, were granted
by Orange

On July 30, 2015, Vivendi purchased an additional 10% interest in Dailymotion from Orange for a cash consideration of €28 7 million n
addition, Orange was granted a put option on its remaining 10% interest, exercisable within two months follewing the General Shareholders’
Meeting held to approve Daillymotion’s Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2016 At the end of this penod, Vivend: will
have a call aption, exercisable within two months

As from June 30, 2015, Vivend has consolidated Dailymotion under the full goodwill method and performed a preliminary allocation of the
purchase price for 100% of Dailymotion The allocation of the purchase price will be finalized within the 12-month peried following the
acquisition date, as requred by accounting standards The provisional goodwill amounted to €262 million The finat amount of goodwill may
differ from the amount intially recorded

22 Acquisition of an interest in Telecom Italia

On June 24, 2015, Vivend: announced that 1t had become the largest shareholder of Telecom Italia, holding 14 9% of Telecom italia common
shares As of December 31, 2015, Vivend: held 21 4% of Telecom Italia common shares and 14 8% of the diluted capital, pursuant ta the
following transactions

e on June 24, 2015, pursuant to the agreement entered inte with Telefonica for the sale of GVT, Vivend: swapped a 4 5% interest in
Telefonica Brasil with Telefonica in exchange for a block of 1,110 shares, representing 8 24% of Telecom ltalia common shares,

» between June 10 and June 18, 2015, Vivend acquired 1 90% of Telecom Itahia common shares directly on the stock market
{256 million shares} and, on June 22, 2015, Vivendr acqu:red a block of 642 million shares representing 4 76% of Telecom ltaha
commeon shares from a financial :nstitution, and

¢ during the second half of 2015, Vivend: acquired 880 mifiion Telecom Italia common shares drrectly on the stock market

On June 22, 2015, Vivendi entered into a hedge transaction involving 5 6% of Telecom ltalia common shares, through a three-year
zero-premium collar {consisting of a put option acquired by Vivend) and a call option sold by Vivendi} On June 30, 2015, to benefit from
favorable market conditions, Vivend unwound this collar 1n cash and entered into a three-month cash-settled swap on 4 7% of Telecom
Italia common shares, pursuant to which Vivendi would have to pay the positive difference between the Telecom [talia stock market price
and the share price at the unwinding of the collar, )f applicable At the end of August 2015, Yivend: unwound this swap for a net payment of
approximately €26 million given the evolution of the Telecom ltalia stock market price

Accounting for the investment in Telecom ltalia

On December 15, 2015, Telecom ltahia's Extraordinary General Shareholders’ Meeting appointed Mr Arnaud de Puyfontaine, chairman of
Vivendi’s Management Board, as well as Mr Hervé Philippe and Mr Stéphane Roussel, members of Vivendi's Management Board, as
members of Telecom ltalia’s Board of Directors As from that date, Vivend! has the power to participate the financial and operating pohicy
decrsions of Telecom Italia, according to IAS 28, and, consequently, it considers exercising a significant mfluence over Telecom italia

e Between June 24 and December 14, 2015, Vivendr's investment n Telecom Itahia was accounted for as “available-for-sale
securities”, revalued at the stock market price and the change n value was recogmzed as “charges and income directly recognized 1n
equity”, in accordance with 1AS 39

e As from December 15, 2015, the interest in Telecom italia has been accounted for under the equity method, in accordance with
IAS 28 On that date, this interest was revalued at the stock market price and the change in value was a gain of £30 milhon recycled
to the Statement of Earnings, as “Other income”

¢ As of December 31, 2015, Vivend: held 2,888 million (21 4%] Telecom ltalia common shares (14 8% of the diluted capital), valued at
€3,319 milhon given the share purchases since December 15 2015 This amount included €2,008 million paid tn cash The average
purchase price amounted to €1 14 per share The market value of ths interest amounted to €3,393 million

e As of February 10, 2016, the date of Vivendi's Management Board that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2015 Telecom ltahia’s Consohdated Financial Statements were not publicly reported, which prevented Vivendi i
2015 to meet the requirements set forth in IFAS 12 regarding the financial information refated to Telecom Italia In 2016, Vivend: will
rely on Telecom Italia’s public financial information to account for its (nterest in Telecom Italia under the equity method
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23 Divestment of Telefonica Brasil and entry into Telefonica’s share capital

On July 29, 2015, Vivend: sold a 40% interest wn Telefonica Brasil on the stock market, for a consideration of US$877 million
(1e, €800 mdlion} This transaction was carried out after the preferred shares were converted into Amenican Depositary Receipts {ADR)

On July 29, 2015, Vivend) entered into an agreement with Telefonica to swap a 35% Interest n Telefonica Brasil (n exchange for a
095% interest in Teleforuca (46 million shares) After obtaiming the approval of the Brazilian competiion authonty (CADE}, this swap
transaction was cempleted on September 16, 2015, and the value of the interest amounted to €538 mullion as of this date In December
2015, Vivend) recewed 1 4 miihon additional Telefonica shares with respect to the dividend in shares, representing a value of €16 million

As of Decemhber 31, 2015, Vivend: hetd 47 4 million Telefonica shares {a 0 95% interest) This interest was accounted for as "available-for-
sale securities™ in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Financial Posstion and, 1in accordance with AS 39, 15 revalued at the stock market
price at each reporting date, as the unreahized capital gains or losses are directly recogmzed in equity On that date, the interest in Telefonica
was valued at €485 milfion, representing an unreahzed capital loss of €70 million

24 Acquisition of interests in Ubisoft and Gameloft

Ubisoft

As of December 31 2015, Vivendi held 15 7 million Ubisoft Entertainment (“Ubisoft”) shares, 1 e, 13 98% of the share capital and 12 35% of
the vating rights, representing acquisitions on the stock market for £351 million

On QOctober 26, 2015, Vivend: made the following declaration of intent

Vivendi's acquisitions were financed using its available cash Vivendi 1s not acting in concert wath any ttird party in connectton with s
investments in Ubisoft and has not entered into a temporary sale agreement for Ubisoft shares or voting nghts It does not hold instruments
and 1s not a party to agreements such as those referred to in paragraphs 4° and 4° bis of Article L 233-9 of the French Commercial Code
(Code de commerce)

The group contemplates continuing the acquisition of shares depending on market conditions These acquisitions were not specifically
designed as a preparatory step for a plan to takeover Ubisoft, nonetheless, over the six coming months, Vivendi cannot rule out the
possibibty of considering such a ptan Vivend: plans to request, in due time, to be represented on the company’s Board of Directors

Vivend!'s investment in Ubisoft’s business sector 1s part of a strategic vision of operational convergence between, Vivend's contents and
platforms, and Ubisoft’'s productions 1n video games Since this strategy does not require any modification to Ubisoft’s legal or financial
organization, Vivendr does not contemplate implementing any of the transactions referred to 1n Article 22317, |, 6° of the AMF Réglement
Général {General Requlations)

As of December 31, 2015, this interest was accounted for as “avatilable-for-sale securities”™ in Vivend’s Conschidated Statement of Financial
Position and, in accordance with IAS 39, 1s revalued at the stock market price at each reporting date, as the unrealized capital gains or losses
are drrectly recognized in equity

As of February 10, 2016, the date of Vivendi's Management Board that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2015, Vivend held 16 7 million Ubisoft Entertainment shares, 1 e, 14 89% of the share capital and 13 15% of the voting rights

Gameloft

As of December 31, 2015, Vivend held 24 5 milion Gameloft SE {“Gameioft™) shares, 1 e, 28 65% of the share capital and 25 50% of the
voting rights, representing acquisitions on the stock market for €122 million This interest was accounted for as “available-for-sale
secunties” in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Financral Position as of December 31, 2015, in accordance with IAS 39, and 15 revalued at
the stock market price at each reporting date, as the unreahized capital gains or losses are directly recognized in equity

As of February 10, 2016, the date of Vivendi's Management Board that approved the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2015, Vivend: held 25 4 million Gameloft shares, 1&, 29 75% of the share capital and 26 49% of the voting rights At this
meeting, Vivendr's Management Board decided to submit to the Supervisory Board, at its meeting to be held on February 18, 2016, the
project of public tender offer for all Gameloft shares
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25 Vivendi's public tender offer for the shares of Société d'Edition de Canal Plus (SECP)

On May 12, 2015, Vivend announced 1ts intention to file a public tender offer {“the offer”) with the Autorité des marchés financiers {the
French securtties regulator) for the shares of SECP, 48 5% of which were owned by Canal+ Group SA, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Vivend:

The offer penods lasted from July 9 until August 12, 2015, and from August 31 untif September 11, 2015, at a price of €800 per share
{compared to the €7 60 price initially announced) Following completion of the offer, Vivend directly and indirectly held 122,982,460 SECP
shares, representing 97 G7% of the share capital and voting rights of SECP

In accordance with apphicable laws and reguiattons, Vivend: launched a squeeze-out procedure for the SECP shares not directly or indirectly
held by Vivendr On September 29, 2015, the squeeze-out for the 3,708,308 SECP shares not held by Vivend:, representing a 2 93% nterest,
was made at the same price as the tender offer price

Upon completion of these transactions, Vivendi acquired a 51 5% nterest n SECP, at a price of €8 00 per share (€522 mullion), and SECP 15
now wholty-owned, directly and indirectly, by Vivend: In accordance with IFBS standards, the difference between the acquisition price paid
and the carrying value of the acquired non-controlling interest was recorded as a deduction from equity attrbutable to Vivendi SA
shareowners for €375 million

26 Other acquisitions

Radionomy

On December 17, 2015, Vivendi purchased a 64 4% interest in Radionomy Group for a £24 million cash consideration, based on a full
enterpnise value of €40 million In addition, Vivend and the minonity shareholders were granted call options and put options, respectiveiy, on
the interest held by the minonity shareholders The call options are exercisable by Vivend: in June 2018 At the end of this pened, the
minonty shareholders will have put aptions, exercisable the following month

As from December 17, 2015, Vivendi has consolidated Radionomy under the full goodwill method The purchase price and (ts allocation will
be finalized within the 12-month period following the acquisition date, as required by accounting standards The provisional goodwill
amounted to €41 million The final amount of goodwill may differ from the amount tmtiatly recorded

Boulogne Studios
On September §, 2015, Vivend: acquired a company called Boulogne Studios for €40 million

27 Acquisition in progress of an interest in Banijay Zodiak

Vivend's project to invest in the future Banijay Zodwak group {“BZ"), which will be born out of the combination between Banijay Group and
Zodiak Media, two of the largest audiovisual production companies in Europe, (s expected to be completed before the end of the first quarter
of 2016, subject to the satisfaction of several conditions precedent In this respect, all approvals by the relevant competition authorities {and
notably the European Commission) were granted There are three components to this investment

t a €100 milhon investment to obtain a 26 2% interest in the future combined entity BZ,

1t the subscription to a €100 mithon bond {"ORAN1") redeemable in shares or cash ssued by BZ Upon matunity of ORAN1, BZ would
have the option of either redeeming the bond in cash or converting 1t inte a number of BZ shares which, in addition to the shares
already held by Vivend:, would bning Vivendi's interest in the company to a maximum of 43 9%, and

i the subscription to a €90 million bond ("ORANZ") redeemable n shares or cash (ssued by Lov-Banijay, a holding company
controlled by Financigre Lov Upon maturity of ORANZ, Lov Banijay would have the option of either redeeming the bond in cash or
converting it into a number of shares that would grve Vivend) a 26% interest in Lov Bamjay

Both bonds have a 7-year matunity

Vivendi would have the nght to appoint two representatives to BZ's Board of Directors, and would be granted certain veto and
tag-along nights

Financial Repert and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 Vivend /50




Friday, February 19, 2016

28 Sale of the 20% interest in Numericable-SFR

As a reminder, on November 27, 2014, Vivendi completed the combination between SFR and Numericable Pursuant to this transaction,
Vivendr received net cash proceeds of €13,090 mifhon, which takes mto account the €250 million final price adjustment {including an
additional €116 million paid by Vivend on May &, 2015}, as well as Vivend's €200 miilion contribution to the financing of the acquisition of
Virgin Mobile by Numenicable-SFR In addition to the cash proceeds, Vivendi received a 20% interest in the new entity Numencable-SFR as
well as an eam-out right of €750 million contingent upon Numericable-SFR's operating performance Vivendi granted specific guarantees to
Numericable-SFR which are imited i amount, and 1ssued certain undertakings to the French Competition Authority

On February 27, 2015, after review by the Management Board, Vivendi's Supervisory Board unanimously decded to accept the offer received
on February 17, 2015 from Numericable-SFR and Altice, to purchase the Numencable-SFR shares held by Vivend:, which represented 26% of
the share capital of Numencable-SFR The purchase offer was as follows

a  Repurchase by Numericable-SFR of 10% of its own shares

in accordance with the Share Repurchase Agreement signed on February 27, 2015, at Numenicable-SFR General Shareholders
Meeting held on Apnl 28, 2015, the shareholders approved the repurchase of 48,693,922 of the company’s own shares held by
Vivendi {1 e, @ 10% interest) at a purchase price of €40 per share, for an aggregate consideration of €1,948 million, paid on May 6,
2015

b Purchase by Altice of a 10% interest in Numericable-SFR

On May 6, 2015, the closing date of the share repurchase, Altice acquired 48,693,923 shares at a price of €40 per share, for an
aggregate consideration of €1,948 million, payable no later than April 7, 2018, with an early payment option for the full amount
Payment was received by Vivend on August 19, 2015 for €1,974 million

The capital gain on the sale of the 20% interest in Numercable-SFR amounted to €651 mullion (before taxes), classified as “other income™ in
EBIT

This transaction permitted Vivendi to complete its divestment of SFR under financial conditions which resulted 11 1t receving, with respect to
this minonty interest, a 20% premium over the closing price of Numericable-SFR shares on November 27, 2014 The low hguidity level of
Numericable-SFR shares made an exit under optimal conditions uncertain [n total, net proceeds received by Vivend: from the sale of SFR
amounted to approximately €17 billion, in line with the vatuation projected by Vivendi in Apnl 2014

The completion of these transactions resulted in the termination of (1) the agreements pursuant to which Vivend) was entitled to receive a
patentral earn-out payment of €750 milion and a specific guarantee given by Vivends, {1} the shareholders’ agreement including n particular
a non-compete provision relating to Canal+ Group n specific sectors and territones, and (i) discussions over a sale price adjustment of SFR
based on its level of debt at the closing date, which resulted in the payment by Vivend: of €116 million

In addition, Vivendi was informed that the tax authonties are challenging the validity of the merger completed in December 2011 between
SFR and Vivend: Telecom International (VT1) and, consequently, intend to centest the inclusion of SFR within the Vivendi tax group in respect
of fiscal year 2011 The tax authorities plan to require that SFR be carved-out from Vivendi's tax group for that fiscal year and to make a
claim against SFR for a total amount of €1,374 mullien, representing a principal tax amount of €711 milhion plus default interest and penaltres
of €663 million

As part of the agreement entered 1nto on February 27, 2015 among Vivendi, Altice and Numericable-SFR, Vivend agreed to return to SFR, (f
applicable, taxes and contributions that could be borne by SFR for fiscal year 2011 and that SFR would have already paid at that time to
Vivendi, up to a maximum amount of €711 million (including £154 million corresponding to the use by SFR of VTI's tax losses in 2011 or 2012)
covering the entire penod within which SFR belonged to the Vivend: tax group, if the 2011 merger of SFR and VTI were to be ultimately
invatidated for tax purposes Vivend: and Altice/Numericable-SFR have agreed to cooperate in order to challenge the position of the tax
authonties

Vivendi Management believes that 1t has solid tegal grounds on which to defend the inclusion of SFR within the Vivend: tax group 1n respect
of fiscal year 2011 or, failing that, 1ts consolidation by applying the Consolidated Globa! Profit Tax System in respect of such fiscal year
Therefore, Vivend believes that the agreement entered inte on February 27, 2015 between Vivend: and Altice/Numericable-SFR should not
have a matenally adverse impact on the financial pesition or hquidity of the company
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29 Sale of GVT

On May 28, 2015, pursuant to the agreements entered into on September 18, 2014, Vivend: sold 100% of GVT, its Brazihan
telecommunications subsidiary, to Telefonica for an enterprse value of €7 5 billion {based on the stock market value and foreign exchange
rates on that date) The main terms of this transaction are described below

Cash proceeds £4,178 millian {before taxes), corresponding to a contractual gross amount of £4,663 million in
cash, net of the sale price adjustments (€485 millron), including, among other things,
exceptional changes in net working capital, GVT's bank debt at the closing date, as well as
certain restatements as contractually defined by the parties

After taxes paid in Brazil {€395 million), the net cash proceeds receved by Vivend: amounted
to €3,783 miflion This amount will be further decreased by the income tax payable in France,
estimated at approximately €237 mihon, which will bring the net sale proceeds to
approximately €3 6 billion

Consideration shares 12% interest in Telefonica Brasil Pursuant to the agreements entered into with Telefonica,
Vivendi subsequently swapped a 4 5% interest in Telefonica Brasil in exchange for 8 24% of
Telecom talia common shares (please refer to Note 2 2 above)

Commitments given Representations and warranties, limited to specifically 1dentified tax matters, capped at
BRL180 million
Vivendi gave a commitment to CADE to progressively exit from Telefonica Brasit

Liquidity With respect to Vivendr's interest in Telefonica Brasii

- lock-up period until July 28, 2015, and
- tag-along nghts
Governance No specific governance nghts in Teleforica Brasil nor in Telecom [talia

Deconsolidation of GVT as from May 28, 2015

As from the third quarter of 2014, GVT had been presented in Vivendi's Consohidated Statement of Earnings, Statement of Cash Fiows and
Statement of Financial Position as a discontinued operation On May 28, 2015, Vivend) sold 100% of GVT to Telefonica and received
€4,178 million n cash {before taxes) and a 12% interest in Telefonica Brasil On that date, Vivend: deconsolidated GVT

The capital gain on the sale of GVT amounted to €1,818 miilion, before taxes amounting to €634 millien {of which €395 milhon paid 1n Brazil),
and was recorded n the Consolidated Statement of Earnings under the line “Earmings from discontinued operations™ Excluding the
discontinuation’ of amortization since the third quarter of 2014, 1n accordance with IFRS 5, the capital gain after taxes on the sale of GVT
would have amounted to €1,453 miilion

On July 29, 2015, Vivend: divested its entire 7 5% terest in Telefonica Brasil (please refer to Note 2 3 above}

210 Sale of the interest in TVN in Poland

On July 1, 2015, Canal+ Group ard ITt Group sold ther controlling interest in TVN (Poland's free-to-air TV) to Southbank Med:ia Lid, a
London-based subs:diary of Scripps Networks Interactive Inc Group

Pursuant to the terms of the transaction, N-Vision BV, which held a 52 7% controlling mterest in TVN, was acquired by Southbank Media Ltd
for an aggregate cash consideration of €584 million {1 e , €273 melion for Canak+ Group)
SouthBank Media Ltd took over the bond issued by Polish Television Halding B V {€300 millson ngminal valug)

! When an operation 15 discontinued IFRS 5 requires the discontimuation of the amortization of the operation s tangible and mtangible assets Therefore for GYT Vivend:
discontmued the amortization of tangble and imtangible assets as from the third quartar of 2014, resulting i 2 positive ympact of €269 milhion on eamings from discontmued
operations from September 1, 2014 to May 28 2015
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211 Earnings from discontinued operations

Fnday, February 19, 2016

tn compliance with [FRS 5, the line "Earnings from discontinued operations” presented i Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earnings
includes, until thewr respective sale dates, GVT (sotd on May 28, 2015), SFR (sold on November 27, 2014), Maroc Telecom group (sofd on
May 14, Z014), as well as the capital gains realized upon completion of the divestitures of these operations

(in millions of ewros}
Revenues
EBITDA
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA)
EBITA after discontinuation of amortization (a)
Earnings before interest and rncome taxes {EBIT)
Earnings before provision for income taxes
Prowision for income taxes
Earnings
Capital gain on the divestiture of GVT
Taxes paid in Brazi) related to the divestiture of GVT
Capital loss on the divestiture of Telefonica Brasil
Other
Earnings from discontinued operations

Of which attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners

non-controlling nterests

(in milhons of euros)
Revenues
EBITDA
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes {EBITA]
EBITA after discontinuation of amortization (a}
Earnings befara interest and income taxes (EBIT)
Earmings before provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Earmings
Capital gains on completed divestitures
Other
Earmings from discontinued operations

0f which attbutable to Vivend SA shareowners

non-controlling interests

na not apphcable

201% year contributions

GVT Other Total
738 . 738
292 297
138 - 138
291 . 291
289 289
195 195
{16} - {16)
179 - 179
1818 1818
(395) {395)
- {294} {294}
- {75) () {75)
1,602 {369) 1,233
1502 {369) 1233
2014 year contributions
VT SMR Maro Telecom Other Total
Group
1 765 8 981 969 1715
702 2129 530 3361
367 689 360 1416
478 1732 531 274
457 1,676 531 2664
393 1487 527 2,407
{83) {188) {120) (397)
08 1,299 307 - 2,010
na 2378 786 B4 ot 3,248
{2 - 6 4
302 3677 1193 90 5,262
302 3,663 979 a0 5,034
- 14 214 - 28

a Incomphance with IFRS 5, Vivend: discontinued the amortization of tangible and intangible assets of GVT as from September 1, 2014,
SFR as from Apnl 1, 2014 and Maroc Telecom group as from July 1, 2013

b Included the €69 million remaining impact related to the sale of an 80% nterest in SFR to Nummencable, notably the final sale price

adjustment

¢ Included the caprtal ga:n on the divestiture of 41 5 million Activision Blizzard shares on May 22, 2014
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Note 3 Segment data

31

Operating segment data

Viventh Management evaluates the performance of its business segments and allocates necessary resources to them based on certain
operating performance indicators (segment earnings and cash flow from operations) fncome from operations and EBITA reflect the earnngs
of each business segment

The operating segments presented hereunder are strictly identical to the (nformation given to Vivendr's Management Board

Vivendi's main businesses are aggregated within the following operating segments

Canal+ Group publishing and distnbution of premium and themattc pay-TV channels, as well as free-to-air channels in France,
Poland, Afnica and Vietnam, as well as production, sales and distribution of cinema films and TV series

Universal Music Group sale of recorded music (physicat and digital media), exploitat:on of music publhshing nights, as well as
artist services and merchandising

Vivendi Village Vivendi Ticketing (with See Tickets and Digitick), MyBestPro {formerly Wengo, expert counseling), Watchever
{subscription video-on-demand), L'Qlympia (the Paris-based music hall}, Radionomy {acquired on December 17, 2015), as well as
CanalOlympia {bustness in the process of being developed in Africa)

New Imtiatives Daifymotion {acquired on June 30, 2015, please refer to Note 2 1), Vivend: Contents’ businesses (created in
February 2015, bringing together notably Flab Prod and Stud:o+), Boulogne Studios, as well as Group Vivend Africa {business in the
process of being developed)

Corporate central services

Intersegment commercial operations are conducted on an arm's-length basis, on terms and conditions similar to those which would be
offered by third parties
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Main aggregates of the Statement of Earnings

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) 2015 2014
Revenues
Canak+ Group 5513 5,456
Universal Music Group 5,108 4,557
Vivend) Village 100 g5
New Intiatives 43 -
Elimmnation of Intersegment transactions (2) {20)
10,762 10,089
Income from operations
Canal+ Group 542 618
Universal Music Group 626 606
Vvend Village 10 (34)
New nitratives (18) -
Corporate (99) {82)
1,061 1,108
Restructuring charges
Canal+ Group (47 .
Unwersal Music Group (1) {50)
Vivend Village ) {44)
New Initiatives - -
Corporate {3) (10)
{102) {104}
Charges related to equity-settled share-based compensation plans
Canal+ Group {3} (3)
Universal Music Group {5) (2)
Vivends Village - ]
New Inttiatives - -
Corporate {8) (3)
(16} (9}
Other non-current operating charges and income
Canal+ Group {38) (32)
Unwversal Music Group 23 11
Vivend: Village - -
New Initiatives {2) -
Corporate 16 25
{1) 4
Adjusted earnings hefore interest and income taxes (EBITA)
Canal+ Group 454 583
Universal Music Group 593 565
Vivend Village 9 {79)
New Initiatives {20) -
Corporate {94) {70
942 999
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Reconciliation of EBIT to EBITA and to income from operations

{in millions of euros)

EBIT {a}
Adjustments

Amortization of mtangibte assets acquired through busingss combinations

Friday, February 19, 2016

Year ended December 31,

Impairment losses an intangible assets acquired through business combinations (a)

Other income {a)

Other charges (a)

EBITA

Adustments

Restructuring charges {a)

Charges retated to equity-settled share-based compensation plans
Other non-current operating charges and income

Incoma from operations

a  Asreported In the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Consolidated Statement of Financral Pesition

2015 2014
1.2 736
408 344
3 92
{745} (203
45 30
942 999
102 104
16 9
1 {4}
1,061 1,108

{tn mithans of euros) December 31, 2015

December 31, 2014

Segment assets {a)
Canal+ Group 1575 7829
Universal Music Group 9,242 8677
Vivends Village 216 154
New Iniziatives 387 -
Corporate 8,026 5,896
25,446 22,556
Sagment liabilities (b}
Canal+ Group 2610 2609
Umversal Music Group 3552 3.463
Vivendi Village 17 129
New Initiatives 50 -
Corporate 3,550 2404
9,884 8,605

a Segment assets include goodwill, content assets, other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, investments 1n equity atfiliates,
financial assets, inventories and trade accounts recewvable, and other

b Segment liabilities include provistons, other non-current habilities, and trade accounts payable and other

Additional operating segment data 1S presented in the following Notes Note 9 “Goodwill” and Note 10 “Content assets and commitments”
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Depreciations and amortizations

{in miilions of euros)

Capital expenditures, net {capex net}{a)
Canal+ Group

Unwversal Music Group

Vivend: Village

New Initiatives

Corporate

Increase in tangible and intangible assets
Canal+ Group

Universal Music Group

Vivend: Village

New Initiatives

Corporate

Depreciation of tangible assets
Canal+ Group

Universal Music Group

Vivendr Village

New Initiatives

Corporate

Amortization of intangible essets excluding those acquired through business combmations

Canal+ Group
Universal Music Group
Vivendi Village

New Inittatives
Corporate

Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations

Canat+ Group
Universal Music Group
Vivend Village

New Initiatives
Carporate

Impairment [osses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations

Canal+ Group
Universa) Music Group
Vivend: Village

New Initiatives
Corporate

Frday, February 19, 2016

Year ended December 31,

a  Relates to cash used for caprtal expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
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2015 2014
181 190
53 46
7 7
4

1 .
246 243
175 205
93 47
7 7

5 -

1 -
241 259
163 170
67 08
2 3

2 -

- 1
234 232
70 12

- 3

1 .
n 79
8 8
398 334
2 2
408 34
‘] -

2 i

- ]
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3.2 Geographic information

Revenues are broken down by customer location

Year ended December 31,
(in milhons of euros} 2015 2014
Revenues
France 4464 42% 4,482 44%
Rest of Europe Z 567 24% 2505 25%
United States 2,191 20% 1,748 17%
Rest of the world 1540 14% 1,354 14%
10,762 100% 10,089 100%
{in millions of euros) December 31, 2015 December 3t 2014
Segment assets
France 9,568 38% 117174 52%
Rest of Europe 6109 24% 2,519 11%
United States 9,078 36% 7,660 H%
Rest of the warld 691 2% 803 3%
25,446 100% 22,556 100%
Note 4 EBIT

Breakdown of revenues and cost of revenues

{in rilhons of euros}
Product sales net
Services revenues
Other

Revanues

Cost of products sofd net
Cost of service revenues
Other

Cost of revenues

Personnef costs and average employee numbers

{in mitiions of euros) Note
Salaries

Soctal secunity and other employment charges

Capitalized personnel costs

Wages and expenses

Share-based compensation plans 18
Employee benedit plans 17
Other

Personnel costs
Annual average number of full-time equivalent employees (in thousands)

Friday, February 19, 2016

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014

5269 471N
5,437 5,322

56 66

10,762 10,089

{2 658) {2 365)

{3 897) {3 748)

- ]

{6,555) (6,121}

Year ended December 31
2015 2014

1,138 1,006

310 76
13) (3)

1445 1,278

19 (8) (ah

40 10

41 42

1545 1322

166 157

a  Notably included a €19 million reversal of reserve related to the departure of a key executive from Universal Music Group {please refer

to Note 18 2}

Additional information on opesating expenses

Advertising costs amounted to €348 miliion 1n 2015 {compared to €407 mullion in 2014}
Expenses recorded in the Statement of Earnings, with respect to service contracts related to satefiite transponders amounted to €120 million

in 2015 {compared to €115 melion 1n 2014}

Net expense recorded in the Statement of Earnings, with respect to operating leases amounted to €113 mullion 1n 2015 (compared to

€104 million in 2014}
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Taxes on production

Taxes on preduction amounted to €179 million 1n 2015 {compared to €173 mullion i 2014), of which £98 millton refated to taxes on television
services (compared to €102 milhon in 2014) and £22 million related to the terntonal economic cantnbution {enchanged compared to 2014}

Other income and other charges

Year ended December 31
{tn millons of euros) 2015 2014
Caprial gain on financial investments 745 {a 194 o
Other . 9
Other income 135 203
Downside adjustment en financial investments m (17}
Other {38) {13)
Other charges (45) {30)
Net total 700 173

a Included the capital gain on the sale of the 20% interest in Numericable-SFR (€651 million, before taxes) and the reversal of the
€54 million impairment reserve related to Canal+ Group's interest in TVIN in Poland (please refer to Note 2 10}

b Included the capital gain of the sale of Universal Music Group's interest in Beats (€179 million)

Note 5 Financial charges and income

Interest
Year ended December 31,
{in mithons of euros) Note 2015 2014
(Charge)/income
Intarest expense on borrowings 19 165} {283
Interast ncome on SFA's loans na 159
Interest income on GVT's lpans 4 i3
Interest expense net of horrawings {61) (1)
Interest ncome from cash cash equivalents and investments ]| 15
Interest from continuing operations (30) {96)
Premium paid and other costs related to the early redemptions of bonds {4) {B9B) tal
{34) {794)
Other financial ncome and charges
Year ended December 31,
{in- milhons of euros) Note 015 204
Expected return on plan assets related to employee benefit plans 172 12 12
Foreign exchange gain 4 7
Other financial mcome 16 19
Premium paid and other costs related to the early redemptions of bonds {4) (898} (a1
Effect of undiscounting habilitses (b} {9) {8}
Interest cost related to employee benefit plans 172 {29) {31)
Foreign exchange loss {7 {8)
Change in value of dervative mstruments {17) -
Other U] (B}
Other financial charges (73} (751}
Net total (57} (132)

a Included net premiwm paid for €642 million related to the early redemption of bonds following completion of the sale of SFR in
November 2014

b Inaccordance with apphcable accounting standards, when the effect of the time value of money 1s matenal, assets and hiabitities are
initially recorded on the Statement of Financial Position in an amount corresponding to the present value of the expected revenues and
expenses At the end of each subsequent penod, the present value of such assets and lrabihties 1s adjusted to account for the passage
of tme As of Decernber 31, 2015 and 2014, these adustments only applied to habilities (mainly trade accounts payable and provisions)

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 Vivend: /59



Friday, February 19, 2016

Note 6 Income taxes

6.1

French Tax Group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems

Vivendi SA benefits from the French Tax Group System and considers that 1t benefited, until December 31, 2011 inclusive, from the
Consolidated Global Profit Tax System, as authorized under Article 209 qumguies of the French Tax Code Since Janeary 1, 2012, Vivend: only
benefits from the French Tax Group System

Under the French Tax Group System, Vivend: is entitied to conschidate its own tax profits and losses with the tax profits and losses
of subsidiaries that are at least 95% owned directly or indirectly by 1t, and that are located in France for 2015, this mainly apphed
to Universal Music in France and Canal+ Group

Until December 31, 2011, the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System entitled Vivend: to consolidate ts own tax profits and losses
with the tax profits and losses of subsidiaries that were at least 50% owned directly or indirectly by it, and located in France or
abroad, 1 e, other than the French companies that were at least 95% owned directly or indirectly by Vivend Activision Blizzard,
Universal Music Group, Maroc Telecom, GVT, Canal+ France and 1ts subsidiaries, as well as Société d'Edition de Canal Pius {SECP)
As a reminder, on May 19, 2008, Vivendi lodged a request with the French Ministry of Finance to renew its authonization to use the
Consolidated Globa! Profit Tax System and an authonzation was granted by an order dated March 13, 2008, for a three-year peniod
beginning with fiscal year 2009 and ending with fiscal year 2011

In addition, as a reminder, on July 6, 2011, Vivend: todged a request with the French Ministry of Finance to renew Its authonzation
to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System for a three-year period, from January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2014

The changes in French Tax Law 1n 2011 termmated the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System as of September 6, 2011 and capped
the deduction for tax losses carred forward at 60% of taxable income Stnce 2012, the deduction for tax losses carned forward has
been capped at 50% of taxable income and the deductibility of interest hmited to 85% of financial charges, net {75% as from
January 1, 2014}

The impact of the French Tax Group and Consolidated Globat Profit Tax Systems on the valuation of Vivend's tax attributes {tax losses and
tax credits carried forward) are as follows

As Vivend: considers that its entitlement to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System was effective until the end of the
authonzation granted by the French Miristry of Finance, including fiscal year ending December 31, 2011, on November 30, 2012,
Vivend: filed a request for a refund of €366 million with respect to the tax saving for fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 As this
request was denied by the tax authenties, Vivend: accrued a €366 million prowision for the associated nisk in its Financral
Statements for the year ended Becember 31, 2012 On October 6, 2014, the Admnistrative Court of Montrewll ruled in favor of
Vivendr Pursuant te this ruling, on Becember 23, 2014, Vivend: recewved a €366 mullion refund and moratorium interest of
€43 milhon, which was received on January 16, 2015 On December 2, 2014, the tax authonties appealed this ruling As a result, in
its Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, Vivendi maintained the provision related to the €366 mithon
principal refund and increased 1t by €43 million to take into account the morator:ium snterest, for a total amount of €409 million,
which remained unchanged as of December 31, 2015 (please refer to Note 6 5)

Moreover, considenng that the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System permitted tax credits to be camed forward upon the end of
the authonization on December 31, 2011, Vivend requested a refund of taxes due, under the French Tax Group System for the year
ended December 31, 2012, 1 e, €208 million, increased to €221 millon 1n 2013 at the time of the tax return filing with respect to
fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 On May 8, 2013, Vivend) received a €201 million refund related to the tax installment paid in
2012 This position was challenged by the tax authorities in the context of an audit and Vivend provisioned the associated nsk for
a principal amount of €208 million 1n 1ts Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, increased to €221 million as
of December 31, 2013 In 1ts Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014, Vivend: maintained the €221 mithon
principal refund and increased 1t by additional default interest of €11 millon, for a total amount of €232 million as of December 31,
2014, decreased to £228 millien as of December 31, 2015 after deduction of erdinary tax credits As part of this process, Vivend
made a payment of €321 million on March 31, 2015, compnising the payment of taxes for €221 million due under the French Tax
Group System for the year ended December 31, 2012, €11 millan in default interest and additional penalties of €89 million The
audit being terminated, on June 29, 2015, Vivend: submitted a claim requesting a refund of the principal tax amount, the default
interest, as well as penalties, for which no provision has been accrued, following the recommendation of the company’s advisors

In the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015, the tax results of the subsidianes within the scope of Vivendi
SA’s French Tax Group System were estimated, and as a result, the amount of tax attributes as of December 31, 2015 could not be
reliably determined Taking into account the impact of the estimated 2015 tax results and before the effects of the ongoing tax
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audits (please refer to Note 6 5) on the amount of tax attnbutes, Vivend: SA may achieve €809 million tn tax savings from tax
attributes (based on the income tax rate applicable as from January 1, 2016, 12, 34 43%)

s As of December 31, 2015, Vivend: SA valued its tax attributes under the French Tax Group System on the basis of one year's
forecasted results, taken from the following year's budget On thus basis, Vivendi may achieve tax savings from the French Tax
Group System in an amount of €84 million {based on the income tax rate applicable as from January 1, 2016, 1 e, 34 43%)

6.2 Provision for income taxes and income tax paid by geographic area

{in mulhons of euros) Year ended December 31
Chari ncome 2015 2014
Current
France {329) (44)
Rest of Europe {28) (12)
United States - 5
Rest of the world {25) (43)
{392) (94)
Deferred
France {100} {61)
Rest of Europe 34 (8
United States {30) (58)
Rest of the world 47 91
{49) (36)
Provision for income taxes {441) {130}
Income tax (paidj/collected
France {613) 327
Rest of Evrope 18) (11}
United States ]} {5)
Rest of the world (407) {a} {31)
Income tax {paid)/collected {1,037) 280

a Included taxes paid in Braz! related to the sale of GVT for €395 milion recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Earrings under the
hne “Earnings from discontinued operations”

63 Effective tax rate

Year ended December 31

(in mulions of euros except %)} 2015 2014
Earnings (before non-controlling interests) 1978 5025
Elmmnations

Income from equity affiliates 10 18
Earnings from discontinued operations [1,233) 15,262}
Prowision for income taxes 441 130
Earmings from continuing operations hefore provisien for income taxes 1,196 {89)
French statutory tax rate 3800% 3800%
Theoretical provision for income taxes based on French statutory tax rate (454) k-
Reconcihation of the theoretical and sffective pravision for incoms taxes.

Earnings tax rate differences 39 36
Impacts of the changes in tax rates {25) -
Use of tax losses x| 12
Deprectatian of tax losses {112} {176)
Changes n deferred tax assets related to Vivend) SA's French Tax Group and the Consoldated Global

Profit Tax Systems {42} 37
Adjustments 10 tax expense frem previous years B4 33
Capital gain or loss on the divestiture of or downside adjustments on financral mvestments or businesses 21 {35)
3% tax on Vivend: SA $ dindends 122} -
Other {a1) (31)
Prowision for income taxes {441} {130)
Effective tax rats 359% -146.1%
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Changes in deferred tax assets/{liabilities), net
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Year ended December 31,
{in mithons of euros} 2015 2014
Opening balance of deferred tax assats/{habilizes), net 53
Provision for income taxes {49} {53} )
Charges and income directly recarded in equity (67) 54
Business combinations - 9
Devestitures in progress or completed - {20}
Changes 1n foreign cumency translation adjustments and other {20) 10
Closing balance of deferred tax assets/{liabilities), net (83) 53

a Included 1n 2014 income/icharges) related to taxes from discontinued operations i accordance with iFRS 5, these amounts were
reclassified to the line “Earnings from discontinued operations” in the Consohidated Statement of Earnings

Components of deferred tax assets and liabilities

{in milions of euros}
Deferred tax assets
Aecognizable deferred taxes

December 31 2015

December 3t 2014

Tax attnbutes - Vevendi SA  French Tax Group System (8] {b) 809 1400
Tax attnbutes - US Tax Group {al {c} 445 419
Tax attnbutes - Other (a) 573 656
Qther 609 542
Of which non-deductible provisions 107 17
employee benefits 193 185
net working capital 136 105
Tota! gross deferred taxes 2,836 307
Deferred taxes unrecogmzed
Tax attibutes - Vevench SA  French Tax Group System (a) {b} {725) {1274)
Tax attnbutes - US Tax Group {a) {c} (445) (419}
Tax attrnbutes - Other {a) (476} (462}
QOther (168) (152)
Total deferred tax assets, unrecognized (1,814} {2,307}
Recorded deferred tax assets 710
Deferred tax liabilsties
Asset revaluations {d) (822) (484)
Qther (283) 1173
Recorded deferred tax ltabilities {705} {657)
Deferred tax assets/{liabilittes), net {83} 53

a The amounts of tax attributes, as reported n this table, were estimated at the end of the relevant fiscal years In junisdictions which are

significant to Vivend:, masnly France and the United States, tax returns are filed on May 1% and September 15" of the following year at
the latest, respectively The amounts of tax attributes reported in this table and the amounts reported to the tax authorities may
therefore differ, and If necessary, may need to be adjusted at the end of the following year in the table

Related to deferred tax assets recognizable in respect of tax attnibutes by Vivendi SA as head of the French Tax Group, representing
€809 million as of December 31, 2015 {please refer to Note 6 1), related only to tax losses, taking nto account the estimated impact
{-£507 million) of 2015 transactions (taxable income and use or expiration of tax credits) and the change 1n income tax rate in France
which decreased from 38% to 34 43% as from January 1, 2016 (-€84 milhon), but before taking into account the effects of ongoing tax
audits {please refer to Note 65) In France, tax losses can be camed forward indefinitely and Vivendi consaders that tax credits can he
camed forward for a mimmum penod of five years upon exit from the Consohdated Global Proft Tax System In this respect,
£285 million tax credits matured as of December 31, 2015

Related to deferred tax assets recognizable n respect of tax attributes by Universal Music Group, Inc in the United States as head of
the US Tax Group, representing $486 million as of December 31, 2015, taking into account the estimated impact {-§23 million} of 2015
transactions {taxable income, capital losses, and tax credits that expired, capital losses and tax credits generated, but before taking 1nto
account the final outcome of ongoing tax audits (please refer to Note 6 5) In the United States, tax losses can be carned forward for a
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period of up to 20-years and tax credits can be carried forward for a penod of up to 10-years No tax credit will mature prior to
December 31, 2022 and $16 million tax credits matured in 2015

d These tax liabilities, generated by asset revaluations following purchase allocations were terminated upon the amortization or
divestiture of the underlying asset and generated no current tax charge

6.5 Tax audits

The fiscal year ended on December 31, 2015 and pnor years are open to tax audits by the respective tax authonties in the junsdictions in
which Vivend: has or had operations Various tax authorities have proposed adjustments to the taxable income reported for prior years It 15
not possible, at this stage of the current tax audits, to accurately assess the tmpact that could result fram an unfavorable outcome of these
audits Vivendt Management believes that these tax audits should not have a matenial unfavorable impact or the finanoial positron or
liquidity of the group

Regarding Vivendi SA, in respect of the Consohidated Global Profit Tax System, the tax audit for fiscal years 2006, 2007 and 2008 is sull
engoing and, hikewse, the tax audits for fiscal years 2009 and 2010 are still ongoing Finally, the audit of Vivendi SA’s Tax Group System fer
fiscal years 2011 and 2012 began in July 2013 As of December 31, 2015, all of these tax audits were ongoing Vivend Management
believes that 1t has solid legal grounds to defend its positions for determining the taxable income for the fiscal years under audit In any
event, Vivend: has accrued a provision for the impact of the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System in 2011 (€409 million), notwithstanding
the decision of the Administrative Court of Montreuil of October 6, 2014, subject to the appeal filed by the Tax Authonities {please refer to
Note 6 1), as well as a provision for the impact in refation to the use of tax credits in 2012 {€228 million)

In respect of the US Tax Group, the fiscal years 2008, 2009 and 2010 are under audit and the final outcome has not materially impacted the
amount of tax attributes reported In Jure 2014, the US tax authonties began a tax audit for fiscal years 2011 and 2012, and in December
2014, they undertook a tax audit for fiscal year 2013 As of December 31, 2015, these audits were ongaing Vivendi Management believes
that 1t has sohid legal grounds to defend its positions for determining the taxabte income for the fiscal years under audit

Note 7 Earnings per share

Year ended December 31

2015 2014
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

Earnings (in millions of euros)

Eamings from continuing operations attnbutable 1o Vivendi SA shareowners 699 699 (290} (290)
Earmnings from discontinued operations atinbutable to Vivend SA shareowners 1,233 1233 5034 5,034
Earmings attributable to Vivend) SA shareowners 1932 1,932 4744 4,744
Number of shares (10 millions}

Weighted average number of shares outstanding (a} 1,315 1,3615 1,3458 13458
Potential dilutive effects refated to share based compensation (b) 53 - 55
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 1,315 13668 13458 13513
Earmings per share (in euros)

Earnings from continuing operaticns attnbutable to Vivend) SA sharegwners per share 051 051 (022} 022)
Eamings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share 09t 090 374 373
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share 142 141 352 351

a  Net of the average number of treasury shares 16 million shares 1n 2015, compared to 0 4 million 1n 2014 {please refer to Note 15)

b Do not :nclude accretive mstruments, which could be potentially dilutve, the overall balance of common shares in connection with
Vivend! SA’s share-based compensation plans 1s presented in Note 181
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Details of changes in equity related to other comprehensive income

Charges and income directly recognized in equity
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Unrealized gaimns/{losses)

Actuarial gains/osses) Foreign
(ther
related to employee Available-for- Hedging currency comprehensive
defined benefit plans sale instruments Total transtation
ncome
{in miltions of euros) {a) securities (b} {c} adjustments
Balance as of December 31, 2013 {85) 164 20 184 {2.011) {1.912)
Charges and income directly recognized in equity {93 812 {50} 862 706 1475
Iterns to be reclassified to profit or loss na {95) @@ 9 (86) 72 {14}
Tax effect 25 3 {2) 29 - 54
Other 7 132 132 42 18
Balance as of December 31, 2014 (146} 114 (23} 1.121 (1.191) (216}
Charges and income directiy recegrized in equity {16) 461 (63} 392 580 956
ltems to be rectassified to profit or loss na {682) (e} (1) (692} 933 i 41
Tax effect (5} {63) 1 {62) - (67}
Qther - {8) {1) (9} - {3}
Balance as of Dacember 31, 2015 {167} 852 (102) 750 322 905

na not applicable
a Please refer to Note 17
b Please refer to Note 12

¢  Please refer to Note 19

d  Related to the gain realized on the sale of the interest in Beats by UMG in August 2014

e Included -€651 million refated to the gain realized on the sale of the 20% interest 1In Numericable-SFR in May 2015 (please refer to

Note Z B)

f  Attrrbutable to the foreign currency translation EUR/BAL related to GVT, sold m May 2015 (please refer to Note 2 9)

Note 9 Goodwiill
{in miMions of euros} December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Goodwilt, gross 24 384 22622
Impatrment fosses {14 207) {13,293)
Goodwill 10177 9,329
9.1 Changes in goodwill
December 31, Impairment losses Business U:izl:::::{l" c?::?:r?c?tlrz:sllr:tg:l December 31,
14 t
{in mitlions of euros} @0 combiniations completed _adjustments and other s
Canal+ Group 4573 3 - 6 4582
Universal Music Group 4,656 3 - 513 1a) 5172
Vivend Village 100 A - 19 160
New Initiatives - - 263 (© - - 263
Total 9,329 - 310 - 538 10177
. I ovoivol ik
20t 1 14
(in mithons of euras) 3 combinatons completed _adjustments and other 2
Canal+ Group 4454 - 110 ) - (1] 4573
Universal Music Group 4,100 - 6 - 550 {a) 4,656
Vivend: Village 185 {91) te) - & 100
GVT 1676 . {1676) - -
SFR 6722 - 77 {6 799) - -
Total 17,147 {91) 193 {8.475) 555 9,329
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a Pnmanly attributable to foreign currency translation (EUR/USD) for €525 milhon 1n 2015 and €549 mifhon in 2014
b Related to the provisional goodwill attnbutable to Radionomy {please refer to Note 2 6}
¢ Included the provisional goodwil! attnbutable to Dailymotion for £262 mullion {please refer to Note 2 1)

d  Notably included goodwill attributable to Mediaserv and Thema, acquired by Canal+ Overseas on February 13, 2014 and October 28,
2014, respectively

g  Related to full impairment losses on the goodwill of Digitick and MyBestPro, formerty Wengo (€43 million and €48 million, respectively)
9.2 Goodwill impairment test

In 2015, Vivend) tested the value of goodwill allocated to its Cash-Generating Units (CGUs) or groups of CGU applying valuation methods
cansistent with previous years Vivend ensured that the recoverable amount of CGU or groups of CGU exceeded therr carrying value
(including goodwill} The recoverable amount 1s determined as the higher of the value in use determined by the discounted value of future
cash flows {(nscounted Cash Flow method (DCF) and the far value {less costs to sell), determmed on the basis of market data (stock market
prices, comparable listed companies, companson with the value attnibuted to similar assets or companies in recent transactions) For a
description of the methods used for the impairment test, please refer to Note 1357

Presentation of CGU or groups of CGUs tested

Operating Segments Cash Generating Units (CGU) CGU or groups of CGU tested
Canal+ Group Pay TV in Mainland France
Canak Overseas {a) Pay-TV and free-to-air TV in France, Poland,
nc+{Poland) Afnca and Vietnam (b}
Free-to-air TV
Studiocanal Studiocanal
Universal Music Group Recorded music
Artist services and merchandising Universal Music Group
Music publishing
Vivendi Village See Tickets See Tickets
Digitick Digitick {c)
MyBestPro MyBestPro [c}
Radignomy Radionomy {d)
L'Olympra L'Qlympia
CanalQlympia CanalQlympia
New Initigtives Daymotion Dailymation {d}
Vivend) Contents Vivend Contents
Group Vivend Afnca Group Vivendi Afnica

a Related to pay-TV in France overseas, Africa and Vietnam

b The process of ntegrating free-to-air TV operations {D8/D17 channels acquired on September 27, 2012) with pay-TV operations 1n
mainland France, as well as the development of pay-TV in Poland and Vietnam reflects the further convergence of pay-TV and free-to-arr
TV operations i countries in which Canal+ Group operates As a result, as of December 31, 2015, Vivend: performed a goodwill
impairment test related to pay-TV and free-to-air TV operations in France, Poland, Africa and Vietnam by aggregating the CGU of pay-TV
v Maintand France, Canal+ Overseas, nc+ and free-to-air TV, which corresponds to the level of monitoring the return on such
Investments

¢ Goodwill attnbutable to Digruck and MyBestPro (formerly Wengo) were fully impaired as of December 31, 2014

d  As of December 31, 2015, no goodwill tmpairment test attributable to Dailymotion and Radionomy were undertaken given that the
acquisition dates of Dailymotion and Radionomy {June 30, 2015 and December 17, 2015, respectively} were close to the closing date

During the fourth quarter of 2015, Yivend performed a goodwitl impairment test on each CGL or groups of CGU, on the basis of valuations of
recoverable amounts determined with the assistance of third-party appraisers, for pay-TV and free-to-air TV in France, Africa and Vietnam as
well as Universal Music Group and internat valuations for nc+ in Poland, Studiocanal and See Tickets As a result, Vivendi Management
concluded that, as of December 31, 2015, the recaverable amount for each CGU or groups of CGU tested exceeded their carrying value
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The value in use of each CGU or groups of CGU is determined as the discounted vatue of future cash flows by using cash flow projections
consistent with the 2016 budget and the most recent forecasts prepared by the operating segments These forecasts are prepared for each
operating segment, on the basis of financial targets as well as the following main key assumptions discount rate, perpetual growth rate and
EBITA as defined in Note 12 3, capital expendstures, the competitive and regulatory ervironments, technological devetopments and level of
commercial expenses The recoverable amount for each CGU or groups of CGU was determined based on 1ts value in use 1n accordance with

the main key assumptions set out below

Valuation Method Discount Rate (a} Perpesual Growth Rate
Operating segments CGU or groups of CGU tested 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Canak+ Group Pay TV and free to-air TV in France DCF DCF
Poland Africa and Vietam & comparables mode! (b} & comparabtes model (b} () {c) (c) {c)
Studiocanal DCF DCF 925% 975% 050% 1 00%
Uneversal Music Group Unmversal Music Group OCF & comparables model  DCF 8 comparables mode! B 50% B90% 1125% 100%
Vivend) Village See Tickets DCF DCF 11 00% 1t 50% 200% 200%

DCF Discounted Cash Flows

a The determination of recoverable amounts using a post-tax discount rate applied to post-tax cash flows provides recoverable amounts

consistent with the ones that would have been obtained using a pre-tax discount rate applied to pre-tax cash flows

b Except for ne+ in Poland comparables model in 2015 and DCFin 2014

¢ Discount rates and perpetual growth rates applied to test this group of UGT were the following

Discount rate

Perpetual growth rate

2015 2014 2015 2014

Pay-TV
Mainland France 7 56% 804% 120% 150%
France overseas 860% 904% 120% 1 50%
Poland na 975% na 300%
Africa 980% 10 04% 300% 314%
Vietnam 1030% 1088% 300% 450%

Free-to-air TV - Mamland France 826% 950% 150% 2 00%

na not applicable
Sensitivity of recoverable amounts
December 31 2015
Discount rate Perpetual growth rate Discounted cash flows

Increase in the discount rate

Decrease in the perpetual growth rate

Decrease in the discounted cash flows

Applved tn order for the recoverable amount Applied wn order for the recoverable amount 1 order for the recoverable amount
rate to be equal 1o the carrying amount rate 1o be equal to the carrying amount to be equal to the camyang amount
{n %) {in number of points) {in %} {n number of ponts} {in %)
Canal+ Group
Pay-TV and Fres to-air TV in France
Poland Africa and Vietnam {a} +H 160t (al 211 pis 17%
Stud:ocanal 925% +197pt 050% 281 pts 21%
Uneversal Music Group 350% +175pt 1175% -155p 15%
December 31 2074
Discount rate Perpetual growth rate Discounted cash flows
increase in the discount rate Decrease in the perpetual growth rate Decrease in the discounted cash flows
Applied 1n order for the recoverable amount Applied i order for the recoverable amount 1n grder for the recoverable amount
rate to be equal to the carrying amount rate 1o be equal to the carrying amount to be equal to the camyng amount
{in %) (in fummber of points) {in %} {in number of points} {in %)
Canak+ Group
Pay TV and Free-to-air TV i France
Afnica and Vietnam (a} +028pt fa} 039p 4%
nc+ 975% +6 3t pts 300% 1025 pts -49%
Studiocanal 975% +166pt 100% 257 pis 18%
Universal Music Group 890% +0 62 pt 100% 1977pt B%
a  Forapresentation of the applied rates, please refer to the table in reference ¢ above
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101 Content assets

Content assets and commitments
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Decemtber 31 2015

Accumulated

Content assets,
amortrzatron and Content assets

(in mulhons of euros) gioss impairment 10sses

Fim and television costs 6145 {5,483) 662
Sports nghts 415 - 415
Music catalogs and publishing nghts 8,756 {7.076) 1 680
Advances to arusts and repertoire owners 611 - 611
Merchandising contracts and artists servicas 27 (23) 4
Other 6 {4 2
Content assets 15,960 (12,586) 31374
Deduction of current content assets {1,102 14 {1 088}
Non-current content assets 14,858 (12,572} 2,286

December 31 2014
Accumulated
Content assets,
amortization and Content assets

{in mithons of euros) gross impaimnent losses

Film and television costs 6003 {5,244} 758
Sports nghts an 411
Music catslogs and pubhishing nghts 7,897 (6 031) 1 866
Advances to artists and repertoure owners 642 - 642
Merchandising cantracts and artists services 27 {20} 7
Content assets 14,980 {11,295} 3,685
Deduction of current content assets (1,155} 20 {1 135)
Non-current content assets 13,825 {11,275) 2,550
Changes in content assets

Year ended December 31

{in mithons of euros) 2015 2014
Opening balance 3,685 3m
Amortization of content assets excluding those acquired through business combinations {z1) {14)
Amortization of content assets acquired through business combinations {398} (334)
fmpaiment losses on content assets acquired through business combinations (2) -
Increase 2,354 233
Decrease {2 465} {2 352)
Business combinations 4 27
Changes in fareign currency translation adjustments and other n7 247
Closing balance 3314 3,685
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10.2 Contractual content commitments

Commitments given recorded in the Statement of Financial Posttion content liabilities

Frnday, February 19, 2016

Content habilities are mainly part of “Trade accounts payable and other” or part of “Other non-current llabdities” whether they are current or

non-current, as applicable

Minimum futere payments as of December 31, 2015

Total minimum future

Due in payments as of
{in mulhons of euros) Total 2016 2017-2020 After 2020 December 31, 2014
Film and television nghts {a} 196 % - - 193
Sports nghts 455 455 - - 400
Music royalties ta artists and repertaire owners 1,848 1822 26 - 1,72
Creative talent employment agreements and others 80 3 43 4 119
Content habihties 2,589 2,516 69 4 Zﬁ
Off balance sheet commitments given/{recerved)
Minimym future payments as of December 31, 2015 Total mimmum future
Due in payments as of

{nn millions of evros) Total 2016 2017-2020 After 2020 December 31, 2014
Film and television nghts {a) 3,080 1,292 1727 61 2,443
Sports nghts 2,965 i) 783 2,182 - 2087
Creative talent, employment agreements and others (¢} 790 34 413 2 807
Given commitments 6,835 2488 432 84 6,337
Film and television nghts {a} 174) {14 74) {26} {199)
Sports nghts {39) {10} (29) - {3
Creative talent, employment agreements and others (¢) not avallable

Receved commitments {213} {84} {103) {26) {202)
Total net 6,622 2,345 4.9 58 6,135

T — —
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Mainly included contracts valid over several years for the broadcast of cinema films and TV productions (mainly exclusmity contracts
with major US studios), for the pre-purchases relating to the French cinema industry, for Studiocanal films production and co-production
commitments {given and received), and for breadcasting rights of Canalsat and nc+ multichanne! digital TV packages They are recorded
as content assets when the broadcast Is available for initial release or after the imtial significant payment As of December 31, 2015,
provisions recorded relating to these commitments amounted to €45 milhion {compared to €73 million as of December 31, 2014}

In addition, these amounts do not include commitments in relation to contracts of channel diffusian nights, ISP {Internet Service
Provider) royalties and non-exclusive distribution of channels, under which Canal+ Group did not grant or receive minimum guarartees
The variable amount of these commitments cannot be retiably determined and 15 not reported in either the Statement of Financial
Position or in the commitments and is instead recorded as an expense for the pertod tn which it was incurred Based on the estimation
of the future subscriber base at Canal+ Group, the commutments would have increased by a net amount of €203 million as of
December 31, 2015, compared to €342 mdlion as of December 31, 2014

Moreover, on May 7, 2015, Société d'Edition de Canal Plus {SECP) renewed its agreement wath all the cinema professional
organizations {ARP, BLIC, BLOC, UPF} This five-year agreement (2015/2019) confirmed the historical and strong partnership between
Canal+ and the French cinema Pursuant to this agreement, SECP is required to invest every year 12 5% of its annual revenues 1n the
financing of Furopean cinematographic works With respect to audiovisual, in accordance with the agreements entered into with
producers’ and authors’ organizations in France, Ganal+ Group 1s required to invest 3 6% of its total net annual revenue in the financing
of hentage works every year Only films for which an agreement has been given in principle to producers are accounted for i the off-
batance sheet commutments, as 1t 1s not possible to reliably determine a future and total estimate of commitments under agreements
with cinema professional organizations and with producers’ and authors® organizations

Notably included broadcasting nghts held by Canat+ Group for the following sport events

+ the French professional Soccer League 1, for the four seasons 2016/2017 to 2019/2020, awarded on Apnt 4, 2014 for the two
premium lots {€2,160 million),

« the Nationa! French Rugby Championship’s “TOP 14" matches, for the seasons 2016/2017 to 2018/2019 which include all seven
games on each match day, play-off games, as well as the Jour de Rugby show, awarded on January 19, 2015, and

« the Soccer Champions League, for the seasons 2016/2017 and 2017/2018, awarded on Apnl 11, 2014 for one lot

These commitments wil! be accounted for in the Statement of Financial Position either upon the start of every season or upon an initia
significant payment
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¢ Pnmarly relates to UMG which routinely commuts to pay agreed amounts to artists and other paries upon delivery of content or other
products {"Creative talent and employment agreements”) Until the artist or the other party has delivered hus or her content or the
repayment of an advance, UMG discloses its obligatron as an off-bafance sheet given commiment While the artist or the other panty 15
obligated to deliver a content or other product to UMG {these armangements are generally exclusive}, this counterpart cannot be reliably
determined and, thus, ts not reported in received commitments

Note 11  Investments in equity affiliates

Yoling interest Value of equity affiliates
{in millians of ewros) Detember 31,2015 December 31,2014  December 31 2055  December 31 2014
Telecom italia (a} 21 4% - 3319 -
VEVO 49% 48% 76 FAl
N-Vision (b} na 49% - A3
Other na na 40 22
3,435 306

na not applicable
a Telecom ltaha 1s accounted for under the equity method as from December 15, 2015 (please refer to Note 2 2)
b On.July 1, 2015, Canal+ Group sold its interest in N-Visien BV (please refer to note 2 9)

Note 12 Financial assets

December 31 2015 December 31 2014
{in miflions of euros) Total Current Non-current Total Current Non-turrent
Financial assets at fair value
Term deposits, interest-beanng current accounts and MTN {(a) 266 266
Level 1
Bond funds {a} 315 315 - . - -
Listed equity secunties 2520 - 2520 4,676 - 4,576
QOther financial assets {b) 979 5 974 980 5 975
Level 2
Unlisted equity securities 331 . N 62 . 162
Denvative fmancial instruments {c) 115 47 68 139 40 99
Level 3
Other financial assets 7t 1 70 o1 - 51
Financial assets at amortized cost {d) 646 477 169 185 4 181
Financial assets 5243 im 3132 6,193 () 6,144

2 Related to cash management financial assets, included in the cash position please refer to Note 14
b Included a cash depos:t of €974 milhon as part of the appeal against the Liberty Media judgment (please refer to Note 19 3)

¢ These denvative financial instruments primanly comprised interest rate and foreign currency hedging instruments, as descnbed in
Note 19

d  Asof December 31, 2015, these financial assets mainly included the following cash deposits
o $480 mllion (€433 milhon as of December 31, 2015) related to the hedge of Activision Blizzard shares This deposit was recovered
following the unwinding of the hedge in January 2016 {please refer below), and
»  $55 million (€50 million as of December 31, 2015) as part of the partral judgment entered in the securities ¢lass action (please refer
to Note 23)
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Quoted equity portfolio
December 31, 2015
Cumulated Change in Cumulate of
f h Sensitr t
r: T:::;Zs historical Umgesstlp Stock market c:;:::g valuemnthe  unrealized capital 31115[; pwt;y(;'
Note value (a) perod (b} gain/loss (b}
{in thousands) (&/share} {tn ruthons of eures)
Activision Blizzard 41,500 416 57% B4 1470 i) 8 @ 1054 (o) c}
Telefonica 23 47,353 554 095% 1024 485 {70) {70 +49/-49
Ubnsaft 24 15,659 352 1388% 2667 418 65 69 +42/-42
Gameloft 24 24 489 122 2865% 6506 149 26 6 +15/-19
Total 2,510 803 1& +106/-106
December 31 2014
Cumutated 0 Change Cumulate of
:; 1:?::;2 histoncal n mrr:;lp Stock market C:;r!y::g valuean unrealized capital i&;zsanpwt;y‘;t
Note valua (a) period (b} gany/lass {b)
{in thousands) {€/share) (i milhens of euros}
Activision Blizzard 41500 416 57% 1660 689 n 3 {c)
Numencable-SFR 28 97,388 3244 200% 4064 3.987 743 743 {d)
Total 4,675 106 1016
a  These amounts include acquisition fees and taxes
b  Asof December 31, 2015 and 2014, in accordance with 1AS 39, these amounts, before taxes, were accounted for as charges and income
directly recognized in equity, except for the remeasurement of the underlying instrument offsetting the intrinsic value of the hedge of
Activision Bhizzard shares (£467 million as of December 31, 2015, please refer to reference ¢ below)
¢ These shares were subject to a lock-up period, which expired on January 7, 2015
On Jure 11, 2015, Vivend: entered into an agreement to hedge 100% of the value of these shares denominated in USD, through an
18-month zero premium collar {consisting of a put option acquired by Vivend: and a call option sold by Vivendi), enabling Vivend: to
secure an unrealized capital gain between $427 million and $532 million durning this peniod In the Consolidated Financial Statements for
the year ended December 31, 2015, this collar was accounted for as a fair value hedge, in accordance with IAS 39 As of December 31,
2015, pursuant to the credit support agreement related to the collar hedge, Vivend: established a cash depostt in favor of the
counterparty, for $480 million, 1 e . €432 million, corresponding to the fair market value of the collar hedge as of this date, net of a
$50 million deductible Given the appreciation of Activision Blizzard stock market price, the unfavorable change 1n time value of the
coliar hadge amounted to €16 msllion, classified as "other financial charges” i the Consolidated Statement of Eamings On January 13,
2016, Vivendi entirely unwound this instrurnent and sold the shares that it held The cash proceeds from these transactions amounted to
$1,063 millien {1 e , €976 mullion} The unwinding of these transactions also enabled Vivend: to recover the cash deposit of €433 mitlion
d  Not applicable, as the Numericable-SFR shares were sold in May 2015

Friday, February 19, 2016

Equity market value nsks

In 2015, as part of 3 sustainable investing strategy, Vivend: created an equity portfolio comprising listed and non-listed french and European
companies in the telecommunication and media sectors, which are leaders in the production and distrbution of contents As of December 31,
2015, this portfolio was mainly compnised of minonty interests in Telecom ltalia, Telefonica, Ubisoft, Gameloft and Actvision Blizzard, and it
represented an aggregate market value of approximately €6 bilhon {before taxes) Except for the remaining interest i Activision Blizzard sold
on January 13, 2016 (please refer above)}, Vivendi 1s exposed to the nsk of fluctuation in the value of these interests as of December 31,
2015, the net unrealized gain with respect to the nterests in Telecom Italia (please refer to Note 11), Telefomca, Ubisoft and Gameloft
amounted to €95 miflion (before taxes) A umiform decrease of 10% i the value of all of these shares would have a cumulative negative
impact of €370 million an Vivendt's financral position, a umform decrease of 20% in the value of alt of these shares would have a cumulative
negative impact of €815 millien on Vivend:'s financial position
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Note 13  Net working capital

Trade accounts recevable and other

{in midlions of evros) December 31 2015 December 31 2014
Trade accounts recevable 1308 1212
Trade accounts receivable write-offs {153} (228)
Trade accounts receivable, net 1,185 1044
Other 984 939
Trade accounts recerveble and other 2,139 1983

Vivend does not consider there to be a significant risk of non-recovery of trade accounts receivables for its business segments the large
indwidual customer base, the broad vanety of customers and markets, as well as the geographic diversity of its business segments (mainly
Canal+ Group and Umiversal Music Group), enable to mimimize the nsk of credit concentration related to trade accounts recevable

Trade accounts payable and other

(in mitons of euros) Note December 31 2015 Becember 31, 2014
Trade accounts payable 2224 2215
Music royalties to artists and repertoire owners 102 1,822 1699
Other 2691 ) 1392
Trade accounts payable and other 6,737 5.306

a  Notably ncluded the second interim dividend, pard on February 3, 2016, for €1,318 million {please refer to Note 15}

Note 14  Cash position

Vivendi's cash position comprises cash and cash equivalents, as well as cash management financia! assets classified as current financial
assets As defined by Vivendi, cash management financial assets relate to investments which do not meet the cntena for classification as
cash equivalents set out In [AS 7, and, with respect to money market funds, the cntena set forth in AMF pesition No 2011-13

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Carying Fair value Level Carmymg Fanr value Level
{in millions of euros) value valug
Term deposits interest-beanng current accounts and MTN 266 na na - -
Bond funds 35 315 1 - -
Cash management financial assets 581 -
Cash 256 na na 240 na na
Term deposits interest-beanng current accounts and MTN 2419 na na 1.851 na na
Money market funds 5550 5550 i 4,754 4,754 1
Cash and cash equivalents 8,225 6,845
Cash posrtion 8,806 6,845

na not applicable

tn 2015, the average Interest rate on Vivendi's investments was 0 35%

Investment risk and counterparty risk

As of December 31, 2015, the group’s cash position amounted to €8,806 million, of which €8,508 mill:on was held by Vivend: SA Vivendi SA
centralizes daily cash surpluses {cash pooling) of all controlled entities {a) which are not subject to local regulations restricting the transfer of
financial assets, or (b) which are not subject to other contractual agreements

Vivendi's investment pohicy manly aims to minimize 1ts exposure to counterparty nisk Conseguently, Vivendr allocates a portion of the
amounts avallable within I} mutual funds with a low nisk ¢lass (1 or 2) as defined by the European Secunties and Markets Authonty’s (ESMA)
synthetic risk and reward indicator {SRRI} which compnises seven risk classes, and {u} highly rated commercial banks {at least A-) Moreover,
Vivend allocates investments among selected banks and limits the amount of each such investment

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 Vivend /71



Friday, February 19, 2016

Liqudity nisk

As of February 10, 2016, Vivend) considers that its Net Cash Position, the cash flows generated by its operating activities, as well as the
amounts available through its current bank credit facility will be sufficient to cover its operating expenses and capital expenditures, service
its debt (including redemption of bonds), pay its ncome taxes, dividends and share repurchases, If any, as well as to fund its investment
projects, if any, for the next 12 months

Note 15 Equity

Share capital of Vivend: SA

{in thousands) December 31 2015 December 31, 2014
Common shares outstanding (nominal value €55 per share) 1,368.323 135160
Treasury shares {25 985) {50}
Voting nghts 1312338 1,351,551

Dunng the fourth quarter of 2015, Vivendi's Management Board 1mplemented the share repurchase program, authorized by the General
Shareholders’ Meeting on Apnl 17, 2015 Vivend: purchased 25,978 thousand of its own shares at an average price of €19 56 per share, for
an aggregate amount of €508 million As of December 31, 2015, the 26 million shares owned by Vivend: were allocated as follows

e 6,719 shares to cover performance share plans, and

e 75978,246 shares acquired with the intent to cancel them

Between the closing date and February 10, 2016 {the date of the Management Board meeting that approved Vivendi's Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2015), Vivend: purchased 38,644 thousand treasury shares at an average price of €187 per share,
representing an aggregate payment of €725 mulhion, of which €193 million was accounted for in the Statement of Financial Position as of
December 31, 2015 {ptease refer to Note 19} As of February 10, 2076, Vivend: held 64 6 million treasury shares, representing an aggregate
payment of €1,233 million

In addition, as of December 31, 2015, approximately 31 3 million stock options and 2 5 miflion performance shares were outstanding,
representing a potential maximum nominal share capital increase of €186 million {1 e, 2 48%}

Shareholders’ dividend distribution policy

On Apnil 17, 2015, Vivend's Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting notably approved the payment of an ordinary dividend of €1 per share
with respect to fiscal year 2014, comprising a distribution of €0 20 based on the group’s business performance and an €0 80 return to
shareholders as a result of asset disposals This dividend was paid 1n cash on April 23, 2015, following the coupon detachment on
Apnil 21, 2015, for an aggregate amount of €1,363 million

The closing of the sales of GVT on May 28, 2015 and of the 20% interest in Numerncable-SFR on May B, 2015 enabled Vivendr's
Management Board to approve the distribution of two interim ordinary dividends of €1 each with respect to fiscal year 2015

e the first interm dividend of €1 per share, paid out of retained earnings available on May 31, 2015, was paid on June 29, 2015
{following the coupon detachment on June 25, 2015), for an aggregate amount of €1,364 million, and

e the second intenm dividend, taken from the distributable income resutting from the positive earnings generated by the divestitures of
GVT and SFR, was paid on February 3, 2016 (following the coupan detachment on February 1, 2016), for an aggregate amount of
€1,318 million

On February 10, 2016, the date of Vivendi's Management Board meeting that approved the Consohdated Financial Statements as of
December 31, 2015 and the appropnation of earnings for the fiscal year then ended, the Management Board decided to propose to
shareholders an ordinary dividend of €3 per share, representing a total distribution of €4 0 bilhon, compnising a €0 20 distnbution refated to
the group's husiness performance and a €2 80 return to shareholders Given the intenm dividends already distnbuted, the balance will be
paid on April 28, 2016 (following the coupon detachment on April 26, 2016) This proposal was presented to, and approved by, Vivend's
Supervisory Board at its meeting held on February 18, 2016, and will be submitted to approval by the Annual General Shareholders” Meeting
to be held on Apnl 21, 2018
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Note 16  Provisions

{in milions of euros) Note  December 31 2015 December 31,2014
Employee benefits (3) 674 654
Restructuning costs (b 74 12
Liigations {c} 23 1222 1,206
Losses on onerous contracts 9N 124
Contingent habilities due to disposal {d) 18 17
Other (e} 963 1105
Provisions 3.042 3,178
Deduction of current provisions {363} (290)
Non-current provisions 2619 2588

Friday, February 18, 2016

a

Included deferred employee compensation as well as provisions for defined employee benefit plans (€646 millon as of
December 31, 2015 and €608 million as of December 31, 2014, please refer to Note 17), but excluded employee termination reserves
recorded under restructurning costs

As of December 31. 2015, mainly included prowisions for restructuring at Canal+ Group (€24 millign) and at UMG (€38 mullion} As of
December 31, 2014, mainly related to provisions for restructuning at UMG (€38 million}

Notably included the reserve accrual in relation to the Liberty Medra Corparation Iitigatien and secunties class action in the United
States for £945 million and €100 milhon, respectrvely {please refer to Note 23)

Certain commitments given m relation to divestitures are the subject of prowisions These provisions are not significant and the amount
15 not dhsclosed because such disclosure could be prejudicial to Vivend:

Notably included the provisions with respect to the 2011 Consolidated Global Profit Tax System and to the 2012 French Tax Group
System (€409 milhon and €228 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2015, please refer to Note 6 1), as well as Ittigation provisions
for which the amount and nature are not detailed because such disclosure could be prejudicial to Vivend

Changes 1n provisions

Year ended December 31

{in milhons of eurps} 2015 20014
Opening halance 3178 353
Addition 309 538
Utilization (426} (387)
Reversal {127 (163)
Business combinations 6 ]
Dwvestitures changes in foreign currency translation adustments and other 102 (341)
Closing balance 3042 3178
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Note 17  Employee benefits

171 Analysis of expenses related to employee benefit plans

The table below provides information about the cost of employee benefit plans excluding its financial compenent The total cost of defined
benefit plans 1s set forth in Note 17 2 2 below

Year enced December 31,
{in mlhons of euros} Note 2015 2014
Employee defined contribution plans 22 20
Employee defined benefit plans 1722 18 {10)
Employee benefit plans 40 10

172 Employee defined benefit plans
1721 Assumptions used in the evaluation and sensitivity analysis

Discount rate, expected return on plan assets, and rate of compensation increase

The assumptions underlying the valuation of defined benefit plans were made in compliance with the accounting policies presented n
Note 138 and have been applied consistently for several years Demographic assumptions {including notably the rate of compensatton
Increase) are company specific Financial assumptions {notably the discount rate) are determined by independent actuaries and other
independent advisers and reviewed by Vivendi's Finance department The discount rate 1s therefore determined for each country by reference
to yields on notes i1ssued by investment grade companies having a credit rating of AA and maturities identical to that of the valued plans,
generally based on relevant rate indices The discount rates selected are therefore used, at year-end, to determine a best estimate by
Vivend!'s Finance department of expected trends in future payments from the first benefit payments

In accordance with amended 1AS 19, the expected return on plan assets is estimated ustng the discount rate used to value the obligations of
the previous year

In weighted average

Pension benefits Paost-retirement benefits

2015 2014 2015 2014
Discount rate (a) 28% 29% 39% 38%
Rate of compensation increase 18% 20% 31% 30%
Duration of the benefit obligation (in years) 141 147 101 108

a A 50 basis peint increase {or a 50 basis point decrease, respectively) to the 2015 discount rate woufd have led to a decrease of
€1 million 1n pre-tax expense (or an increase of €1 million, respectively} and would have led to a decrease In the obligations of penston
and post-retirement benefits of €70 mulbon {or an (ncrease of €75 millon, respectively)

Assumptions used in accounting for pension benefits, by country

Umited States United Kingdom Germany France
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Discount rate 400% 375% 375% 375% 175% 200% 175% 200%
Rate of compensation increase fweighted average) na na 375% 500% 175% 200% 3 50% 343%

na not applicable

Assumptions used in accounting for post-retirement benefits, by country

United States Canada
2015 2014 2015 2014
Discount rate 4 00% 37%% 350% 375%
Rate of compensation increase na na na na

na not applicable
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Allocation of pension plan assets

December 31, 2015 {a) December 31, 2014 {a

Equrty securities 3% 3%
Debt securities 35% 45%
Dwersified funds 47% 3%
Insurante contracts 3% 4%
Real estate 1% 1%
Cash and other 1% 1%
Total 100% 100%

a Pension plan assets are mainly financial assets actively traded in orgamized financial markets

Pension plan assets which were not transferred have a limited exposure to stock market fluctuations These assets do not include occupied
buildings or assets used by the group nor shares or debt instruments of Vivend

Cast evolution of post-retirement henefits

For the purpose of measunng post-retirement benefits, Vivendi assumed the annual growth in the per capita cost of covered health care
benefits would slow down from 7 3% for the under 85 years of age and 65 years of age and older categories in 2015, to 4 5% n 2023 for
these categories |n 2015, a one-percentage-point increase 1n the assumed cost evolution rates would have increased post-retirement benefit
obligatrons by €8 million and the pre-tax expense by €1 mullion Conversely, a one-percentage-paint decrease 1n the assumed cost evolution
rates would have decreased post-retirement benefit obligations by €7 million and the pre-tax expense by €1 mdllion

1722  Analysis of the expense recorded and of the amount of benefits paid

Pension benefits Post-retirement benefits Totai

{in mithons of euras) 2015 204 2005 2014 2015 2014
Current service cost 14 14 . - 14 14
Past service cost m {25) tal 1 - - {25)
{Gains)/losses on settlements - - - -

Other 4 1 - - 4 1
Impact on selling, admimistretive and general expenses 17 {10) 1 - 18 {10}
Interest cost 23 25 6 [ 28 kil
Expected retum on plan assets {12} {12} - - {12) {i2)
Impact on other financial charges and income 11 13 [ 6 17 19
Net benefit cost recogmized in profit and loss 28 3 ? 6 35 9

a2 Related to the change in part of the group’s management team since June 2012

In 2015, benefits paid amounted to {1} €40 million with respect to pensions (€45 million in 2014}, of which €15 midlion paid by pension funds
{€18 mullion 1n 2014), and {1} €12 rilion paid with respect to post-retirement benefits (€9 million in 2014)
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1723 Analysis of net benefit obligations with respect to pensions and post-retirement benefits

Changes in vatue of benefit obligations, fair value of plan assets, and funded status

Employee defined benefit plans
Year ended December 31 2015
Benefit obligation  Fair value of plan Net {provision)/asset

assels recorded in the
statement of financial
position

{in mullions of euros) Note A} {B) (B)-{A)

Opening balance 1,065 404 (601}
Current service cost 14 (14)
Past senaice cost - -
(Gains)/losses on settlements - -
Other 3 m {4)

Impact on selling, admimistrative and general axpansas {18/
Interest cost 29 (29)
Expected retum on plan assets 12 12 |
Impsct on otfier financial charges and incomes {17) ‘

Net benefit cost recognized in profit and loss (35)
Expenience gamnsAlosses) (a) 29 19 n
Actuanal gains/llosses) refated to changes in demographic assumptions {8l 8
Actuarial gains/llosses) related to changes in financial assumptions 15 (15}
Adjustment related to asset ceiling - - -

Actusnal gains/{losses) recognized tn other comprehensive income {t7)

Contributions by plan partscipants 1 1 -

Contributions by employers 48 48

Benefits paid by the fund 19 {15}

Benefits pasd by the employer 37 137} -

Business combinations - -

Divestitures of businesses -

Transfers -

Other (of which forexgn currency translation adjustments) 49 27 {22)

Closing balance 1,085 458 (627

of which wholly or partly funded benefits 645
whally unfunded benafits fb) 440

of which assets refated to employes benefit plans 13
provisions for employee benefit plans (c) 16 (646)
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Employee defined benefit plans

Year ended Becember 31 2014

Benefitobltgation  Fairvatue of plan

Net {provision)/asset

assels recorded in the
statement of financial
position
{in ruthons of euros) Note {A) 18 |BHA}
Opening balance 966 35 (610}
Current service cost 20 {z0)
Past service cost (26} 26
[Gains)flosses on settiements n {1
Other -
Impact on selling, edministratrve and general expenses 5
Interest cost 33 (33
Expected retum on plan assets 12 12
impact on other financial charges and mcome i21)
Net benefit cost racognized in profit and loss (16)
Expenence ga:ns/{losses) (a) - 24 24
Actuanal gams/llosses} related to changes in demographic assumptions {7 7
Actuarial gans/lkosses) related to changes in financial assumptions 122 (122)
Adjustment related to asset ceding - -
Actuanal gans/{losses) recogmized in other comprehensive mcome 191}
Contributions by plan participants 1 1 -
Contributions by employers 43 43
Benefits paid by the fund (18} {18
Benefits paid by the employer {36} {36) .
Busimess combinations 1 - n
Dwvestitures of businesses (d) 102 102
Transfers - -
Other {of which fareign currency translation adjustments) 51 23 (28)
Closing balance 1.005 404 {601}
of wiich  wholly or partly funded benefits 558
wholly unfunded benefits (b} 47
of which assels related to employee benefit plans 7
provisions for amployee benefit plans {c) 16 {608}

a Included the impact on the benefit obligation resulting from the difference between actuanal assumptions at the previous year-end and
effective benefits during the year, and the difference between the expected return on plan assets at the previous year-end and the

actual return on plan assets during the year

b In accordance with local laws and practices, certan plans are not covered by plan assets As of December 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014, such plans principally comprised supplementary pension plans in the United States, pension plans in Germany and

post-retirement benefit plans in the United States

¢ Included a current habity of £62 million as of December 31, 2015 {compared to €48 million as of Oecember 31, 2014)

d Related to the impact of the sale of SFR on November 27, 2014
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Benefit cbhgation, fair value of plan assets, and funded status detailed by country

{in milans of euros)
Benefit obligation
US companies

UK companies
German companies
French companies
Other

Fair value of plan assets
US companies

UK companies

German compamies

French companies

Other

Underfunded obligation
US companies

UK companies

German companies

French companies

Other

Friday, February 19, 2016

Pension benefits (a) Post-retirement benefits (b} Total
December 31 December 31, December 31
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
133 125 130 136 263 261
330 736 1 i kk1l 97
208 209 - - 208 209
202 157 . - 202 157
66 65 15 16 81 81
09 82 186 153 1,085 1005
59 b7 59 57
293 752 298 %2
3 3 - 3 3
55 b4 - 55 54
43 38 43 38
458 404 - 158 04
(74) (68) {130} {136) (204} {204}
i32) {44} m M {33) (45)
{205) {206} - - (205} (206}
{147) {103} - - (147) (103)
{23) {Zn {15) {16) _{38) {43)
[431) 1448 1146} 1153) T6zh) o1}

a No employee defined benefit plan indwidually exceeded 10% of the aggregate value of the obligations and of the underfunded

obligation of these ptans

b Prmarly related to medical coverage (hospitalization, surgery, doctor visits and drug prescriptions), post-retirement and life insurance
benefits for certain employees and retirees in the United States In accordance with the current regulation in relation to the funding
policy of this type of plan, the plan 1s not funded The main risks for the group refated to changes (in discount rates as well as the
increase in the cost of benefits {please refer to the sensitivity analysis descnbed in Note 17 2 1)

1724 Benefits estimation and future payments

For 2016, hedge fund contributions and benefit payments by Vivend: 1o retirees are estimated to be €53 million in respect of pensions, of
which €34 million relates to pension funds and €9 miltion relates to post-retirement benefits
Estimates of future benefit payments to beneficiaries by the relevant pension funds or by Vivend: (in nominal value for the following

10 years) are as follows

{in millions of euros)
2016

m7

2018

2019

2020

2021-2025

Pension benefits

Post-retirement

benefits
63 1"
rd) 10
29 10
32 10
36 10
185 48
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Note 18

Friday, February 19, 2016

Share-based compensation plans

181  Plans granted by Vivendi

1811  Equity-settled instruments

Transact:ons on outstanding instruments, which have occurred since January 1, 2014 were as follows

Stock options

Performance shares

Number of outstandirg
stock options

Weighied average strike
price of outstanding stock

options

Number of cutstanding
performance shares

{in thousands})

{in euros)

{in thousands)

Balance as of December 31, 2013 52,835 197 5344
Granted - na 380
Exercised (11,264} (a) 175 {1 600)
Forfeited (717 175 na
Cancelled (b) {571} 137 {440)
Adjusted (c) 2,439 191 183

Balance as of December 31, 2014 42,722 193 3,867
Granted - na 1,566
Exercised (10 882) ta) 184 {1,968}
Forfeited {481) 180 na
Cancelled (28) 118 (920) n)

Balance as of December 31, 2015 31,331 (@ 197 2545 (@

Exercisable as of December 31, 2015 3133 197 -

Acquired as of December 31, 2015 313 197 650

na not applicable

a As of the stock option exercise dates, the weighted average price for Vivend: shares was €22 14 {compared to €19 68 for stock options

d

e

exercised in 2014)

Atits meeting held on February 27, 2015, after review by the Governance, Nominating and Human Resources Committee, the Supervisory
Board approved the level of satisfaction of objectives set for the cumulative fiscal years 2013 and 2014 for performance share plans
granted ' 2013 1t confirmed that not ali the criteria had been met for fiscal year 2014 The finat grant of the 2013 performance share
plans represents, depending on the subsidiaries of the group, between 62% and 80% of the initial grant Consequently, 828,127 nghts to
performance shares granted in 2013 were cancelled In 2014, the Supervisory Board confirmed a final grant at 88% of the 2012 plans
Consequently, among the instruments cancelled in 2014 were 335,784 stock options and 239,207 performance shares granted in 2012

in accordance with lega! requirements, the number and strike price of stock options, as well as the number of perfarmance shares were
adjusted to take into account the impact for the beneficiaries of the distribution on June 30, 2014 of an ordinary distribution of €1 per
share from additonal paid-in capital This adiustment had no impact on share-based compensation expenses related to the relevant
stock option and performance share plans

The total intrinsic value of outstanding stock options was €57 million

The weighted-average remaining pertad before delivering performance shares was 2 2 years

Please refer to Nate 15 for the potential impact an the share capital of Vivend, SA of the outstanding stock aptions and performance shares
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Outstanding stock options as of December 31, 2015

h
Range of strike prices Number Weighted average strike Weighted average

price remaining contractual ife
{in thousands} {in euros) (in years)

Under €15 2216 19 63
€15-€17 8483 160 38
€17-£19 2376 172 53
€19-£21 5662 202 23
€21-€23 6017 229 03
€23-€25 6,577 247 13
€25 and more - - -
3t331 197 26

Performance share plans

On February 27, 2015, Vivend: granted 1,449 thousand performance shares to its officers and employees In 2014, due to changes In the
scope which had heen smplemented, Vivend did not grant an annual plan to its employees and only granted 380,000 performance shares to a
member of the Management Board and certain executive officers of its subsidiarnes

On February 27, 2015, the share price was £21 74 and the expected dividend yield was 4 60% These shares will vest at the end of a three-
year period and the compensation cost 15 therefore recogmzed on a straight-line basis over this vesting penod They will then remain
unavailable dunng an add:tional two-year peniod After taking into account a discount for non-transferability of 9 0% of the share price as of
February 27, 2015, the farr value of each granted performance share amounted to £16 98, corresponding to an aggregate farr value of
€25 mithon The accounting methods applied to value and recognsze these granted plans are described in Note 1 3 10

The objectives relating to the performance conditions are assessed over a three-year period 1n line with what was proposed to, and adopted
by, the General Shareholders’ Meeting held on June 24, 2014

The definitive grant 1s effective upon the satisfaction of the following performance conditions

s nternal indicators {with a weighting of 80%), measured as of December 31, 2017 on a cumulative basis including the 2015, 2016
and 2017 fiscal years
- the EBITA margin rate (40%), for each subsidiary, and the group’s EBITA margin for the corporate headquarters,
- the group’s EBITA growth rate {10%],
- the group's earnings per share (30%), and

« external indicators {(with a we:ghting of 20%] tied to changes in Vivend!'s share price between January 1, 2015 and December 31,
2017 compared to the STOXX® Europe 600 Med:a index (15%) and to the CAC 40 (5%)

As the shares granted are ordinary shares of the same class as existing shares making up the share capital of Vivend: SA, employee
shareholders are entitled to the dividends and voting rights attached to these shares from the end of the three-year vesting peniod The
recognized compensation cost corresponds to the value of the equity instruments received by the beneficiary, and 1s equal to the difference
between the fair value of the shares to be received and the discounted value of dividends that were not receved over the vesting period

In 2015, the charge recognized with respect to equity settled instruments amounted to €11 million, compared to €9 million in 2014
1812 Employee stock purchase and leveraged plans

On July 18, 2015, Vivend) undertook a capitat increase reserved for employess (stock purchase and leveraged plans) which alfowed the
majonty of its employees and retirees to subscribe for Vivendi shares

These shares, which are subject to certain sale or transfer restrictions, may be subscribed by employees for a maximum discount of 15% on
the average opening market price for Vivend: shares during the 20 trading days preceding the date of approval of the share capital increase
by the Management Board and the subscription price of new shares to be issued The difference between the subscniption price of the
shares and the share price on that date represents the benefit granted to the beneficiaries Furthermore, Vivendi applied a discount for non-
transferability in respect of the restrictions on the sate or transfer of the shares durng a five-year penod, which 15 deducted from the benefit
granted to the employees The value of the subscribed shares 1s estimated and fixed at the date of the subscription price for new shares to
Issue
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The applied valuation assumptions were as follows

2015
Grant date June 18
Data at grant date
Share price {in euros) 2349
Expected dividend yield 4 26%
Risk-free interest rate 036%
5-year interest rate in fing 469%
Repo rate 0 36%
Discount for non-transferability per share 16 69%

Under the employee stock purchase plan, 636 thousand shares were subscribed for in 2015 at €18 39 per share

Under the leveraged plan, 3,218 thousand shares were subscribed for in 2015 at €19 21 per share The [everaged plan entittes virtually all
employees and retirees of Vivend! and 1ts French and foreign subsidiaries to subscribe for Vivendi shares through a reserved share capital
increase, while obtamning a discounted subscniption price, and to ultimately recewve the capital gain {calculated pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the plan} corresponding to 10 shares for one subscribed share A finangial institution mandated by Vivend: hedges this
transaction

tn 2015, the charge recognized with respect to employee stock purchase and leveraged plans amounted to €5 million

Stock purchase and leveraged plans resulted m a capital increase {including issue premium) having an aggregate value of €75 miflion on
July 16, 2015

In 2014, no capital increase, reserved for employees of participating group companies that have joined an employee stock purchase and
feveraged plans, was put into place by Vivend

1813 Cash-settled nstruments

Stock appreciation right (SAR} plans

Under a SAR plan, the beneficianes witl receive a cash payment upon exercise of their nghts based on the Vivendi share price equal to the
difference between the Vivendi share price upon exercise of the SAR and therr strike price as set at the grant date SAR expire at the end of
a ten-year period, 1 e, 2016 and 2017

As of December 31, 2015, the outstanding SAR was 2,878 thousand (compared to 4,427 thousand as of December 31, 2014} In 2015,
1,288 thousand SAR were exercised and 261 thousand have expired As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the amount accrued for these
instruments was non-sigmificant

182 UMG long-term incentive plan

Effective from January 1, 2010, UMG implemented long-term incentive arrangements under which certain key executives of UMG were
awarded phantom equity umts and phantom stock appreciation rights whose value was intended to reflect the value of UMG These umits
were simply account units and drd not represent an actug! ownership interest i either UMG or Vivend The equity units were notional grants
of equity that were payable n cash upon settlement in 2015 at the latest, or in certain cases, on an earlier date The stock appreciation
rights were essentially options on those notional shares that provided additional compensation tied to any increase in value of UMG over the
term

Duning the third quarter of 2014, one executive, who benefited from the plan, ended his employment contract The phantom equity units and
phantom stock appreciation nghts that were awarded to him were therefore cancelled and the amount previously accrued for these nghts
was reversed (€19 rillion) In July 2015, following the renewal of the employment contract of one executive who benefited from the plan,
the remaining nights under the plan vested, and an amount of €16 million was paid as final settlement to the executive

In 2015, the charge recognized with respect to this plan amounted to €3 million, compared to an income of €17 million m 2014 As of
December 31 2015, no further amounts were accrued for {€12 million as of December 31, 2014)
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18.3  Dailymotion’s long-term incentive plan
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In 2015, Vivendi implemented a long-term incentive plan for @ five-year perod with certain key executves of Vivend:, including
Mr Dominique Delport, a member of Vivendr's Supervisory Board This plan s Inked to the growth of Daillymotion’s enterprise value
compared to its acquisition value, as it will stand as of June 30, 2020, based upon a third party expertise In case of an Iincrease n
Dailymotion’s vatue, the amount of the compensation with respect to the incentve plan Is capped at a percentage, depending on the

beneficiary, of this increase Within the six months following June 30, 2020, the plan will be settled by a payment in cash, if any

in accordance with IFRS 2, a compensation expense has to be estimated and accounted for at each reporting date untl the payment date As
of December 31, 2015, given that the acquisivon date {June 30, 2015) was close to the closing date, no increase in Dalymotion's value was
recorded and, as a result, no charges were accounted for with respect to Dailymotion’s long-tesm incentive plan

Note 19 Borrowings and other financial liabilities

Note December 31 2015 December 31 2014

{im millions of euros) Total Long-term  Short-term Total Long term  Short term
Bonds 182 1,950 1450 500 1,950 1950 -
Bank overdrafts 53 53 168 168
Accrued interest to be paid 1 - 27 27 27
Other 69 14 55 54 5 49
Bank credit facilities {drawn confirmed) 183 - - - - - -
Nominal value of borrowings 2,099 1484 635 2199 1,955 244
Cumulative effect of amortized cost and revaluation due to

hedge accounting 191 14 {3} 17 28 28
Comrmitrents to purchase non-controliing interests 293 83 210 87 79 8
Dervative financial instruments 197 532 1! 521 i) 33 12 21
Borrowings and other financizgl habilittes 2938 1,555 1383 2,347 2,074 73

a Included the firm commitment of €193 mullion related to the share repurchase program in place as of December 31, 2015 {please refer to

Note 15)

b Included the collar hedge (€483 milhon) denominated in USD on Vivend:'s interest i Activision Blizzard, this instrument was unwound on

January 13, 2016 (please refer to Note 12)

191  Fair market value of borrowings and other financial liabilities

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2014

Carrying Fair market Level Carrying Fair market Level
{in muillions of euros} value value value value
Nomsnal value of barrowings 2,098 2,193
Cumulative effect of amortized cost and revaluation due to hedge
accounting 14 28
Borrowings at amortized cost 2113 2272 na 22n 2,483 na
Derwvative financial snstruments 532 532 2 3 33 2z
Comemitments to purchase non-controlfing interests 293 293 a)13 87 87 3
Borrowings and other financial habilites 2938 3,097 2341 2,600

na not appl:cable

a Inchsded the firm commitment of €193 million related to the share repurchase program in place as of December 31 2015, classified in Level 1

{please refer to Note 15}
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192 Bonds

bnterest rate (%) Matunty  December31 2015  December 31,2014
{in millions of euros} aominal  effective
€750 mithon (March 2010} 4 000% 415% Mar-17 750 750
€700 mithan {Degember 2003} 4875% 495% Dec-19 700 700
€500 mithon {December 2009) 4250% 439% Dec-16 500 500
Nominal value of bonds 1,950 1,950

Bonds denominated n euros are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange

Bonds issued by Vivend: SA contain customary provisions related to events of default, negative pfedge and nights of payment (parr-passu
ranking) In addition, bonds 1ssued by Vivend: SA contain an early redemption clause in case of a change in control If, as a result of any such
event, the long-term rating of Vivend: SA 1s downgraded below investment grade status (Baa3/BBB-}

193 Bank credit facilities

Vivend) SA has a €2 bifhon bank credit facility, undrawn as of December 31, 2015 On October 30, 2015, the matunty of this credit facility
was extended for one year, to Qctober 2020

This bank credit facility contains customary provisions relating to events of default and covenants relating to negative pledge, divestiture and
merger transactions In additian, at the end of each half year, Vivendi SA 13 required to comply with a Proportionate Financial Net Debt to
EBITDA? financial covenant aver a 12-month rolfing period not exceeding 3 for the duration of the loar Non-compliance with this covenant
could result in the early redemption of the facility (f it were drawn, or its cancellation As of December 31, 2015, Vivendi SA was m
compliance with its financial covenant

The renewal of Vivendi SA's confirmed bank credit facility when it 1 drawn 15 contingent upon the 1ssuer reiterating certain representations
regarding its ability to comply with its tinancial obligations with respect to loan contracts

In addition, on March 4, 2013, a letter of credit for €975 million, maturing 1in March 2016, was :ssued In connection with Vivendi's appeal
against the Liberty Media judgment (please refer to Note 23) In July 2015, its matunity date was extended to February 28, 2018, This letter of
credit 15 guaranteed by a syndicate of internationat banks with which Vivend: signed a Rermbursement Agreement that includes an undertaking
by Vivend! to reimburse the banks for any amounts pa:d out under the ietter of credit On July 16, 2014, Vivendh strengthened the quarantees
given to the banks that are parties to the Reimbursement Agreement by placing a cash deposit of €976 million 1n an escrow account This
cash deposit could be used in prionty against a claim made against Vivend, if any, and /f the banks were called with respect to the letter of
credit

194 Borrowings by maturity

{in millions of eurps} December 31 2015 December 31 2014
Matonity

< 1 year (a} 635 30% 244 11%
Between 1 and 2 years 762 J6% 505 23%
Between 2 and 3 years 2 - 750 3%
Between 3 and 4 years 700 34% - -
Between 4 and 5 years - - 700 32%
> 9 years - - - -
Nommal value of borrowings 2099 100% 2199 100%

a  As of December 31, 2015, short-term borrowings {with a matunty perod of less than one year) mainly included Vivendi SA’s bonds for
€500 mullion, maturing 1n December 2016, as well as bank overdrafts for €53 million As of December 31, 2014, they mainly included bank
overdrafts for £168 milhon

As of December 31, 2015, the average “economic” term of the group's financral debt, pursvant to which all undrawn amounts on available medium
term credit ines may be used to redeem group borrowings with the shortest term was 4 6 years (compared to 4 9 years at year-end 2014}

? Relates to Fnancial Nat Debt as defined by Vivendr
7 Relates to EBITDA as defined by Vivendr plus dividends recaved from unconsehdated companies
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As of December 31, 2015, the future undiscounted cash flows related to borrow:ngs and other financial habilites amounted to €3,145 milion

{compared to a carrying value of £2,938 million) and are presented in Note 22 1 within the group’s contractual mimimum future payments
schedule

195 Breakdown by nature of interest rate

{in rmitlons of euras} December 31,2015 December 31 2014
Fixed interest rate 2,002 95% 1995 %
Hoating mterest rate 97 5% 204 9%
Nomunal value of borrowings before hadging 2,099 100% 2199 100%

Pay-fixed nterest rate swaps 450 450

Pay-floating nterest rate swaps {1.450) (1450}

Nat position at fixed interast rate (1,000} {1,000}
Fixed interest rate 1,002 48% 995 45%
Floating tnterest rate 1,097 52% 1,204 55%
Nominal value of borrowings after hedging 2,099 100% 2,199 100%

Interest rate nsk

Vivendi's interest rate nsk management seeks to reduce its net expesure to interest rate increases Therefore, Vivend: uses pay-floating and
pay-fixed interest rate swaps These instruments thus enable the group to manage and reduce volatility for future cash flows related to

interest payments on borrowings Cons:dening the fixed/floating rate hedging instruments implemented, an unfavorable change of 1% in the
interest rates would have a cumulative :impact of -€10 mullion on net earnings

As a reminder, in December 20t4, concomitantly with the redemption of the bonds having make-whole opt:ons, Vivend: made an early
settlement of pay-floating interest rate swaps having a notional amount of €750 million and €400 million As of December 31, 2015, the
portfolio of Vivendi's interest rate hedging instruments ncluded the following swaps {unchanged as of December 31, 2014)

Notional amounts Fair value
Total Matunty December 31,2015 December 31, 2014
{in mdlions of euros) 2016 2017 Assets Liahihities Assets Liabilities
Pay-fixed interast rate swaps 450 - 450 - {8) - {12)
Pay-floating interest rate swaps {(1,450) (1,000 {450) 49 - 75 -
Net position at fixed interest rate {1,000) (1,000} - {a} 49 {9) 75 {12}

Breakdown by accounting category of rate hedging instruments
Fair Value Hedge {1,000) (1,000 19 - 35 -
Economic Hedging (b} - - Ha) 30 )] 40 {12)

a Included pay-floating interest rate swaps for a notional amount of £450 millign, as well as pay-fixed interest rate swaps for the same
amount, maturing in 2017, quahfied as economic hedges

b The economic hedging instruments relate to denvative financial nstruments which are not eligible for hedge accournting pursuant to
[AS 39

196 Breakdown by currency

{in mithons of euros) December 31 2015 December 31, 2014
Euro - EUR 2,052 8% 2162 88%
Other 47 2% 37 2%
Nominal value of borrowings hetore hedging 2,099 100% 2,199 100%

Currency swaps USD 789 748

Other currency swaps {126} {52}

Net total of hedging instruments {a) 673 695
Euro - EUR 2725 120% 2858 130%
US dollar - USD {799 -28% {748) -34%
Other 173 8% 89 4%
Nominal velue of borrowings after hedging 2099 100% 2199 100%

a  Notional amounts of hedging instruments translated into euros at the closing rates
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Foreign currency risk

The group’s foreign currency nsk management 1s centralized by Vivendi SA's Financing and Treasury Department and pnimartly seeks to
hedge budget exposures {at an 80% level) resulting from monetary flows generated by activities performed n currencies other than the euro
as well as from extzrnal firm commitments (at a 100% level), pnimanly relating to the acquisition of editonial content (e g, sports, audiovisual
and film rights) and certain capital expenditures {e g, set-top hoxes), realized in currencies other than the euro Most of the hedging
instruments are foreign currency swaps or forward contracts that have a matunty period of less than one year Considering the foreign
currency hedging Instruments established, an unfavorable and uniform euro change of 1% against all foreign currencies in position as of
December 31, 2015, would have a non-significant cumulative impact on net earnings (below €1 million} In addrtion, the group may hedge
foreign currency exposure resulting from foreign-currency denominated financial assets and liabiites Moreover, due to thesr non-significant
nature, net exposures related to subsidianes’ net working capital {internal flows of royalties as well as external purchases) are generally not
hedged The associated risks are settled at the end of each month by translating the amounts into the functional currency of the relevant
operating entities

The principal currencies hedged by the group are US dollars (USD) and Bitish pounds (GBP) In 2015 and 2014, to hedge against a possible
depreciation of its net investment in certain subsidiaries in the United Kingdom due to an unfavorable change in GBP, Vivend: set up a hedge
using forward contracts for a notional amount of £832 milhon, or €1,141 mullion at forward rate From an accounting perspective, these
hedge instruments were considered as net (nvestment hedges

The following tables present the foreign currency risk management instruments used by the group, the pesitive amounts relate to currencies
to be received, the negative amounts relate to currencies to be delivered at contractual exchange rates

December 31 2015

Notional amounts Farr value
{in milhons of euros} Total LJSD PLN GBP Other Assets Liabiliies
Sales against the euro {1,535) {55} (290) {1,159} {31 18 (2)
Purchases agamst the euro 2212 651 70 1377 114 16 (37)
Other - 198 (118) {13} {67} 5 {1)
677 794 (338) 205 16 39 (40)
Breakdown by accounting category of foreign currency hedging instruments
Cash Flow Hedge
Sales against the euro (53} 4 (35) - {14 -
Purchases aganst the euro 48 47 - - 1 2 -
Other - 24 {24) - 1 1]
{5 67 (59) - (13) 3 {1}
Fair Value Hedge
Sales aganst the euro {325) {51) (255) {18) {1 6 2)
Purchases against the euro 333 312 - bl - 1" (2}
Other - 106 {94 (8) (4) 4 -
8 367 (349) {5) {s) 2 (4}
Net investment Hedge
Sales against the eurn {1,141} - - (1,141) - 12
{1,141) - - 1141) - 12 -
Economic Hedginy (a)
Sales agamnst the euro (17) - - - {17) - -
Purchases against the euro 1832 292 70 1,356 114 3 (35)
Other - 68 . {5) {63) - -
1,815 360 70 1351 k. 3 (35)
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December 31 2014

Notional amounts Fair value

(1n millions of euros} Total usp PLN GBP Other Assets Liabibities
Sales against the euro {1,233) {52} {56) (1082) {63} 2 {19)
Purchases agarnst the euro 1 508 "7 51 1,020 120 40 (2)
Other - 59 - i {60) 1

675 724 {5) (o 3} 4 21)
Breakdawn by accounting cateqory of foreign currency hedaing instuments
Cash Flow Hedge
Sales against the euro {67) {9} {45) 2 (ERH i (1
Purchases against the euro 33 33 - - - 2 -
Other - - - - - -

(34) 23 (45) {2) {11) 4 (1)
Fair Value Hedpge
Sales agamst the eura (68) {43 {11) (14) {1
Purchases against the eura 275 275 - 14 -
Other - 3 - 1 (4) -

207 35 {11} {13) L] 14 (1)
Net Investment Hedge
Sales agamst the euro {1,046} - - {1 046} - 17

{1,046} - - {1,046} - - (17}
Economic Hedging (a)
Sales agamst the euro {52) - - (52) - -
Purchases against the euro 1600 409 51 1,020 120 24 {2)
Other - 56 - {56) 1 -
1,548 465 51 1,020 12 25 2)

a  The economic hedging nstruments relate to dervative financial instruments which are not eligible for hedge accounting pursuant to

IAS 39

19.7  Derivative financial instruments

Value on the Statement of Financial Position

{(in mihons of euros)

Interest rate risk management
Foreign currency nsk management
Other

Dersvative financial instruments

Deduction of current derrvative financial instruments

Non-current derivative financial instruments

Note
185
196

December 31 2015

December 31 2014

Asseis Liabihities Assets Liahdities
49 1] 75 (12)
39 {40} 43 21)
27 {483} (a) 21 -
115 (532) 139 33)
{47) 521 {40) ]
68 {11} 99 {12}

a  Related to the collar hedge denominated in USD on Vivend's interest in Activision Blizzard This instrument was unwound on

January 13, 2016 {please refer to Note 12}
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Unrealized gains and losses recognized directly m equity

Cash Flow Hedge
Interest rate Faresgn Net Investment Total
nsk cusrency nsk Hedge

{in milfrons of euros) management management

Balance as of December 31, 2013 9 5 6 20

Charges and income directly recognized in equity - 6 (86) (50}
Items to be reclassified to profit or loss 15 {6) - 4

Tax effect - {2) - {2)
Balance as of December 31, 2014 24 3 {50} (23)
Charges and ncome diectly recognized 1 equity - {3 (88) (591
[tems to be reclassified to profit or Ioss {11) 1 - {10
Tax effect - 1 . 1

Other - {1) - {1)
Balance as of December 31,2015 13 1 (116} (102)

19.8  Credit ratings

As of February 10, 2016, the date of the Management Beard meeting that approved the Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2015, Vivend!’s credit ratings were as follows

Hating agency Type of debt Ratings Outlook

Standard & Poor's Long-term corporate debt BBB } Stable
Senior unsecured debt BEB

Moody's Long-term seniar unsecured debt Baa2 Stable

Fitch Ratings Long-term senior unsecured debt BBB Stable

Note 20 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

20.1  Adjustments

Year endec December 31,

{in millions of euros} Nate 2015 2014
Rtems related to operating activihes with no cash impact

Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible assets 3 716 743
Change in provision, net [53) {125)
Cther nan-tash items from EBIT (2) t
Other

QOther sncome from EBIT 4 (745) {203
Other charges from EBIT 4 45 30
Proceads from sales of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets 1 3
Adjuztments {38) 47

202 Investing and financing activities with no cash impact

On June 24, 2015, Vivendi swapped a 4 5% wterest i Telefonica Brasil with Teleforica n exchange for B 24% of Telecom Italia common
shares The value of the interest n Telecom ltalia amounted to £1,265 mullion as of this date

On September 16, 2015, Vivendi swapped a 3 5% nterest in Telefonica Brasil in exchange for 46 mullion Telefonica shares {1e, a 095%
interest) The value of the interest 1n Telefonica amounted to €538 millon In December 2015, Vivend: received 1 4 milhon Telefonica shares
with respect to the payment of a divedend in shares, representing a value of €16 million Please refer to Note 2 3

On November 27, 2014, Vivend: sold 100% of s interest in SFR to Numericable and received €13,166 million in cash as well as
97,387,845 shares in the newly combined gntity Numericable-SFR, which represents a 20% interest and voting rights This 20% interest in
Numencable-SFR was sold on May 8, 2015 for €3,922 million, £1,948 million received on May 6, 2015 and €1,974 miilion received on
August 19, 2015

In 2015 and 2014, there was no significant financing activity without cash impact

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 Vivend) /87



Friday, February 19, 2016

Note 21  Related party transactions

As of December 31, 2015, Vivendr's main related parties were
corporate officers who are members of Vivends's Supervisory Board and Management,
subsidranies over which Vivend exercises an exclusive or joint control, and companies over which Vivendi exercises a significant
influence (please refer to Note 24 for major conselidated entities or entities accounted under equity methad),
« all companies in which corporate officers or their close relatives hold significant voting rights, and
= mnonity shareholders exercising a significant influence over group subsidianes as of December 31, 2015

211 Corporate officers

Situation of corporate officers

On June 24, 2014, Vivend+'s General Shareholders” Mesting notably appointed three new Supervisory Board members Ms Katie Jacobs
Stanton, Ms Virginie Morgon and Mr Philippe Benacin

Vivendi's Supervisory Board, which was convened immediately following the General Shareholders’ Meeting on June 24, 2014, appointed
Mr Vincent Bolloré as Chairman The Board alse appointed Mr Pierre Rodocanachi as Vice-Chairman and Mr Jean-René Fourtou, as
Honorary Chairman

On June 24, 2014, the Supervisory Board also appointed Mr Hervé Philippe and Mr Stéphane Roussel as members of the Management
Board, to serve alongside Mr Arnaud de Puyfontaine, Chairman

On April 17, 2015, Vivendi's General Shareholders” Meeting notably appointed two new Supervisory Board members Mr Tarak Ben Ammar
and Mr Dominique Delport Thereafter, on September 2, 2015, the Supervisory Board co-opted Ms Catherine Lawson-Hall as a member of
the Supervisory Board This co-option will be submitted to the next General Shareholders’ Mesting of Apnl 21, 2016 for ratification

The Supervisory Board 15 currently comprised of 14 members, including an employee shareholder representative and an employes
representative it 1s made up of six women, (e a ratio of 46% (in accordance with Law n°2011-103 of January 27, 2011, the employee
representative is not taken into account for the calculation of this percentage)

On November 10, 2015, the Supervisory Board appointed Mr Frédérnic Crépin, Group General Counsel, and Mr Simon Giltham, Chairman of
Vivend: Village and Senior Executive Vice President, Communtcations, as members of the Management Board

The Management Board s currently comprised of five members

Compensation of corporate officers
Management Board

The gross compensation, including benefits in kind, pawd by the group m 2015 to the members of the Management Board amounted to
€4 7 million, pro rata to their term of office This amount compnised the fixed compensation (€2 5 millign} and the variable compensation paid
with respect to 2014 (€2 2 million), as approved by the Supervisory Board on February 27, 2015 and November 10, 2015

On February 18, 2016, the Supervisory Board approved the vanable compensation of members of the Management Board with respect to
2015, to be paid in 2016 for an aggregate amount of €3 1 mullien, pro rata to their term of office, as well as the achievement rate of the 2014
performance share plan granted to Mr Arnaud de Puyfontatne, who consequently received 79,123 performance shares {t e , 75% of the imitial
grant}

The Chairman of the Management Board, Mr Amaud de Puyfontaine, renounced his employment contract In accordance with the provisions
approved by the General Shareholders’ Meeting held on April 17, 2015, he was granted a contractual severance package in the event of
forced departure and subject to the satisfaction of pesformance conditons

In 2014, the three members of the Management Board, in office as of December 31, 2014, received a fixed compensation of €1 6 million, n
respect of their position as corporate officers

In additron, with respect to 2014, the members of the Management Board in office until June 24, 2014 received a fixed and vanable
coempensation (n 2014 for an aggregate amount of €2 1 millron, and the vanable compensation with respect to fiscal year 2013, as approved
by the Supervisory Board on February 21, 2014 (€1 0 milhion}

The charge recorded by Vivendi with respect to equity-settied share-based compensatron plans granted to the current members of the
Management Board amounted to €1 9 million in 2015 (€2 1 million 1n 2014)
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The charge recorded by Vivendi with respect to the vested nghts under the penston commitments of the Management Board members tn
office as of December 31, 2015 amounted to €4 1 million {compared to Z 2 million in 2014) The amount of net pension obligations toward the
members of the Management Board :n office as of December 31, 2015 amounted to €21 2 millign as of this date The former Chairman of the
Management Board, who served until June 24, 2014, exercised, on that date, his pension benefit nghts after 23 years of service within the
group and a debit on plan assets was recorded for €9 4 millren

Supermisory Board

For 2015, the Supervisory Board decidad, at its meeting held on February 27, 2015 and upon the recommendation of the Corporate
Governance, Nominations and Remuneration Committee, to grant the payment of an annual director’s fee of £60,000 to the Chairman of the
Supervisory Board and to offset 1t against his annual compensation capped at €400,000, which was consequently reduced to €340,000 and
remains subject to the same performance conditions used to calcufate the 2015 varniable compensation of the Management Board members
On February 18, 2016, the Supervisory Board approved the leve! of satisfaction of performance conditions and as a result, decided to set the
compensation of the current Chairman of the Supervisory Board at £340,000 for 2015

For the period from June 24 to December 31, 2014, the compensation of the Chairman of the Supervisory Board in office, paid in 2015,
amounted to €207,778 on a prorata tempons basis The fixed compensation paid to the Chauman of the Supervisory Board m office until
June 24, 2014 amounted to €338,333 on a prorata tempons hasis

The gross amount of directors’ fees paid to the remaining members of the Superisory Board with respect to 2015 was €1,131,666 (compared
to €1,048,571 1n 2014) Moreover, at its meeting held on Apni 4 and 5, 2014, the Supervisory Board decided to award an additional
compensation of £130,000 to members of the ad hoc Commuttee, in recognition of the workload due to 1ts mandate and the high quality of
the work they had contributed

Moreover, at its meeting held on September 2, 2015, Vivendr’s Supenisory Board authorized the Management Board to enter into an
agreement with Mr Dominique Delport, a member of Vivend's Supervisory Board, for a five-year period as from October 1, 2015 Pursuant to
the terms of this services contract, Mr Delpost prowides assistance and advice regarding the creation and use of new digital contents as part
of the development of Vivend: Contents and Dailymotion, for an annual fee capped at €500,000 As part of this contract, Vivendi paid €75,000
in 20%5 In addition, pursuant to the terms of this contract, Mr Delport was granted a long-term incentive plan, as descnbed in Note 18

Chapter 3 of the Annual Report contains a detailed descniption of the compensation policy and the compensation and benefits of
Vivend: SA’s corporate officers, in accordance with the recommendations of the AFEP-MEDEF Code

212 Otherrelated parties

A Iist of Vivendr's major consolidated entities or entities accounted under equity method 1s presented 10 Note 24
« The transactions between consolidated companies are not included in the group's Consol:dated Financial Statements
e Ahst of the companies over which Vivend exercises a significant influence 1s presented in Note 11 It 1s pnmarily comprised of
Telecom Italia held at 21% by Vivend), and Vevo, held at 49% by Universal Music Group The transactions with compan:es accounted
for under the equity methad are presented in the table below

Companies in which Vivendi's corporate officers ar their close relatives hold significant voting nights are notably
= Bolloré Group and rts subsidianes, directly or indirectly controlled by Mr Vincent Bolloré, Chairman of Vivend's Supervisory Board,
and his family,
»  Havas Group and its subsidiaries, 60% held by Bolloré Group, and
¢  Quinta Communications, held by Mr Tarak Ben Ammar

Since April 9, 2015, Bolloré Group holds 196 4 million Vivend) shares As of December 31, 2015, these shares represented approximately
14% of Vivendi's share capital Vivendi pard, on Apnil 23, 2015, a dwvidend of €196 4 million to Group Bolloré, with respect to fiscal year
2014, and, on June 29, 2015, an interim dividend of €196 4 million, with respect to fiscal year 2015 On February 3, 2016, Vavend: paid &
second (nterim drvidend of €196 4 millien to Group Bollore, with respect to 2015

Excluding the following transactions with related parties, there are no other transactions between Vivend, Havas Group, Bollore Group, and
their corporate officers
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{in millions of euros} 2015 2014
Assets
Trade accounts recevable and other 37 22
Of whieh Havas Group ! 7
Liahiities
Trade accounts payable and other 13 10
Of which Havas Group 3 3
Bollord Group 3
Statement of earnings
Operating sncame 156 100
Of which Havas Group 3 2
Telecom ltalia 7 -
Operating expenses (61) {(72)
Of which Havas Group {25) 24)
Bolloré Group (9 (9
Advertising transactions
Of which advertising sales realized via Havas' agencies a9 83
meda costs realized wa Havas' agencies {74 (62}

The following constitutes complementary information about certain related parties’ transactions Certain Havas Group's subsidianies render
operating services to Vivend and its subsidianies on an arm’s-length basis Regarding Canal+ Group

* as part of therr advertising campaigns, customers of Havas Group entered into transactions with Canal+ Group through media
agencies for an aggregate amount of €35 million in 2015 (€89 mulhion 1n 2014),

e as part of the advertising campaigns devetoped for Canal+, Canalsat and Canalplay, Canal+ Group entered into transactions with
major media companies through Havas Group and its media agencies for €72 million i 2015 (€62 mullion 1n 2014},

+ mediz and production services, broadcasting nghts and fees were completed by Havas Group and 1ts subsidianies for €13 miflion in
2015 (€9 mullion i1 2014), and

* Havas Group and its subsidiaries designed and developed advertising campaigns in favor of Canal+ Group for €11 million in 2015
{€13 mutlion in 2014)

In addition, on October 8, 2015, Studiocanal and Quinta Communications entered into an agreement to sell video, TV and Videg-on-demand
exploitation nghts in France and in other French-speaking terntonies for 28 movies The inrtial duration of this contract 1s five years in 2015,
this contract represented a non-significant amount for Studiocanal

Note 22 Contractual obligations and other commitments

Vivendi's material contractual obligations and contingent assets and liabilities include

e confracts entered into, which relate to the group’s business operations, such as content commitments {please refer to Note 10 2},
contractual obligations and commercial commitments recorded 1n the Statement of Financial Position, including finance leases, off-
balance sheet operating leases and subleases and off-balance sheet commercial commitments, such as long-term service contracts
and purchase or investment commitments,

» commitments related to the group’s consolidation scope contracted through acquisitions or divestitures such as share purchase or
sale commitments, contingent assets and habilities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the divestiture or
acquisition of shares, commitments resulting from shareholders’ agreements and collateral and pledges granted to third parties over
Vivend:'s assets,

¢ comm:tments related to the group's financing undrawn confirmed bank credit facilities as well as the management of interest rate,
foreign currency and hiquidity risks (please refer to Note 19), and

« contingent assets and habihties related to Iitigation in which Vivendi and/or its subs:dianies are erther plamtiff or defendant (please
refer to Note 23)
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221 Contractual obligations and commercial commitments

Minimum future payments as of December 31 2015 Total minimum future
Total Que in payments as of
{in millions of euros) Note 2016 2017 - 2020 After 2020 December 31 2014
Borrowangs and other financial izhilities 3145 1459 1669 17 2,623
Content labihities 102 2589 2516 69 4 2433
Consolidated statement of financial pogition tems 5734 3975 1,738 2 5,056
Contractual content commuimenis 102 6622 2,345 4219 o8 6,135
Commercial commitments 1,069 0 555 164 1,160
Operating leases and subleases 600 96 340 244 640
Net commitments not recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial positrion 83N 2,9 5,114 466 7,935
Contractual abligatiens and commercial commrtments 14,105 6,766 6,852 487 12,991
Off balance sheet commercial commitments
Mmmum future payments as of December 31, 2015 Total mntmum future
Total Due in payments as of
{n milhons of euros) 2016 2017 - 2020 After 2020 December 31, 2014
Satellite transponders 605 102 360 143 752
Investment commitments 64 45 19 . B85
Other 553 268 264 21 510
Given commitments 1222 415 643 164 1347
Satellite transponders {144} (59) 185} - (187)
Other {9) {6) {3) - -
Recewed commitments {153} {65} (88} - {187)
Nt total 1,069 350 555 164 1,160
Off balance sheet operating leases and subleases
Minimum futwie Jeases as of December 31, 2015 Tatal minimum future
Total Due In leases as of December
{in mithons of euros) 2016 2017 2020 After 2020 31,2014
Bulldings m 110 345 246 652
Other 1 1 - 6
Leases 702 m 345 2436 658
Buildings {22) {15} {5) {2} {18}
Subleases {22) {15) _i5) {2} {18)
Net total 680 9% 340 244 540

In addition, in October 2015, Universal Music Group entered inte an agreement for lease with respect to the off-plan office space of
approximately 15,000 m? located in the King's Cross area in London The lease 15 expected to be signed upon delivery of the premises in 2017
for @ 15-year perod

222  Other commitments given or received relating to operations
Given commitments amounted to a cumulative amount of €68 million {compared to €87 million as of December 31, 2014) In additron, Vivend:
grants guarantees in vanious forms to financial institutions or service providers on behalf of its subsidiaries in the course of thewr operations

Received commitments amounted to a cumufative amount of €40 million {compared to €49 million as of December 31, 2014)
223 Share purchase and sale commitments

In connection with the purchase or sale of operations and financial assets, Vivendi has granted or receved commitments to purchase or sell
secunties

call and put options on Orange's interest in Dailymotion {please refer to Note 2 1),

call and put options on the interests in Radionomy held by minonty shareholders (please refer to Note 2 6),

project to invest in the future Banyay Zodiak Group (please refer to Note 2 7), and

liquidity nghts in respect of the strategic partnership between Canal+ Group, ITl and TVN {please refer to Note 27 5 below)

Vivendi and tts subsidiaries have granted or receved purchase or sale options related to shares in equity affiliates and unconsolidated
nvestments
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Contingent assets and habilities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the
divestiture or acquisition of shares

Ret

%

Contaxt

Sale of GVT (May 2015}

snilliani itics |y

Characteristics {nature and amount)

Expriry
A ;fra:‘"ggﬁvj&

Representations and warrantigs, hmited to scuflly dentified tax matters capped a .
BRL 180 millon {please refer to Note 2)

Sale of the 20% nterest in SFR to Numenicable-

SFR (February 2015

Commitments undertaken in connection with the sale {please refer to Note 2) -

{al Sale of Maroc Telecom group {May 2014) Commitments undertaken In conneciion with the sale
{b) Sale of Actiiston Bhizzard {October 2013) - Unlimited general guarantees and
- Tax guarantees capped at $200 milion under certain circumstances
Merger of Cyfra+ and "n* platforms {November Reciprocal guarantees in favor of TVN, not implemented and exprred on July 1 2015 2015
02 - PLN 1 billion in the event of a breach of any representation or warranty or covenants,
and
- PLN 300 emilion in the event of a breach of specific representation or warranty
{c} Acquistiion of Botloré Group's channels Commutments undertaken, in connection with the authonization of the acqursition, with 2017
(September 2012) - the French Competition Authority, and
-_the French Broadcasting Authonty
Bivestiture of PTC shares {December 2010) Commitments undertaken in order to end htigation over the share ownership of FTC
- Guarantees given to the Law Debenture Trust Company {LDTC} for an amount up to
18 4% for the first £125 million 46% between €125 million and €288 million, and
50% thereafter, and
- Guarantee given to Poltel Investment's {Elekirim) administrator
{d) Canal+ Group's pay-TV actvities in France New approval of the acqusition of TPS and CanalSatellite subject to comphance with rink)
{Janyary 2007-July 2017} injunctions ordered by the French Competition Authornity
Divestiture of PSG (June 2006} Unhmited specific guarantees 2018
Divestiture of UMG manufactunng and Various commitments for manufacturing and distribution services 08
dsstribution operations (May 2005}
Divestiture of NC Numernicable {March 2005} Specific guarantees capped at €241 million {including tax and social nsks) not 2014
ymplemented and expired as of December 31, 2014
NBC Unwversal transaction {May 2004) and - Breaches of tax representations,
subsequent amendments {2005 - 2010] - Obligation to cover the Most Favored Nation provisions and -
- End of claims related to remedial actions since May 11 2014 w0
Divestiture of Canal Nordic {October 2003) Distnibution guarantees not implemented and expired as of December 31, 2014 given in 04
faver of CanalDigital and Telenor Broadcast Holding by a former subsidiary
(e) Sale of real estate assets [June 2002) Autonomous first demand guaraniees given to Nexity capped at €150 million in total 7

{tax and decenmal guarantees)

Divestiture of Sithe {December 2000)

Specific guarantees capped at $480 million {environmental commitments of which
potential iabches related to contamination nisks)

Other contingent Labilities

Merger of Cyfra+ and *n” platform (November
2012}

Cumulated amount of €17 million {compared to €7 millior as of December 31, 2014)

Reciprocal guarantees in favor of TVN not implemented and expired on July, 1, 2015 015
- PLN 1 bidlion tn the event of a breach of any representation or warranty or covenants

- PLN 390 mittion in the event of a breach of specific representation or warranty and

- PLN 145 mitlion related to Neowsion's unutilized tax tosses carnied forward

Acquisition of 40% of N Vision {(November 2012)

Guarantees made by ITl capped at approximately
- €28 milkion for general guarantees, expired on May 30, 2014, and 014
- €277 million for specific guarantees {cluding tax matters expining 1n 2016 free and .
fult ownership of shares sold, authorizations/approvals for the exercise of the
activity)

c)

Acquisit:an of Bolloré Group's channels
{September 2012}

Guarantees capped at €120 million 7

Acquisttran of EMI Recorded Music (September

2012}

- Commitments relating to full pension obligations in the United Kingdom assumed by
Ciu and

- Guarantees relating to losses stemming from taxes and htigation claims, in partcular
those related to pension oblrgations in the United Kingdom

Acquisitign of Kinawedt {Apnl 2008)

Specific guarantees notably on fitm rights granted by the sellers

Dvestiture of NC Numericable (March 2005)

Divestiture of Xfera (2003)

€151 milhion counter-guaranteed by Orange, exprred as of December 31 2014 2014
Guarantees ameunt to €71 millian -

(Other contingent assets

Cumulated amount of €90 millon {compared to €86 miflion as of December 31 2014}
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the contingent assets and habilities described above

a The main terms of the Maroc Tefecom group sale were as follows

e Vivend: provided certain customary representations and warranties to Etsalat relating to SPT {the holding company of Maroc
Tetecom group), Maroc Telecom and its subsidiaries Vivend also granted a number of speeific guarantees,

¢ the amount of compensation payable by Vivendi in respect of indemnifiable losses incurred by Maroc Telecom or one of its
subsidiaries was determined 1n proportion to the percentage of ownership held indirectly by Vivend) in the relevant company on the
closing date i e , 53% for Maroc Telecom),

« Vivend''s overall obligation to indemnify was capped at 50% of the imtial sale price, with such threshold increased to 100% in
respect of claims related to SPT,

e the commitments to indemnify provided by Vivend: under these guarantees, other than those in respect of taxes and SPT, will remain
in effect for a 24-month time period following completion of the transaction (May 2016} Claims for tax-related indemmities must be
made by January 15, 2018 The indemmty In respect of SPT remains in effect until the end of a four-year period following the closing
{May 14, 2018), and

+ to guarantee the payment of any specific indemnity amounts referenced above, Vivend delivered a bank guarantee with an
expiration date of February 15, 2018, to Etisalat in the amount of €247 million On July 8, 2014, Yivend: received a discharge of this
guarantee for the amount of €229 million

Vivend) has agreed to counter-guarantee SFR for any amount that could be claimed by Etisalat or any third party other than Etisalat in

relation to the sale of its interest in Maroc Telecom

+ with respect to the sale agreement entered into with Etisalat, this commitment wall expire upon termination of Etisalat’s nght to
make a claim aganst Vivend: and SFR, 1 e, May 14, 2018, and

« this commitment, which also covers any amount that SFR may be required to pay to any third-party other than Etisalat, will expire in
the absence of any request from Numencable Group within the applicable statutes of imitatrons

b As part of the sale of 88% of Vivend’s interest in Activision Blizzard, which was completed on October 11, 2013 {the “Closing Date”},
Vivendi, ASAC Il LP and Activision Blizzard gave certain reciprocal commitments customary for this type of transaction {representations,
warranties and covenants) Vivendi, ASAC it LP, and Activision Blizard undertook te indemnify each other against any losses stemming
from any breach of thewr respective commitments  Such indemnification 1s unlimited as to time and amount
tn addition, Vivend: has agreed to indemnify Activision Blizzard with respect to any tax or other habilites of Amber Holding Subsidiary
Co ("Amber”), the Vivendi subsidiary acquired by Actwision Blizzard, relating to penods preceding the Closing Date Such
indemnification 1s unlimited as to time and amount Tax attributes (mainly nat aperating loss) held by Amber and assumed by Activision
Blizzard were estimated at more than $700 millign, which represent a potential future tax benefit of approximately $245 milhon Vivend:
agreed to indemnify Activision Blizzard, under certain circumstances, with respect to these tax attributes, subject to a cap of $200 million
imited to fiscal years ending on or prior to Decembar 31, 2016
As a remnder, as part of the creation of Actwision Blizzard i July 2008, Activision and Vivend: entered into customary agreements for
this type of transaction, includ:ng tax sharing and indemnity agreements

¢ On July 23, 2012, as part of the French Competition Authonity's approval of the acquisition of the Direct 8 and Direct Star channels
(renamed D8 and D17, respectively), Vivend: and Canal+ Group gave certain commitments These commitments provide for restrictions on
the acquisition of nghts for Amenican movies and television series from certain American studios and for French movies, the separate
negotiation of certain nghts for pay-TV and free-to-air movies and telewision senes, imitations on the acquisition by D8 and D17 of
French catalog movies from Studiocanal, and the transfer of nghts to broadcast major sports events on free-to-air channels through a
competitive bidding process These commitments are made for a five-year penod and are renewable once «f the French Competition
Authority, after hawing performed a competition analysis, deems it necessary In additon, on September 18, 2012, the French
Broadcasting Authority {Conseil Supérieur de I"Audiovisuel) approved the acquisition of these channels, subject to certain commitments
relating to broadeasting, investment obligations and transfer rights
On December 23, 2013, the French Council of State annulied, with a delayed effect as from July 1, 2014, the French Competition
Authority’s approval of the acquisition of the Direct 8 and Direct Star channels {renamed D8 and D17, respectively), which had been
approved on July 23, 2012 On January 15, 2014, Vivend: and Canal+ Group submitted a new notification to the French Competition
Authorsty On April 2, 2014, the French Competition Authonty reapproved the transaction, subject to compliance with commitments given
by Vivendi and Canal+ Group These commitments are stmilar to the ones contained n the previous 2012 authonzation except for an
additional commitment relating to the acquisiion of broadcasting nghts covening second and third exhibition windows for French films
All commitments are binding for a penod of five years starting July 23, 2012 In 2017, the French Competition Authority will have the
opportunity to request a renewal of these commitments for the same duration, if deemed necessary, after a new competitive analysis

d On August 30, 2008, the merger between TPS and the Canal+ Group was authenzed, in accordance with the merger control regulations,
pursuant to a decision of the French Minister of Economy, Finance and Industry, subject to Vivendi and Canal+ Group complying with
certain undertakings for @ maximum period of six years, with the exception of those commitments concerning the availability of channels
and V0D, which could not exceed five years
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On October 28, 2009, the French Competition Authority opened an enquiry in respect of the implementation of certain undertakings given
by Canal+ Group in connection with the merger of Canalsatellite and TPS
On December 21, 2012, the French Council of State rejected Vivend: and Canal + Group’s filed metions requesting the annulment of the
French Competition Authority's decisions of September 20, 2011 and July 23, 2012 Under the first motion, the €30 milhon fine imposed
on Canal+ Group was reduced to €27 mittion Under the second motion, the transaction was once again cleared, subject to compliance
with 33 injunctions
Canal+ Group has imptemented a number of these snjunctions, some since July 23, 2012 and others since October 23, 2012 The
(njunctions mainty focus on
e Acquisition of mavie nghts
- by hmiting the duration of output deals with Amenican studios to three years, requinng separate agreements for different
types of rights (e g, first pay-TV window, second pay-TV window, senes) and prohibiting output deals for French films, and
- by the Canal+ Group divesting its interest in Orange Cinema Senes — 0CS SNC or by adopting measures limiting 1ts snfluence
over Orange Cinema Senes — 0CS SNC On February 4, 2013, at the request of Multithématiques and to comply with the
injunction ordered by the French Competition Authonity on July 23, 2012, the members of Orange Cinema Senes - 0CS SNC's
Board of Directors resigned from their positions As a result, Multithématiques appointed by letter with an effective date of
February 4, 2013, two sndependent representatives with no affiliation to Multithématiques to the Board of Directors of
Orange Cnema Series - OCS SNC
+  Distribution of pay-TV special-tnterest channels
- by the distnbution of @ minimum number of independent channels, the distribution of any channel holding premium rights,
and by drafting a mode! distnbution deal relating to independent channels included in the Canalsat offer,
- by the obligation to promote, In a transparent and separate manner, the distnbution of exclusive independent channels on
each owned platform serving more than 500,000 subscnbers, and
- by making all its own movie channels distnbuted by Canal+ Group (Ciné+ channels) avallable to third-party distributors
{unbundling)
e Video-on-demand (VOD) and subscription video-on-demand {Sv(0D}
- by separating contracts entered into for the purchase of VOD and SVOD nights on a non-exclusive basts, and not combining
them with nights purchased for linear distribution on pay-TV,
- by offering Studiocanal's VOD and SVOD nights to any interested operator, and
- by forbidding exclusive distribution deals for the benefit of Canal+ Group’s VOD and SVOD offers on Internet Service
Providers platforms
These injunctions are imposed for a period of five years and are renewable once At the end of the five-year period, the French
Competition Authonity will review the competition situation to determine whether the injunctions should be kept in place If market
conditions have changed significantly, Canal+ Group will be able to request that these injunctions be lifted or partiglly or totally revised
An independent trustee, proposed by Canal+ Group and approved by the French Competition Authorty on September 25, 2012, will be
responsible for monitoring the implementation of the 1njunctions

e In connection with the sale of real estate assets in June 2002 to Nexity, Vivend granted two autonomous first demand guarantees, one
for €40 milhion and one for €110 million, to several subsidiaries of Nexity (SAS Nexim 1to B} The guarantees are effective until June 30,
2017

Several guarantees given during prior years in connection with asset acquisitions or disposals have exprred However, the time perods or
statute of hmitations of certain guarantees relating, among other things, to employees, environment and tax habilities, in consideration of
share ownership, or given notably in connection with the winding-up of certain busmesses or the dissolution of entities are still 1n effect To
the best of Vivend's knowledge, no material claims for indemnification against such habilities have been made to date

In addition, Vivendi regularly delivers, at the settlement of disputes and Iitigations, commitments for damages to third parties, which are
typical i such transactions

225 Shareholders’ agreements

Under existing shareholders’ or investors’ agreements {primarily those relating to nc+), Vivendr holds certain nghts {e g, pre-emptive nghts
and prionty nghts) that give 1t cantrol over the capital structure of consolidated companies that are partially owned by minenty shareholders
Conversely, Vivendi has granted similar nights to these other shareholders in the event that 1t sells its interests to third parties

In addition, pursuant to other shareholders” agreements or the bytaws of other conselidated entities, equity affiliates or unconsolidated nterests,
Vivend or its subsidianes have given or receved certamn nghts {pre-emptive and other nghts) entithing them to maintain their nghts as shareholder
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Strategic partnership among Canal+ Group, ITl, and TVN

The key liquidity nghts provided at the level of nc+ under the strategic partnership formed in November 2012 in relation to television services
tn Poland are as follows

e Canal+ Group has a call option to acquire TVN's 32% interest in nc+ at market value, which 1s exercisable dunng the two
three-month penods beginning November 30, 2015 and November 30, 2016, and

e (n the event that Canal+ Group does not exercise its call option, TVN has iquidity nights m the form of an mitial public offering of
its mterest in nc+

In addrion, m comphance with Article L 225-100-3 of the French Commercial Code, 1t 15 stated that certain nghts and obligations of Vivend
under shareholders’ agreements {nc+) may be amended or terminated in the event of a change in control of Vivend: or a tender oifer for
Vivend!'s shares These shareholders’ agreements are subject to confidentiality provisions

226 Collaterals and pledges

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, no asset in Vivendi's Statement of Financial Position was subject to a pledge or mortgage for the benefit
of third parties

Note 23 Litigation

In the normal course of its business, Vivendi 1s subject to vanous lawsuits, arbitrations and govemmental, administrative or other proceedings
{collectively referred to herein as “Legal Proceedings”)

The costs which may result from these Legal Proceedings are only recognized as provisions when they are likely to be incurred and when the
obhgation can reasonably ba quantified or estmated, in which case, the amount of the pravision represents Vivendi's best esumate of the
nsk, provided that Vivend: may, at any time, reassess such nisk if events occur during such proceedings As of December 31, 2015, provisions
recorded by Vivend: for all claims and hitigations amounted to €1,222 mitlon, compared to £1,206 mithon as of December 31, 2014 (please
refer to Note 16)

To the company's knowledge, there are no Legal Proceedings or any facts of an exceptional nature {including any pending or threatened
proceedings 1n which 1t 1s a defendant), which may have or have had in the previous 12 months a significant effect on the company and on its
group’s financial position, profit, business and property, other than those described herein

The status of proceedings disclosed hereunder 1s described as of February 10, 2016, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved
the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015

Secunties Class Action in the United States

Since July 18, 2002, sixteen claims have been filed against Vivend: and Messrs Jean-Mane Messier and Guitaume Hannezo in the United
States Distnict Court for the Southern District of New York and in the United States District Court for the Central District of Califorma On
September 30, 2002, the New York court decided to consolidate these claims under its junsdiction into a single action entitled in re Vivends
Universal 8 A Securities Litigation

The planntiffs allege that, between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, the defendants wiolated certain pravisions of the US Secunties Act
of 1833 and US Secunties Exchange Act of 1934, particularly with regard to financial communications On January 7, 2003, the plaintiffs filed
a consolidated class action suit that may benefit potential groups of shareholders

0On Mareh 22, 2007, the Court decided, concerning the procedure for certification of the potential claimants as a class {“class certfication”),
that persons from the United States, France, England and the Netherlands who purchased or acquired shares or Amencan Depositary
Receipts {ADRs) of Vivend: {formerly Vivend: Universal SA) between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, could be included in the class

Following the class certification decision of March 22, 2007, a number of individual cases were filed against Vivendi on the same grounds as
the class action On December 14, 2007, the judge 1ssued an order consoldating the individual actions wath the securities class action for
purposes of discovery On March 2, 2009, the Court deconsolidated the Liberty Media actian from the class action On August 12, 2009, the
Court 1ssued an order deconsolidating the indwidual actions from the class action

On January 29, 2010, the jury returned s verdict It found that 57 statements made by Vivend) between October 30, 2000 and August 14,
2002, were matenially false or misleading and were made i violation of Section 10(b) of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934 Plantiffs had
alleged that those statements were false and misleading because they falled to disclose the existence of an alleged “liquidity nsk™ winch
reached s peak in December 2001 However, the jury concluded that neither Mr Jean-Marie Messier nor Mr Guillaume Hannezo were
liable for the alleged misstatements As part of its verdict, the jury found that the pnice of Vivendi's shares was artificially inflated on each
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day of the class penod in an amount between €0 15 and €11 00 per ordinary share and USD0 13 and USD10 00 per ADR, depending on the
date of purchase of each ordinary share or ADR Those figures represent approximately half the amounts sought by the plaint:ffs in the class
action The jury also concluded that the inflation of the Vivend: share price fell to zero in the three weeks following the September 11, 2001,
tragedy, as well as on stock exchange holidays on the Pans or New York markets {12 days) dunng the class period

On June 24, 2010, the US Supreme Court, 1r a very clear statement, ruled, in the Morrison v National Australia Bank case, that Amencan
secunties taw only applies to “the purchase or sale of a secunty hsted on an American stock exchange”, and to “the purchase or sale of any
other secunity in the United States "

In a decision dated February 17, 2011 and 1ssued on February 22, 2011, the Court, in appiying the “Momison” decision, confirmed Vivendi's
position by dismissing the ctaims of all purchasers of Vivend's ordinary shares on the Paris stock exchange and limited the case to claims of
French, American, British and Dutch purchasers of Vivend's ADRs on the New York Stock Exchange The Court denied Vivendi's post-tnal
mottons challengng the jury's verdict The Court also dechined to enter a final judgment, as had been requested by the plaintiffs, saying that
to do so would be premature and that the process of examining individual shareholder claims must take place before a final judgment could
be 1ssued On March 8, 2011, the plamtiffs fited a petition before the Second Circwit Court of Appeals seeking to appeal the deciston
rendered on February 17, 2011 On July 20, 2011, the Court of Appeals denied the petition and dismissed the claim of purchasers who
acquired their shares on the Paris stock exchange

In a decrsion dated January 27, 2012 and 1ssued on February 1, 2012, the Court, sn applying the Mormison decision, also dismissed the claims
of the individual plaintiffs who purchased ordinary shares of the company on the Pans stock exchange

On July 5, 2012, the Court denied a request by the plaintiffs to expand the class to nationalities other than those covered by the certification
decision dated March 22, 2007

The claims process commenced on December 10, 2012, with the sending of a notice to shareholders who may be part of the ¢lass Reciprents
of the notice had until August 7, 2013 to file a ¢claim form and submit documentation evidencing the validity of their claim These claims are
currently being processed and venfied by an independent claims administrator and by the parties Vivend has the right to challenge the
ments of these claims On November 10, 2014, at Vivend!'s iniiative, the parties filed a mutually agreed upon proposed order requesting the
Court to enter a partial final judgment an the January 29, 2010 jury verdict, covenng a substantial portion of the claims Certain large claims
were excluded from this proposed judgment order as Vivendl continues to analyze whether to challenge the validity of those claims On
December 23, 2014, the Court entered the partial judgment On August 11, 2015, the Court 1ssued a dectsion whereby 1t excluded the claims
filed by Scutheastern Asset Management {SAM), concluding that Vivendi proved that SAM did not make investment decisions based on
Vivendi's supposedly fraudulent statements (“lack of reliance )

On January 21, 2015, Vivend: filed 1ts Notice of Appeal with the Second Circuit Court of Appeals This appeal will be heard together with
Vivendi's appeal in the Liberty Media case in the first quarter of 2016

Vivend: believes that 1t has solid grounds for an appeal Vivend: intends to challenge, among other issues, the plaintiffs’ theories of
tausation and damages and, more generally, certain decisions made by the judge duning the conduct of the tnal Several aspects of the
verdict will also be challenged

On the basis of the verdict rendered on January 29, 2010, and following an assessment of the matters set forth above, together with support
from studies conducted by companies specializing in the calculation of class action damages and tn accordance with the accounting
principles described in Notes 1 3 1 (Use of Estimates) and 1 3 8 {Prowisions) Vivendi made a provision on December 31, 2009, in an amount
of €550 mullion 1n respect of the damages that Vivend) might have to pay to plaintiffs Vivendi re-examined the amount of the reserve related
to the Securities class action litigatron in the United States, given the deciston of the District Court for the Seuthern District of New York on
February 17, 2011, which followed the US Supreme Court's decision on June 24, 2010 in the Mornson ¢ase Using the same methodology
and the same valuation experts as in 2009, Vivendi re-examined the amount of the reserve and set it at €100 million as of December 31,
2010, i respect of the damages, if any, that Vivendi might have to pay solely to shareholders who have purchased ADRs in the United
States Consequently, as of December 31, 2010, Vivend: recognized a €450 million reversal of reserve

Vivend: considers that this prowision and the assumptions on which it 1s based may require further amendment as the proceedings progress
and, consequently, the amount of damages that Vivendi might have to pay to the plamtiffs could differ from the current estimate As 1s
permitted by current accounting standards, no details are given of the assumptions on which this estimate 1s based, because therr disclosure
at this stage of the proceedings could be prejudicial to Vivendi
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Complaint of Liberty Media Corporation

On March 28, 2003, Liberty Media Corporation and certain of its affiliates filed suit against Vivend and Messrs Jean-Marte Messter and
Guillaume Hannezo in the District Court for the Southem Chistrict of New York for claims ansing out of the agreement entered into by Vivend:
and Liberty Media relating to the formation of Vivendi Universal Entertainment in May 2002 The plantiffs allege that the defendants
violated certain provisions of the US Secunties Exchange Act of 1934 and breached certain contractual representations and warranties The
case had been consohdated with the secunties class action for pre-tnal purposes but was subsequently deconsolidated on March 2, 2009
The judge granted Liberty Media's request that they be permitted to avail themselves of the verdict rendered by the securities class action
|ury with respect to Vivendi's hability {theory of “collateral estoppel”)

The Liberty Media jury returned its verdict on June 25, 2012 It found Vivend hable to Liberty Media for making certain false or misleading
statements and for breaching several representations and warranties contained in the parties’ agreement and awarded damages to Liberty
Media in the amount of €765 millien Vivend filed certain post-trial motions challenging the yury's verdict, including motions requesting that
the Court set aside the jury's verdict for lack of evidence and order a new tr:at

On January 9, 2013, the Court confirmed the jury’s verdict It also awarded Liberty Meda pre-judgment interest accruing from December 16,
200Vuntit the date of the entry of judgment, using the average rate of return on ene-year US Treasury bills On January 17, 2013, the Court
entered a final judgment in the total amount of €945 million, including pre-judgment interest, but stayed its execution while 1t considered
two pending post-trial motions, which were denied on February 12, 2013

On February 15, 2013, Vivend: filed with the Court a Notice of Appeal against the judgment awarded, for which it believes it has strong
arguments On March 13, 2013, Vivend: filed 2 motion in the Second Circuit Court of Appeals requesting that the Court stay the Liberty
Media appeal until the Class Action Judgment 1s entered so that the two appeals can be heard simultaneously On Apnil 4, 2013, the Court of
Appeals ssued an Order granting Vivendi's motion, agreeing to hear the Liberty Media case together with the Class Action Vivend! ftled its
Notice of Appeal in the Class Action on January 21, 2015, these two cases will be heard together by the Court of Appeals in the first quarter
of 2016

On the basts of the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012, and the entry of the final judgment by the Court. Vivendi mamtained as of
December 31, 2015, the provision in the amount of £345 mullion recorded as of December 31, 2012

Tnal of Vivendr's Former Officers in Paris

In October 2002, the financial department of the Pans Public Prosecutor's office (Parquet de Paris) launched an investigation into the
publication of allegedty false or misieading information regarding the financial situation and forecasts of the company and the publication of
allegedly untrue or inaccurate finangial statements for the fiscal years 2000 and 2001 Additional charges were brought in this investigation
relating to purchases by the company of its own shares between September 1, 2001 and December 31, 2001 Vivend: joined the proceedings
as acivil party

The trial took place from June 2 to June 25, 2010, before the 11th Chamber of the Pans Tribunal of First instance {7ribunal de Grande
Instance de Panis), following which the Pubhc Prosecutor asked the Court to drop the charges agamnst the defendants On January 21, 2011,
the Court rendered (ts judgment, in which :t confirmed the previous recognition of Vivendi as a civil party Messrs Jean Marie Messier,
Guillaume Hannezo, Edgar Bronfman Jr and Enc Licoys received suspended sentences and fines Messrs Jean Mane Messier and
Guillaume Hannezo were also ordered to pay damages to shareholders who are entitled to reparation as civil parties The former Vivend
Officers as well as some cwvil parties appealed the decision The appeal proceedings were held from October 28 to November 28, 2013,
before the Panis Court of Appeal The Public Prosecutor requested a 20-month suspended prison sentence and a fine of €150,000 for
Mr Jean-Marie Messier for misuse of corporate assets and dissemunation of false or misleading information, a 10-month suspended prison
sentence and a fine of €850,000 for Mr Guillaume Hannezo for msider trading, and a 10-month suspended prison sentence and a fine of
€5 miltion for Mr Edgar Bronfman Jr for insider trading On May 19, 2014, the Pans Court of Appeal rendered its judgment Regarding the
acts determined by the lower criminal court to constitute the dissemination of false or misleading information, the Court held that these acts
did not meet the criteria for such an offense The Court upheld the conviction against Jean-Marie Messier for misuse of corporate assets and
he received a 10-month suspended sentence and a €50,000 fine The Court also upheld the convictions agamst Messrs Hannezo and
Bronfman for 1nsider trading and they received fines in the amount of £850,000 (of which €425,000 1s suspended) and €5 million {of which
€2 5 milion 1s suspended), respectively Finally, the Court set aside the lower court's order for the payment of damages (€10 per share} to
certain shareholders and former sharehalders of Vivendi (the “civil action”) With regard to Vivendy, the Court upheld the validity of its status
as a cvil party to the proceedings, exonerated 1t from any responsibility and voided the demand for damages brought against st by certain
shareholders or former shareholders An appeal has been filed with the French Supreme Court {Cour de Cassation) by certain of the
deiendants and some civil parties

Financial Report and Audited Consclidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 Vivend: /97




Friday, February 19, 2016

LBBW et al against Vivendi

On March 4, 2011, 26 institutional investors from Germany, Canada, Luxemburg, Ireland, Itaty, Sweden, Belgum and Austria filed a
complaint agamst Vivend: with the Panis Commercial Court seeking to obtain damages for fosses they allegedly incurred as a result of four
financial communications 1ssued by Vivendi in October and December 2000, September 2001 and Apnil 2002 Subsequently, on Apni 5 and
Apnil 23, 2012, two similar complaints were filed against Vivend: the first one by a US pensien fund, the Public Employee Retirement System
of Idaho, and the other by six German and British institutional investors Lastly, on August B, 2012, the Bntish Columbia nvestment
Managerment Corporation also filed a complaint against Vivend based on the same grounds On January 7, 2015, the Pans Commercial Court
appointed @ “third party” responsible for checking the standing of the claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by them to
evidence themr alleged holding of the secunties

California State Teachers Retirement System et al against Vivend) and Jegn-Mane Messier

On April 27, 2012, 67 institutional foresgn investors filed a complaint aganst Vivend: and Jean-Marie Messier before the Paris Commercial
Court seeking damages for lasses they allegedly incurred as a result of the financiat commun:cations made by Vivendi and its former CEC,
between 2000 and 2002 On June 7 and September 5 and 6, 2012, 26 new plaintiffs joined these proceedings In November 2012 and March
2014, 12 plaintiffs withdrew from these proceedings On January 7, 2015, the Commercial Court of Pans appointed a “third party”
responsible for checking the standing of the claimants and reviewing the documentation provided by them to evidence theur alleged holding
of the securities

Actions against Activision Blizzard, Inc , its Board of Directors, and Vivends

In August 2013, a derivative action was mitiated in the Los Angeles Supenor Court by an individual shareholder against Activision Blizzard,
Inc {"Activision Blizzard™ or the “Company”), all of the members of its Board of Directors and aganst Vivend: The plaintiff, Todd Miller,
alleges that Activision Blizzard's Board of Directors and Vivend breached their fiduciary duties by approving the divestment of Vivend's
share ownership in the Company The plaintiff claims that the transactien would not only be disadvantageous to Activision Blizzard but that it
waould also confer a disproportionate advantage to a group of investors led by Robert Kotick and Bnian Kelly, the Company's Chief Executive
Officer and Co-Chairman of the Board, respectively, and that those breaches of fiduciary duty were aided and abetted by Vivendi

On September 11, 2013, a second derivative action based on essentially the same allegations was mtiated in the Delaware Court of
Chancery by another minority shareholder of Activision Bhizzard, Anthony Pacchia

On the same day, another minonty shareholder, Douglas Hayes, initiated a similar action and also requested that the closing of the sale
transact:en be enjoined pending approval of the transaction by Activision Bhzzard's shareholders On September 1B, 2013, the Delaware
Court of Chancery granted the motion enjoining the closing of the transaction However, on October 10, 2013, the Delaware Supreme Court
overturned this dectsion, allowing for the completion of the transaction On November 2, 2013, the Delaware Court of Chancery consohidated
the Pacchia and Hayes actions into a single action entitled /n Re Activision Blizzard Inc Securities Litigation

On March 14, 2014, a simular new action was initiated in the Delaware Court of Chancery by a minonty shareholder, Mark Benston This
action was consolidated into the /i Ae Activision Blizzard Inc Securities Litigation proceeding

In November 2014, the parties reached agreement on a gleobal settlement which would put an end to this dispute Gn December 19, 2014, the
settlement agreement executed between the parties was filed with the Court for formal appreval and then the shareholder notification
process commenced On May 20, 2015, the Court approved the settlement agreement, which terminated this litrgation As a result of this
settlement, on June 2B, 2015, the Los Angeles Superior Court entered an order dismissing the aforementioned action brought by Todd Miller

Calling of the guarantee issued by Anjou Patnnmoine to Umibail

Unibail has called its indemnification guarantee 1ssued by Anjou Patnmoine {a former subsidiary of Vivend} in connectron wath the sate of
the CNIT offices in 1999 On July 3, 2007, the High Court of Nanterre { Tribunal de grande instance de Nanterre) ordered Anjou Patrimoine to
indemnify Unibail for a tax habihty anstng from the creation of offices and rejected all other claims Gn October 31, 2008, the Versailles Court
of Appeal reversed the High Court's ruling, denied all of Unibail’s claims and ordered it to reimburse Anjou Patnmaoine for all sums paid under
the first decision On November 27, 2008, Unibail appealed this decision On September 11, 2013, the French Supreme Court reversed the
QOctober 31, 2608 ruting of the Versa:lles Court of Appeal and remanded the case to the Pans Court of Appeal The hearing was held on
Apnil 2, 2015 The Pans Court of Appeal rendered 1ts decision on June 4, 2015 h ordered Amjou Patnmaing to pay approximately €5 milhion
for buiiding code related improvements However, it demied all of Unibail's other clams Unibail filed an appeal agamst the judgment of the
Paris Court of Appeal, which was notified to Anjou Patrimoine on September 14, 2015
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Vivendi Deutschland against FIG

Further to a ctaim filed by CGIS BIM (a former subsidiary of Vivend)) agatnst FIG to obtain the release of part of a payment rematning due
pursuant to a buildings sale contract, FIG obtained, on May 28, 2008, the annulment of the sale following a judgment of the Berin Court of
Appeal, which overruled a judgment rendered by the Berlin High Court CGIS BIM was ordered to repurchase the buildings and to pay
damages Vivend: delivered a guarantes so as to pursue settlement negotiations As no settlement was reached, on September 3, 2008,
CGIS BIM challenged the validity of the reasoming of the judgment On April 23, 2009, the Regional Berlin Court 1ssued a decision setting
aside the judgment of the Berlin Court of Appeal dated May 29, 2008 On June 12, 2009, FIG appealed that dectsion On December 16, 2010,
the Berlin Court of Appeal rejected FIG's appeal and confimed the decision of the Regional Berlin Court 1in Apnil 2009, which decided in
CGISBIM's favor and confurmed the invalidity of the reasoning of the judgment and therefore overruled the order for CGIS BIM to repurchase
the building and pay damages and interest This decision is now fina! In parallel, BG filed a second claim for additional damages in the
Berl:n Regional Court which was served on CGIS BIM on March 3, 2609 On June 18, 2013, the Berlin Regional Court ordered CGIS BIM to
pay FIG the sum of €3 9 milhion together with interest from February 27, 2009 CGIS BIM has appealed this decision

Telefonica agammst Vivendi in Brazil

On May 2, 2011, TELESP (now Telefomica Brazl), filed a claim against Vivend: before the Civil Court of Sao Paulo (3° Vara Civef do Foro
Central da Comarca da Capital do Estadp de S0 Paulgl The company 1s seeking damages for having been blocked from acquinng contro! of
GVT and damages in the amount of 15 million Brazihan reals {currently approximately €4 7 million} corresponding to the expenses incurred by
Telefonica Brazil in connection with 1ts offer for GVT At the beginming of September 2011, Vivendi filed an objection to junisdiction,
challenging the junisdiction of the courts of Sdo Paulo to hear a case involving parties from Curitiba This objection was dismissed an
February 14, 2012, which was confirmed on Aprit 4, 2012 by the Court of Appeal

On Apnl 30, 2013, the Court dismissed Telefomca's claim for lack of sufficient and concrete evidence of Vivendt's responsibilsty for
Telefonica’s falling to acquire GVT The Court notably highlighted the inherently nsky nature of operations in the financral markets, of which
Telefonica must have been aware Mareover, the Court dismissed Vivendi's counterclaim for compensation for the damage 1t suffered as a
result of the defamatory campaign carried out against 1t by Telefonica On May 28, 2013, Telefonica appealed the Court’s decision to the
5™ Chamber of Private Law of the Court of Justice of the State of S3o Paulg

On September 18, 2014, within the framework of agreements entered into between Vivendh and Telefonica concerning the sale of GVT, the
parties agreed to end this dispute withaut payment to either side On May 28 2015, the date of the compietion of the sale of GVT by Vivend,,
the parties entered into a settfement agreement which terminated this litigation

Dynamo agamst Vivend)

On August 24, 2011, the Dynamo mnvestment funds, former shareholders of GVT, filed a complamnt against Vivend! before the Bovespa
Arbitration Chamber (S&o Paulo stock exchangel, seeking compensation amounting to the difference between the value of the shares sold by
them before Vivend's acquisition of GVT and BRL70 00 per share According to Dynamo, the provision in GVT's bylaws providing for an
increase In the per share purchase price when the 15% threshold 1s crossed (the “poison pill provision ) should allegedly have applied to the
acquisttion by Vivendi Vivendi, noting, first, that Dynamo had sold the vast majonity of its stake in GVT before November 13, 2009 {the date
on which Vivend toak cantrol of GVT) and, second, that this poison pill provision was waived by a GVT General Shargholders’ Meeting in the
gvent of an acquisition by Vivend) or Telefonica, denies all of Dynamo’s allegations The arbitral tnbunal has been constituted and a hearing
before the Bovespa Arbitration Chamber 1s expected to be scheduled to discuss the ments of the case In parallel, on February 8, 2013,
Dynamo filed an application with the Zist Federat Court of the capital of the State of Rio de Janerro to compel CVM and Bovespa to provide
the arbitral tnbunal with confidential information relating to the acquisition of GVT by Vivendi On December 17, 2014, the fio de Janeiro
Court of Appeal authorized the provision of the abovementioned information solely to the arbitral tribunal, denying Dynamo access to the
information Notwithstanding the appeals fited by Vivend), the confidential information was provided by CVM and Bovespa to the arbitral
tribunal On December 1, 2015, Dynamo filed a petition requesting access to this information Such request i1s waiting decision by the arbitral
tribuna

Redging-Griffo against Vivend:

On September 4, 2012, the Hedging-Gnffo funds filed a complaint against Vivendi before the Bovespa Arbitration Chamber {S2o0 Paulo Stock
Exchange) seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred due to the conditions under which Vivendr completed the acquisition
of GVT 1n 2009 On December 16, 2013, the arbitral tnibunal was constituted and the plaintiffs submitted their utial brefs The Hedging-
Griffo funds demanded compensation for the difference between the price at which they sold their GVT shares on the market and 125% of
the price pad by Vivendi in connection with the tender offer for the GVT shares, pursuant to the “poison pill” provision in GVT's bylaws
Vivend believes that the decision taken by the Hedging-Gnffo funds to sell their GVT shares before the end of the steck market battle that
opposed Vivend: against Telefomca was their own decision made in the eontext of their management of these funds and can mn no way be
attnbutable to Vivendi It also dentes any application of the bylaw provision mentioned above, as 1t was waived by a GVT General
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Shareholders’ Meeting 1n the event of an acquistion by Vivend: or Telefonica On July 23, 2015, the parties entered into a settlement
agreement which terminated this hitigation

Parabole Reunion

In July 2007, the group Parabole Réunion filed a legal action before the Panis Tribunal of First Instance following the termination of its nghts
to exclusively distribute the TPS channeis m Reunion Island, Mayotte, Madagascar and Mauntius, and the degradation of the channels made
available to it Pursuant to a decision dated September 18, 2007, Canal+ Group was prohubited, under threat of a fine, from allowing the
broadcast by third parties of these channels or replacement channels that have substituted these channels and was ordered ta replace the
TPS Foot channe! in the event it 1s dropped Canal+ Group appealed this decision Ina ruling dated June 19, 2008, the Pans Court of Appea!
partially reversed the judgment and stated that these replacement channels were not to be granted excfusively if the channels were made
available to third parties prior to the merger with TPS Parabole Réunion was unsuccessful in its ciarms concerning the content of the
channels in question On September 19, 2008, Parabole Réunion appealed to the French Supreme Court Gn November 10, 2009, the French
Supreme Court dismissed the appeal brought by Parabole Réunion

On September 24, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a claim against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution before the enforcement
magstrate of the Court of First Instance of Nanterre seeking enforcement of the fine imposed by the Pans Tnbunal of First Instance and
confrmed by the Court of Appeal (a request for such enforcement having been previously rejected by the enforcement magistrate of
Nanterre, the Pans Court of Appeal and the French Supreme Court] On November 6, 2012, Parabole Réunion expanded its claim to cover the
TPS Star, Cinecinema Classic, Cult and Star channels On April G, 2013, the enforcement magistrate dismissed in part Parabole Réunion’s
claim and declared the rest inadmissible He took care to recall that Canal+ Group had no legal obligation with respect to the content or the
maintaiming of prograrmming an channels made avallable to Parabole Réunion and held, after noting that production of the TPS Foot channel
had not stopped, that there was no need to replace this channel Parabole Réunton filed a first appeal against this judgment on Apnl 11,
2013 On May 22, 2014, the Versallles Court of Appeal declared this appeat inadmissible due to Parabole Réurion’s lack of representative
capacity On February 14, 2014, Parabote Réunmon filed an appeal on points of law and fied a second appeal aganst the Agnl 9, 2013
decision On Apnit 9, 2015, the French Supreme Court overturned the May 22, 2014 decision of the Versailles Court of Appeal in which the
appeal filed by Parabole Reun:on on Apnil 11, 2013 was declared inadmissible The case was remanded to the Pans Court of Appeal, brought
before the Court by Parabole Réunion on Apnl 23, 2015 In parallel, the second appeal filed on February 14, 2014 by Parabole Réunion 1s
currently pending before the Versailles Court of Appeal, following denial by the French Supreme Court on September 18, 2014, of the motion
seeking the recusal of the 16th chamber of the Versailles Court of Appeal filed by Parabote Réunion

At the same time, on August 11, 2009, Parabole Réumion filed a complaint against Canal+ Group before the Pans Tribunal of Furst Instance,
requesting that the Tnbunal order Canal+ Group to make available a channel with a level of attractiveness simitar to that of TPS Foot 1n 2006
and to pay damages On April 26, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a complaint agawmst Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution
before the Pans Tribunal of First Instance asking the Tribunal to acknowledge the fallure of the companies of the group to fulfill their
contractual obhigations to Parabole Réunion and their commitments to the Mimstry of Economy These two actions have been consolidated
into a single action On Apni 29, 2014, the Pans Tribunal of First Instance partially recognized the admissibility of Parabole Béunion’s claim
with respect to the period following June 19, 2008 and recognized the contractual liability of Canal+ Group due to the degradation of the
quahity of channels made available to Parabole Réunion The Tribunal ordered an expert report on the damages suffered by Parabole Réunion,
rejecting the assessment produced by the tatter On November 14, 2014, Canal+ Group appealed against the decision of the Pans Tribunal of
First Instance The court appointed expert issued its report on December 18, 2015 and the case was argued before the Pans Court of Appeal
on January 28, 2018

belN Sports against the National Rugby League and Canal+ Group

On March 11, 2014, belN Sports filed a complamt with the French Competition authonty against Canal+ Group and the National Rughy
League, challenging the award to Canal+ Group of exclusive broadcasting nghts to the “TOP 14" for the 2014-2015 to 2018-2019 seasons On
July 30, 2014, the French Competition Authonty imposed iterim measures suspending Canal+ Group’s agreement with the National Rughy
League as from the 2015-2016 season and mandated that a new tender process be organized Canal+ Group and the National Rugby League
appealed this decision before the Pans Court of Appeal

On October 9, 2014, the Panis Court of Appeal dismissed the appeal of Canal+ Group and the National Rugby League and directed the
National Rugby League to complete a new tender process for nights to the “TOP 14" for the 2015-2016 season as well as the following
seasons by no later than March 31, 2015 On October 30, 2014, Canak+ Group appealed against this decision On March 10, 2015, Canal+
Group withdrew 1ts appeal and an order of discontinuance was 1ssued on Apni 9, 2015, by the President of the Commercial Chamber of the
Pans Court of Appeal
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Action brought by the French Competition Authority regarding Practices in the Pay-TV Sector

On January 9, 2009, further to its voluntary investigation and a complaint by Orange, the French Competition Authonity sent Vivend: and
Canal+ Group a notification of allegations It alleges that Canal+ Group has abused its dominant position in certain Pay-TV markets and that
Vivendi and Canal+ Group colluded with TF1 and MS, on the one hand, and with Lagardare, on the other Vivend: and Canal+ Group have
each demied these allegations

On November 16, 2010, the French Competition Authonity rendered a decision in which it dismissed the allegations of cofluston, in respect of
all parties, and certain other allegations, in respect of Canal+ Group The French Competition Authority requested further investigation
regarding fiber optic TV and catch-up TV, Canal+ Group's exclusive distnbution nghts on channels broadeast by the group and independent
channels as well as the extension of exclusive nghts on TF1, M6 and Lagardere channels to fiber optic and catch-up TV On October 30, 2013,
the French Competition Authority took over the investigation into these aspects of the case

Canal+ Group agamnst TF1, M5, and France Telévision

On December 9, 2013, Canal+ Group filed a complaint with the French Competition Authorrty against the practices of the TF1, M6 and France
Télévision groups 1n the French-language film market Canal+ Group accused them of inserting pre-emption nghts ite co-production
contracts, in such a way as to discourage competition The French Competition Authonty 1s examining the case

Canal+ Group agamst TF1, and TMC Régre

Cn June 12, 2013, Canal+ Group SA and Canal+ Régie filed a complaint with the French Competition Authonty against the practices of TF1
and TMC Régie 1n the television advertising market Canal+ Group SA and Canal+ Régie accused them of cross-promotion, having a single
advertising division and refusing to promote the D8 channel during its launch The French Competition Authonty 1s examining the case

Private Copying Levy Case

On February 5, 2014, a claim was fited with Court of First Instance of Nanterre by Copie France who 15 seeking compensation in respect of
external hard drives used in connection with the G5 set-top boxes Copie France claims that the external drive used by Canal+ 1s “dedicated”
to the set-top box and therefore 1t should be treated as an integrated hard drive Copie France therefore believes that the applicable amount
of the compensatton should be higher Copie France subsequently expanded its claim, asserting that the amount of compensation applicable
to the *muftimedia hard drive™ with 80 GB capacity should be also higher

Aston France against Canal+ Group

On September 25, 2014, Aston notified the French Competition Authority about Canal+ Group's decision to stop selling its satelflite
subscription called "cards only” {enabling the reception of Canal+/Canalsat programs on Canal Ready-labeled satelliie decoders,
manufactured and distnbuted by third parties, including Aston) In parallel, on September 30, 2014, Aston filed a request for injunctive relef
agawnst Canal+ Group before the Commercial Court of Paris, seeking a stay of the decision of the Canal+ Group to terminate the Canal Ready
partnership agreement and thus stop the marketing of satethte subscriptions called “cards only” On October 17, 2014, the Pans Commercial
Court 1ssued an order denying Aston’s requests On November 4, 2014, Aston appealed this decision and, on January 15, 2015, the Panis
Court of Appeal, ruling 1n chambers, granted its requests and suspended the decision of Canal+ Group to stop selling its "cards only”
subscriptions until the French Competition Authonty renders 1ts decision on the merits of the case

Pro D2

On Juiy 8, 2015, Aluce filed an application for intenm measures and a referral on the ments with the French Competition Authonty
concerning the practices of Canal+ Group, Eurosport and the National Rugby League {the "NRL") during the allocation of Pro D2 broadeast
nghts Altice 1s challenging the way the broadcasting nghts to French Pro D2 Rugby for the 2015/2016 to 2019/2020 seasons were
commercialized by the NRL during December 2014 The nghts bidding process resulted in one portion of the nghts being allocated to
Eurosport and the ather portion being allocated to Canal+ Group on Apnl 3, 2015 The French Competition Authonity 1s expected to rule on the
request for interim measures i the first quarter of 2016

Thirel against Canal+ Group

On December 23, 2015, Thirel filed a complaint against Canal+ Group seeking enforcement of a computer services contract, or, in the
alternative, an order against Canal+ Group to pay damages
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Complaints against Music Industry Majors in the United States

Several complaints have been filed before the Federal Courts in New York and California against Universal Music Group and the other music
industry majors for alleged anti-competitive practices in the context of sales of CDs and Internet music downloads These complaints have
been consolidated befare the Federal Court in New York The motion to dismuss filed by the defendants was granted by the Federal Court on
October 9, 2008, but this deciston was reversed by the Second Circuit Court of Appeals on January 13, 2010 The defendants filed a motion
for reheanng which was demed They filed a petition with the US Supreme Court which was rejected on January 10, 2011 The discovery
process (s underway

Compiaints against UMG regarding Royalties for Digital Downloads

Since 2011, as has been the case with other music industry majors, several purported ¢lass action complaints have been filed against UMG
by recording artists generally seeking additional royalties for on line sales of music downloads and master ningtones On Apnl 14, 2015, a
global transaction termenating the htigation was entered into This settlement transaction 1s expected to be formally approved by the Court 1n
the first quarter of 2016

Capitol Records and EMI Music Publishing against MP3tunes

On November 9, 2007, Capitol Record and EMI Music Publishing filed a joint complaint against MP3tunes and its founder, Michael
Robertson, for copyright infringement on the sidelead com and mp3tunes com webstes The triat was held in March 2014, and, on March 19,
2014, the jury returned a verdict favorable to EMI and Capital Records it found the defendants hable for knowingly allowing the unauthonzed
content on the websites On March 26, 2014, the jury awarded damages in the amount of USD41 million On October 30, 2014 the Court
confirmed the verdict but entered judgment in the reduced amount of USD12 2 milhon The defendants have appealed against the judgment

Mireille Porte against interscope Records, Inc , Stefani Germanotta and Universal Music France

On July 11, 2013, the artist Miretlle Porte (AKA “Orlan”) filed a complaint against Interscope Records, Inc , Stefani Germanotta (AKA “Lady
Gaga“} and Universal Music France with the Pans Tribunal of First Instance for the alieged copynght infringement of several of Orlan's
artistic works

James Clar against Rihanna Fenty, UMG Recordings, Inc and Universal Music France

On June 13, 2014, the artist James Clar filed a complaint against Rihanna Fenty, UMG Recordings, Inc and Universal Music France before
the Paris Tribunal of First Instance ( Tribunal de Grande Instance de Faris) for the alleged infringement of his work

Ret1 Televisive Italiane (RTI) against Daillymotion

Smce 2012, several legal actions have been filed by RT against Dailymotion before the Cwvil Court of Rome Similar to claims it has made
against other major online wideo platforms, RTI 1s seeking damages for infringement of its neighboring nights {audiovisual production and
broadcasting rights} and unfair competition as well as the removal of the contested content from the Dailymotion platform
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Note 24  Major consolidated entities or entities accounted under equity method

As of December 31, 2015, approximately 520 entities were consolidated or accounted for using the equity method (compared to
approximately 540 entities as of December 31, 2014}

Note

Vivendi S A
Groupe Canal+ S.A

Société d'Ediuon de Canal Pius 25

Muttithématiques SA S

Canal+ Overseas SA S

D8

Studiocanal § A

ITI Neowision

VSTV (a)

TVN 210
Universal Music Group, Inc

Universal Music Group Holdings, Inc

UMG Recordings, Inc

Vevo n
SiG 104

Universal International Music BV

Universal Music Entertanment GmbH

Universal Music LLC

Universal Music France S A S

Universal Music Holdings Limited
EMI Group Worldwide Holding Ltd
Vivendi Village

See Tickets

Digitick

MyBestPro {formerly Wengo)

Watchever GmbH

|'Olympia (5}

Radionomy Group 26

CanalOtympia 31
New Imtiatives

Datymotion 21

Group Vivend Africa 31

Vivend) Contents 31

Boulogne Studios 26
Other

Telecom ltalia 22

Polte! Investment (Elektrim Telekomunikacsal
Mscontinued businesses

Globat Village Telecom S A 29

C Consolidated, E Equity, na not applicable

December 31 2015

December 31 2014

Country Accounting Voting Ownership  Accounting Voting Ownership
Methad Interest Interast Method Interest Interest
France Parent company Parent company
France C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
France C 100% 100% C 49% 49%
France c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
France c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
France C 100% 100% ¢ 100% 100%
Poland ¢ 51% 51% C 51% 51%
Vietnam C 49% 49% C 49% 49%
Poland ng - - E 49% 26%
United States [ 100% 100% c 100% 100%
United States C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
United States C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
United States E 49% 43% E 48% 48%
France C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Netherlands ¢ 100% 100% C 0% 100%
Germany C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Japan [ 100% 100% c 100% 100%
France C 106% 100% C 100% 100%
United Kingdom C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Urited Kingdam C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
United Kingdom C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
France C 100% 91% C 100% 90%
Germany C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Belgium C 84% 64% na - -
France C 100% 100% na
France C 90% 90% na -
France c 100% 100% na
France C 100% 100% na
France C 100% 100% na -
ltalia E 21% 15% na na na
Poland ¢ 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Brazil na c 100% 100%

a VSTV {(Vietnam Satellite Digital Telewision Company Limited) 1s held 49% by Canal+ Group and 51% by VCTV, a subsidiary of VTV {the
Vietnamese public television company} This company has been consolidated by Vivend: given that Canal+ Group has both operational
and financial control over it pursuant to a general delegation that was granted by the majonty shareholder and pursuant to the

company's bylaws

b L'Olymma was transferred from Universal Music Group to Vivend: Village as from January 1, 2015
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Fees paid by Vivendi SA in 2015 and 2814 to 1its statutory auditors and members of the statutory auditor firms {including fees related to
discontinued operations in 2015 and 2014 at prorata tempors, 1if any) were as follows

{in millions of euros)
Statutory audit cerfication consolidated and
indivrduat financial statements audit
Issuer
Fully consolidated subsidianes
Other work and services directly related to the
statutory audi
fssuer
Fully consolidated subsidiaries
Subtotal
Qther services prowided by the network to fully
consolidated subsidsaries
Legal, tax and social matters
Other
Subtotal
Total

Note 26

KPMG S A

£rnst & Young et Autres

Amaunt Percentage Amount Percentage Total
2015 2014 20t5 2014 2015 2014 2015 214 2015 2014
06 06 20% 0% 08 07 10% 10% 12 13
14 41 7% 73% 52 55 2% 75% 66 96
01 a5 3% 9% 0z 03 % 4% 03 08
02 01 7% 2% 03 05 5% 7% 05 06
2.3 53 7% 4% 63 7.0 100% %% a6 123
06 02 0% 3% - 14 % 96 04
01 02 3% 3% - 01 1% 1} 03
07 04 23% 6% - 03 4% 07 07
30 517 100% 100% 63 13 100% 100% 93 130

Audit exemptions for UMG subsidiaries in the United Kingdom

Vivend! S A has provided guarantees to the following UMG subsidianes, incorporated in England and Wales, under the registered number
indicated, in order for them to claim audit exemptions, with respect to fiscal year 2015, under section 479A of the UK Companies Act 2006

Name Company Number Name Company Number
Backeite Limited 02358972 Universal Music Holdings {UK) Limited (0337803
Centenary UK Limited 03478918 Universal Music Leisure Limited 03384487
EGW USD 08107589 Universal Music Publishing MGB Holding 05092413
E M| Overseas Holdings Limited 00403200 UK Limited

EMI{IP) Limited 03984464 Universal SRG Artist Services Limited 01890289
EMI Group Electronics Limited 004615811 Universal SRG Group Limited 00284340
EMI Group Holdings (UK) (03156108 Universal SRG Music Publishing Copynghts 02873472
EMI Group International Holdings Limited 01407770 Limited

EMI Group Worldwide 03158106 Universal SRG Studios Limited 03050388
EMI Limited 00053317 V2 Music Group Limited 03265625
EMI Recorded Music {Chile) Limited 07934340 Virgin Music Group 02253349
EMI Records UK Holdco Limited 06388809 Virgin Records Overseas Limited (10335444
UMGI {ATW) Linited 05103127 VRL 1 Limited 03967882
Universal Music (UK} Holdings Lirmted (3383881
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Note 27  Subsequent events

The significant events that occurred between the closing date and February 10, 2016 [the date of the Management Board meeting that
approved Vivend's Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2015) were as follows

¢  On January 13, 2016, Vivendi unwound the hedge denominated in USD of the Activision Blizzard shares that it held, and sold its
entire interest The cash praceeds from these transactions amounted to $1,063 million, 1e, €976 million The unwinding of these
transactions also enabled Vivend: to recover a cash deposit of $0 4 billion (please refer to Note 12),

o On February 3, 2016, following the coupon detachment on February 1, 2016, Vivend distributed a second intenm dividend with
respect to fiscal year 2015 for £1,318 million {please refer to Note 15}, and

s As of February 10, 2016, Vivend: held 64 6 million treasury shares [please refer to Note 15)
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